
 

By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you will save the Authority approx. £03.32 in 
printing costs 

 
 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Democratic Services 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Friday, 22 September 2023 

 

Dear Councillor,  
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee will be held Hybrid in the Council Chamber - 
Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB / remotely via Microsoft Teams on Thursday, 28 
September 2023 at 10:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Apologies for Absence    

 To receive apologies for absence from Members.  
 

2.  Declarations of Interest    

 To receive declarations of personal and prejudicial interest (if any) from Members/Officers in 
accordance with the provisions of the Members’ Code of Conduct adopted by Council from 
1 September 2014.  
 

3.  Approval of Minutes   3 - 12 

 To receive for approval the minutes of the Committee of 26/07/23. 
 

4.  Governance and Audit Committee Action Record  
 

13 - 16 

5.  Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports  
 

17 - 36 

6.  Code of Corporate Governance  
 

37 - 74 

7.  Ethical Investment Policy  
 

75 - 82 

8.  Progress Against the Internal Audit Risk Based Plan 2023-24  
 

83 - 94 

9.  Internal Audit Recommendation Monitoring  
 

95 - 104 

10.  Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) - External Peer Assessment of 
the Regional Internal Audit Service  
 

105 - 144 

11.  Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report 2022/23 - Draft  
 

145 - 160 

Public Document Pack



12.  Forward Work Programme 2023-24  
 

161 - 166 

13.  Urgent Items    
 To consider any other items(s) of business in respect of which notice has been given in 

accordance with Rule 4 of the Council Procedure Rules and which the person presiding at 
the meeting is of the opinion should by reason of special circumstances be transacted at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 

Note: This will be a Hybrid meeting and Members and Officers will be attending in the Council 
Chamber, Civic Offices, Angel Street Bridgend / Remotely via Microsoft Teams. The meeting will be 
recorded for subsequent transmission via the Council’s internet site which will be available as soon 
as practicable after the meeting. If you have any queries regarding this, please contact 
cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk or tel. 01656 643147 / 643148. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
K Watson 
Chief Officer, Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy  
 
 
Councillors   Councillors 
 
C Davies    RM Granville 
E Richards    SJ Griffiths 
M L Hughes   S J Bletsoe  
MJ Williams    A Williams 
 
Lay Members  
 
G Chapman 
A Bagley 
B Olorunnisola  



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE HELD HYBRID 
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER - CIVIC OFFICES, ANGEL STREET, BRIDGEND, CF31 4WB 
ON WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 AT 10:00 

 
Present 

 
G Chapman – Chairperson (lay member) 

 
S J Bletsoe C Davies RM Granville S J Griffiths 

M L Hughes MJ Williams   

 
Lay Members: 
 
A Bagley 
B Olorunnisola 
 
Officers: 
 
Carys Lord Chief Officer - Finance, Performance & Change 
Nigel Smith Group Manager - Chief Accountant 
Rachel Freitag Audit Wales 
Simon Roberts Senior Fraud Investigator 
Eilish Thomas Finance Manager - Financial Control & Closing 
Andrew Wathan 
Joan Davies 

Head of the Regional Internal Audit Service 
Deputy Head of Regional Internal Audit Service 

Alex Rawlin 
Mark Galvin 
Stephen Griffiths 

Corporate Policy & Public Affairs Manager 
Senior Democratic Services Officer - Committees 
Democratic Services Officer – Committees 
 

86. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
A Williams 
 

87. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 

88. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Minutes of the meeting on 1 June 2023 were approved as a true and accurate 
record.  
 

89. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION RECORD 
 
This report was introduced by the Senior Democratic Services Officer – Committees. Its 
purpose was to provide Members with an update on the Governance and Audit 
Committee Action Record.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee noted the Action Record.  
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 
 

90. DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022-23 
 
This report was introduced by the Group Manager – Chief Accountant and its purpose 
was to present Members with the unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2022-23 attached 
at Appendix A for noting. 
 
The key points were as follows: 
 

 The draft Statement of Accounts for 2022–23 have been completed in 
accordance with the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014. 

 The draft Accounts are now subject to audit by Audit Wales and the final audited 
accounts will be presented for approval to the Governance and Audit Committee 
in the autumn. 

 
In the discussion that followed, a member made two suggestions for next year’s 
Statement:  
 

 there needed to be a broader and more detailed section on how we are 
addressing the Decarbonisation 2030 proposals; and,  

 that he was appreciative of the improvements to the balances in reserve 
statements, but he thought there was more that could be done in terms of clarity 
for non-financial people. On page 38 in the report, there is a nice breakdown of 
the usable reserves, but thought it needed more of an explanation of the terms 
used.  

 
Another member thanked officers for the valuable briefing on the Statement of Accounts. 
He added that the reference in the document to the Llynfi Independents being a political 
party needed to be amended. They are a political group and not a political party. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee noted the unaudited Statement of Accounts 2022-23 at Appendix A. 
 

91. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2022-23 
 
This report was introduced by the Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
and its purpose was to present Members with the Annual Governance Statement 2022-
23 (AGS) for approval and inclusion within the unaudited Statement of Accounts 2022-
23. 
  
The key points were as follows: 
 

 Good corporate governance requires the active participation of Members and 
officers across the Council. These arrangements are reviewed on an annual 
basis and the findings used to update the AGS.  

 This helps to ensure the continuous improvement of the Council’s corporate 
governance culture. The inclusion of the AGS within the Statement of Accounts 
provides an overall appraisal of the controls in place to manage the Council’s key 
risks and identifies where improvements need to be made. 

 The draft AGS for 2022-2023 was attached at Appendix A. This Statement 
describes the extent to which the Council has complied with its Code of 
Corporate Governance and the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 and the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 
2018 for the year ended 31 March 2023.  

Page 4



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 

 It also sets out how the Council has responded to governance issues identified 
during 2022-23 and actions to be undertaken during 2023-24 following an annual 
review of the Governance Framework.  

 This statutory Committee provides independent assurance on the Council’s 
internal control environment. 

 Work done by external regulators such as Audit Wales and Care Inspectorate 
Wales are referred to as they undertake work on our control systems.  

 The Council faces a range of risks as would be expected from the broad range of 
services it delivers and activities it is engaged with. 

 Risks are viewed from both a Service and Council-wide perspective which 
ensures the key risks are distilled in the Corporate Risk Assessment.  

 The Risk Assessment sets out how the Council is addressing these risks and the 
mitigating actions it will put in place to reduce them. It is regularly reviewed and 
challenged by both senior management and the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  

 The Council has in place robust arrangements for effective financial control 
through the Council’s accounting procedures, key financial systems and the 
Financial Procedure Rules. 

 The Council had an unqualified audit opinion on the 2021-2022 financial 
statements and the Head of the Internal Audit services has given the Council as 
assessment of reasonable assurance for the 2022-2023 financial year. 

 Section 5 of the AGS provides an update with regard to the issues highlighted in 
the 2021-2022 AGS and the issues identified for the 2022-2023 year. 

 The AGS is currently in draft and will be reviewed by Audit Wales as part of the 
work undertaken on the Statement of Accounts for 2022- 2023. A final version of 
the AGS will be included when the final SOA is presented to this committee. 

 
A member raised three issues about the report: 
 

 whether it would be possible to have more regular reviews of the Constitution to 
agree more incremental changes, such as rules about meeting duration and 
breaks during meetings. 

 the relationship between BCBC and Town and Community Councils was unclear 
where it came to enforcing the Code of Conduct and helping to manage good 
behaviour.  

 He welcomed the adoption of a socially responsible procurement strategy but 
that there needed to be a commitment to a green procurement strategy if the 
Council is going to hit its 2030 decarbonisation targets. 
  

In response to the first two issues, the Chairperson suggested they were a matter for the 
Monitoring Officer and Democratic Services Committee. In respect of the second one, in 
particular, it was suggested that a note could be prepared by the Monitoring Officer to 
clarify the situation for members.  
 
In respect of the third issue, the Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
suggested she could take it away, look at it, and discuss with the procurement team. 
The member responded by suggesting it was also something for the Cabinet/ Corporate 
Management Board (CMB) for example, because it is necessary to change the way 
BCBC is thinking about green issues and embedding them in all areas of activity.  
 
A Lay Member thanked the authors of the report for a very comprehensive and well put 
together document and added three suggestions, with the external reader in mind: 
 

Page 5



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 

 Rather than suggesting “Internal Audit has worked remotely, conducting audits 
and obtaining evidence digitally as well as face to face where appropriate” 
(p.139), it would be better to say that they had been working hybrid.  

 At the bottom of the same page, it talks about actions being at various stages of 
implementation. He thought it would be better to say there’s no significant 
overdue actions. 

 Where the audits that have been deferred are discussed, it would probably be 
stronger if we could say those audits that were deferred were approved in some 
sort of forum, and also that they were not considered significant in the overall 
context. 

 
A member returned to the issue of the Constitution and, in particular, asked whether the 
review of the Constitution could be made a requirement of an AGM. 
 
The Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change Chief Officer – Finance, 
Performance and Change, suggested she could add this to the constitutional issues 
raised by the other member earlier in the meeting and discuss them with the Monitoring 
Officer. The Chairperson added that he thought this was a matter for the Democratic 
Services Committee and that reviewing the Constitution annually would be a huge task.  
 
The member who raised the initial points about the constitution added that what he was 
looking for was a process of continuous improvement.  
  
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee approved the draft Annual Governance Statement at Appendix A and 
agreed its inclusion within the unaudited Statement of Accounts 2022-23. 
 

92. PORTHCAWL HARBOUR RETURN 2022-23 
 
This report was introduced by the Group Manager – Chief Accountant and its purpose 
was to present Members with the unaudited Porthcawl Harbour Return for 2022-23 
attached at Appendix A for approval. 
 
The key points were as follows: 
 

 The Porthcawl Harbour Return has been completed and reviewed by Internal 
Audit. 

 The return is produced in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

 The Harbour achieved a balanced position as at 31 March 2023. 

 The return is required to be signed by the Responsible Financial Officer and the 
Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee prior to submission to Audit Wales 
for the annual audit of the Statement. 

 
In the discussion that followed, members commented as follows: 
 

 A Member requested information on the extent of the Porthcawl Harbour asset. 
The Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change indicated she would find 
out and pass on the information to the member.  

 A Lay Member drew attention to the table in Appendix A on the Annual 
Governance Statement that did not seem to have been completed. In response, 
the Group Manager – Chief Accountant confirmed that these should have been 
completed. 

Page 6



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 

 A member asked about the debtors and creditors section of the return and the 
fact they have the same figure (£39,893) in them. A discussion followed about 
accounting conventions and practises in this area.  

 A member asked, given Porthcawl Harbour was being run on a net-net basis, 
whether, in the event that there is a surplus, it had to be retained within this 
particular account. The Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
thought it was self-contained but indicated she would take the query away and 
come back to the member with a definitive answer.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee approved the unaudited Porthcawl Harbour Return 2022-23 at Appendix 
A. 
 

93. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2022-23 
 
This report was introduced by the Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
and its purpose was to update Members on the outturn position for Treasury 
Management activities for 2022-2023, the indicators for the same year and to highlight 
compliance with the Council’s policies and practices.   
  
The key points were as follows: 
 

 The treasury management strategy for 2022-2023 was approved by Council on 
23rd February last year. 

 The report outlines the economic context within which the Treasury Management 
activity took place last year. The issues included: 

 
 The war in Ukraine kept global inflation rates high.  
 The economic backdrop in January to March 2023 was 

characterised by high energy and commodity prices, high inflation 
which has impacted on household budgets and spending. The 
Consumer Price Index rose to 10.1% in the 12 months to March 
2023. 

 Interest rates were increased on a number of occasions during the 
year to try to curb inflation. The bank rate started the year at 
0.75% and increased 8 times during the year to 4.25% as of 31st 
March 2023.  

 

 A summary of Treasury Management activities during last year is shown in 
Appendix A. Table 1 in the report summarises the Council’s position with regard 
to External Debt and Investments. In summary: 
 

 No long-term debt was taken out during the year. 
 No debt was rescheduled during the year as there was no 

financial benefit to the Council to do this. This will be kept under 
review in the current year. 

 There was a small increase in the number of Salix interest free 
loans the Council has.  

 The total external borrowing that the Council is managing was 
£99.93 million at the end of March 2023. 

 The balance of Investments at the year-end was £74.5 million 
which is reduction of £10 million as compared with March 2022. 

 The income being earned via the investments is increasing as the 
base rate has increased. 

Page 7



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 
 The average interest rate increased from 0.43% in 2021-2022 to 

2.55% in 2022-2023. 
 When investing the Council’s monies, due regard is given to 

ensure the security and liquidity of the investments before seeking 
the highest rate of return.  

 
In the discussion that followed, members commented as follows: 
 

 That the report would benefit from a summary of highlights and a few graphs. He 
thought this would assist residents trying to understand the Council’s approach to 
treasury management. In response, the Chief Officer – Finance, Performance 
and Change noted that this was a very technical area and there were certain 
things that have to be reported in particular ways to comply with the requirements 
in this area but there was no reason why summaries could not be prepared. 
 

 Whether there was an opportunity to settle the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
debt related to the secondary school in Maesteg from reserves. In response, the 
Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change suggested she would have to 
look at the details of that particular agreement to see whether or not that Is a 
possibility and also, given the way interest rates are changing, whether there 
were advantages or otherwise to us in repaying it.  

 

 That the training offered by officers to help members understand reports of this 
kind was extremely valuable. In response, the Chairperson noted that officers put 
in a tremendous amount of time for training but if further training was needed it 
could be undertaken. The Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
added that it would be helpful to offer refresher training annually for issues like 
treasury management as members do not receive the reports very frequently.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee: 
 

 noted the annual treasury activities for 2022-23. 

 noted the actual Treasury Management Indicators for 2022-23 against those 
approved in the Treasury Management Strategy 2022-23.  
 

94. ANNUAL CORPORATE FRAUD REPORT 2022-23 
 
The Senior Fraud Investigator introduced the report. The purpose of it was to provide 
members with a summary of the actions that have been undertaken in respect of counter 
fraud and also provides an update on the National Fraud Initiative exercise. 
 
The key points were as follows: 
 

 Section 3 provided some detailed information in respect of our work in 
connection with the National Fraud Initiative.  

 Section 4 detailed the counter fraud and corruption work undertaken and also 
provided detailed information on Council Tax Reduction Fraud investigations to 
include monetary savings identified and the resulting successful sanctions 
obtained to include prosecutions and financial penalties. There was also some 
detail in the section around work on blue badge misuse and any internal 
investigations undertaken by primarily internal audit. 

Page 8



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 

 Annex 1 provided information on the ongoing measures BCBC proposes to take 
over the medium-term to further improve its resilience to fraud, bribery and 
corruption. 

 
In the discussion that followed, a member questioned the Council's attitude towards 
fraud and error. He suggested that it was not taken seriously, was passive, and there 
was not enough focus on it. He suggested a small investment in this area (including 
working with Data Cymru on data mining) could have a net significant benefit financially 
for the Council. 
 
The Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change noted that in some other areas 
they have looked at whether or not there's a business plan to actually invest in this area 
along the lines of an invest to save proposal. She suggested this was something that 
could be taken away and looked at. 
 
The Head of the Regional Internal Audit Service (RIAS) reminded members about the 
National Fraud Initiative, a UK wide exercise that covers over 1200 public sector 
organisations (other Local Authorities, the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), 
NHS & Trusts, Police and Housing Associations etc.) in terms of a data matching 
exercise that helps prevent and detect fraud. Any matches that arose for Bridgend would 
be looked into and taken very seriously. 
 
A member drew attention to three issues: 
 

 the Single Person Discount and the circumstances that might lead to allegations 
of fraud.   

 Council Tax Reduction Fraud, especially the cases not investigated and whether 
they are being flagged for future reference.  

 the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Detection of Fraud and Enforcement) 
(Wales) Regulations 2013, where the fines available are relatively small and 
should be reviewed. 

 
In response to comments about the action plan, the Chief Officer – Finance, 
Performance and Change suggested it could be looked at again, especially around 
targets. She also suggested that officers probably need to put more information in the 
report so that members have a better idea of the work that is going on in the service. 
 
Another member drew attention to contract management and the potential for recovering 
funds. In response, the Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change suggested 
that whilst this was not necessarily fraud, people need to know that the Council would 
take the necessary action, like claiming back money, if somebody has gone outside a 
contract or not performed as required. 
 
Finally, a member suggested, as someone who dealt with the DWP on a daily basis, it 
would be helpful to invite someone from the department to assist with the Committee’s 
understanding of their investigations into suspected fraud.  
 
The Chairperson suggested this was worth pursuing as the information about what 
happens once referrals are made from Bridgend into the DWP system could be helpful.  
 
The Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change suggested she would approach 
the DWP to see if they would be willing to do an informal seminar though she reminded 
members they would not be able to talk about individual cases. She suggested they 
could certainly talk about what their process would be and how they would deal with 
issues. 
 

Page 9



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 
The Chairperson suggested, following the comments by a member about the Council 
Tax Reduction Schemes (Detection of Fraud and Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 
2013, that someone should contact the WLGA and Welsh Government expressing our 
concern at the low threshold of fines, and suggest they should be reviewed.  
 
The Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change suggested she could take that 
forward and contact the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) to see whether 
any discussions are going on with regards to that issue. She suggested that when she 
had a response, members could determine the best way forward. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee noted the Annual Fraud Report 2022- 23, the measures in place, the 
work being undertaken to prevent and detect fraud and error and the update on the 
National Fraud Initiative (NFI). 
 
The Committee requested that the DWP be contacted to invite a representative to attend 
a meeting to outline their approach to dealing with matters of suspected fraud. 
  

95. REGULATORY TRACKER UPDATE 
 
The report was introduced by the Corporate Policy & Public Affairs Manager and its 
purpose was to provide an update to the Governance and Audit Committee on the 
Regulatory Tracker. 
 
The key points were as follows: 
 

 The regulatory tracker has been updated for quarters 3 and 4 of 2022/23. 

 Improvements requested by Governance and Audit Committee (GAC) have been 
completed. 

 Since the previous report to GAC in January 
 

 7 inspections have been added.  
 33 recommendations have been closed. 
 82 recommendations are on the tracker.  
 

 Members are asked to consider how best to improve follow-up mechanisms for 
regulatory reports and reduce the tracker’s size. 

 
In the discussion that followed, members requested that officers remove closed 
recommendations from the tracker and in future to receive only amber and red rated 
recommendations on the next tracker in January 2024 as well as a summary of 
recommendations closed in the previous period.  
 
In addition, they asked that subject overview and scrutiny committees receive the report 
to include blue and green rated recommendations twice yearly so they can scrutinise 
those ratings. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee: 
 

 considered the summary points and detailed regulatory tracker and raised any 
issues of concern for follow-up. 

Page 10



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 

 considered the proposed mechanisms for referring inspections and 
recommendations in paragraph 3.1.  

 considered the options for reducing the tracker’s size in paragraph 3.6. 
 

96. CORPORATE SELF-ASSESSMENT 2022/23 
 
The report was introduced by the Corporate Policy & Public Affairs Manager and its 
purpose was to provide an update on the Council’s second corporate self-assessment 
report and judgements, and to seek comments on the draft report in Appendix 1. 
 
The key points were as follows: 
 

 The report outlined the process and findings of the Council’s self-assessment for 
2022/23. 

 The approach is considerably more embedded in regular quarterly reporting than 
in the previous year. 

 The main differences in the final report from last year’s final report are as follows: 
 

 Challenge sessions took place earlier.  
 Case studies are included.  
 More comprehensive coverage of consultation and engagement 

through the year is included.  
 Annual performance data will be published alongside the self-

assessment.  
 Planned consultation is more comprehensive. 

 

 The self-assessment judgements were as follows: 
 

 Wellbeing Objective One – Good. 
 Wellbeing Objective Two – Adequate. 
 Wellbeing Objective Three – Good. 
 Use of resources – Adequate. 
 Governance – Good. 

 
The Chairperson requested that officers consider options for more regular peer-
assessment or additional internal challenge for performance reports as a whole (as well 
as self-assessment).  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee: 
 

 reviewed and provided recommendations for change to the corporate self-
assessment report 2022/23 at Appendix 1. 

 considered whether the additions to the report since 2021/22 add value to the 
document.  
 

97. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2023-24 
 
This report was introduced by the Group Manager – Chief Accountant.  
 
The Governance and Audit Committee has a number of core functions and 
responsibilities within its remit. 
 

Page 11



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 26 JULY 2023 

 
It receives a number of reports and presentations throughout the year to enable it to 
carry out those core functions and responsibilities effectively and to provide it with 
confidence in the financial governance of the Authority. 
 
To enable the Committee to provide this assurance and to ensure it is covering its range 
of responsibilities, a Forward Work Programme is presented at each meeting, setting out 
the reports to be presented at future meetings, for approval or amendment, as 
necessary. 
 
The updated Forward Work Programme (FWP) for 2023-24 is at Appendix A. 
 
The Chairperson asked for clarification about the current status of the school given an 
opinion of limited assurance in an audit report and discussed at the last meeting. The 
Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change noted that internal audit had returned 
to the school and were in the process of drafting a report that has given the school an 
opinion of reasonable assurance. As such, the school in question would not be 
required to attend a future meeting of the committee.  
 
Further, the Chairperson confirmed that the Governance & Audit Committee’s Annual 
Report would be submitted to the September meeting of the Committee.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee considered and approved the updated Forward Work Programme for 
2023-24. 
 
A draft of the Governance & Audit Committee’s Annual Report will be submitted to the 
September 2023 meeting, and this should be added to the Forward Work Programme 
2023-24. 
  

98. URGENT ITEMS 
 
None 
 
 

Page 12



 

Meeting of: 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 
 

28 SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

Report Title: 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION RECORD 

 

Report Owner / 
Corporate Director: 

 

CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, 
HR AND CORPORATE POLICY 

Responsible 
Officer: 

MARK GALVIN – SENIOR DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES OFFICER - COMMITTEES 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules: 
 

There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure 
rules. 

Executive 
Summary: 

This report seeks to update Members of the Governance 
and Audit Committee on follow-up actions or further 

information requested on reports considered by Members 
and/or requested by Committee, including any other 

related information in relation to previous agenda items. 

 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

  1.1      The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on the Governance 
and Audit Committee Action Record. 

 
2. Background 
 
2.1      An Action Record has been devised to assist the Committee in tracking the decisions 

made by the Committee in the exercise of its functions.  
 
3. Current situation / proposal 

 
 3.1       In order to assist the Governance and Audit Committee in ensuring that decisions 

made by the Committee are actioned and implemented, the Action Record is attached 
at Appendix A. The Action Record will be presented to each meeting of the 
Committee for approval.   

 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh 
Language) 

 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered 
in the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must 
consider the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the 
review of policies, strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there 
will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

 Page 13

Agenda Item 4



5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to 
Corporate Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of 

this report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable 
impacts upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this 
report. 

 

6. Climate Change Implications 
 

6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 

7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this 
report. 

 

8. Financial Implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

 

9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 The Committee is recommended to note the Action Record and provide any comment 

upon this, as appropriate. 
  

Background documents 
 
None. 

Page 14



 
 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

 

 
Number 

 
Date of 

Committee 

 
Item 

 
Lead 

 
Target 
Date 

 
Action 

 
Date for 

action to be 
brought to 

GAC 
 

 
Completed Date 

1.  13 Oct 
2022/ 1 Jun 

23 

Corporate Complaints Chief Officer – Legal 
and Regulatory 
Services, HR and 
Corporate Policy 
 

Nov 23 To prepare and submit a report on Corporate Complaints to GAC 
bi-annually.  
 
The next report will be prepared for the meeting in November 
2023.  
 
The report will include consideration of ways to enrich the data 
set, to include such matters as the location of the complainant, 
under-reporting, and complaints made to Councillors (and noted 
in the referral system).   
 

Nov 23  

2.  26 Jan 23 Treasury Management 
Strategy 2023-24 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance 
and Change 
 

Sep 23 To consider implementing an ethical investment policy following 
discussion with the treasury management advisors.  

 
An ethical investment policy will be considered by GAC in 
September 2023.  
 

Sep 23 Sep 23 

3.  26 Jul 23 Private Finance Initiative – 
Maesteg Secondary School 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance 
and Change 
 

Sep 23 Whether there was an opportunity to settle the Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) debt related to the secondary school in Maesteg 
from reserves. 

Sep 23 Sep 23 

4.  1 Jun 23 Duplicate Payments Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance 
and Change 
 

Sep 23 In response to concerns expressed by Members, to provide an 
update on duplicate payments.  

Sep 23 Sep 23 

5.  1 Jun 23 Audit Recommendations and 
the Council’s Escalation 
Process 

The Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance 
and Change and Head 
of RIAS 
 

Jul 23 The Chairperson asked for clarification about the current status of 
Abercerdin Primary School given an opinion of limited assurance 
in an audit report.  
 
RIAS had returned to the school and were in the process of 
drafting a report that has given the school an opinion of 
reasonable assurance.  
 
The school in question will not be required to attend a future 
meeting of the committee.  
 

Jul 23 Jul 23 

6.  26 Jul 23  Annual Governance 
Statement 2022-23 

Monitoring Officer/ 
Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance 
and Change 

Sep 23 For officers to examine the feasibility of regular reviews of the 
Constitution, linking reviews to the AGM, and ruling regarding 
meeting duration and breaks during meetings.  
 

Sep 23 Sep 23 

P
age 15



 
 

 

 
 

To also discuss with procurement the possibility of committing to 
a green procurement strategy in conjunction with BCBC’s 
decarbonisation targets.  
 

7.  26 Jul 23 Council Tax Reduction 
Schemes (Detection of Fraud 
and Enforcement) (Wales) 
Regulations 2013. 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance 
and Change 

Sep 23 To contact the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) to 
see whether any discussions are going on with regards to the low 
threshold of fines and suggest they should be reviewed. 
 

Sep 23  

8.  26 Jul 23 Annual Report of the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee 
 

Head of RIAS  To present a draft of the Governance and Audit Committee’s 
Annual Report.   

Sep 23 Sep 23 

9.  26 Jul 23 Porthcawl Harbour Return 
2022-23 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance 
and Change 

 To give an update on the extent of the Porthcawl Harbour asset.  
 
To confirm, in respect of the Porthcawl Harbour project, what 
would happen in the event of a surplus.  

Sep 23 Sep 23 

10.  26 July 23 Annual Corporate Fraud 
Report 2022-23  

Department for Work 
and Pensions 

 That members receive a presentation from the Department for 
Work and Pensions (DWP) specifically regarding investigations in 
to suspected fraud.  
  

To be 
confirmed 

 

11.  1 Jun 23 Capital Programme – 
Governance Issues 

The Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance 
and Change/ Head of 
RIAS 
 

Jul 23 To draw up a project brief for RIAS to carry out an audit of 
governance issues around the Capital Programme.  

In Progress  

P
age 16



 

Meeting of: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 28 SEPTEMBER 2023 

Report Title: AUDIT WALES GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
REPORTS 

Report Owner / 
Corporate Director: 

CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE 

Responsible  
Officer: 

DEBORAH EXTON 
DEPUTY HEAD OF FINANCE 

 
 
 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules: 

There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure  
rules.  

 
Executive  
Summary: 

• The Council’s external auditors, Audit Wales, 
undertake a range of financial and performance audit 
work during the financial year.  

• They publish a number of reports in respect of the 
audit work undertaken.   

• Some of the reports are national across all local 
authorities and others are local and specific to 
Bridgend. 

• Audit Wales also presents a quarterly work 
programme and timetable to the Governance and 
Audit Committee to outline work completed, audits 
in progress and those still due to be undertaken.  
 

 

1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to submit to the Committee reports from Audit 

Wales. 
 

2. Background  
 

2.1 Audit Wales undertakes a programme of work during the year to help the Auditor 
General discharge his duties under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004. The 
Auditor General’s functions include auditing accounts and undertaking local 
performance audit work at a broad range of public bodies, alongside conducting 
a programme of national value for money examinations and studies. The Auditor 
General also assesses the extent to which public bodies are complying with the 
sustainable development principle when setting and taking steps to meet their 
well-being objectives.  

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



2.2 Part 2 of the 2004 Act sets out the powers and duties of the Auditor General to 
undertake studies in relation to local government bodies in Wales. The most 
widely used of these provisions is section 41, which requires the Auditor General 
to undertake studies designed to enable him to make recommendations for, 
among other things, improving the value for money in the provision of services. 
 

2.3 In accordance with Section 89 of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) 
Act 2021 the Authority is required to keep under review the extent to which it is 
exercising its functions effectively, using its resources economically, efficiently 
and effectively and ensuring its governance is effective for securing these 
performance requirements.    

 
3. Current situation / proposal  

 
3.1 Audit Wales has produced one report for the Governance and Audit Committee 

to consider. It is: 
 

o The Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable - (Appendix A) -  
under the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act  2021, the Auditor 
General is required to produce a work programme update for each 
financial year for each principal council covering both his functions and 
those of ‘relevant regulators’ (Care Inspectorate Wales  and Estyn). At the 
meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee in July 2021, Audit 
Wales reported that they will provide an updated version of this report to 
the Council on a quarterly basis. Appendix A is an updated position as at 
30th June 2023. 
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh 
Language) 

 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered 
in the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must 
consider the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the 
review of policies, strategies, services and functions. This is an information 
report, therefore it is not necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment 
in the production of this report. It is considered that there will be no significant 
or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to 
Corporate Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of 

this report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable 
impacts upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this 
report. 

6. Climate Change Implications 

6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

Page 18



7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 

7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this 
report. 

8. Financial Implications  
 

8.1  There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 

9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 That the Committee notes the Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee 

Report at Appendix A. 

 

 

Background documents 
 
None 
 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – 
Bridgend County Borough Council 

Quarterly Update: 30 June 2023 

Annual Audit Summary 

Description Timetable Status 

A report summarising completed audit work since the 
last Annual Audit Summary, which was issued in 
November 2021 

27 April 2023  Complete 

Financial Audit work  

Description Scope Timetable Status 

Audit of the 
Council’s 2022-23 
statement of 
accounts 

To confirm whether the statement 
of accounts provide a true and fair 
view. 

Audit Opinion 
by 31 January 
2024.  

Draft Accounts 
received and 
audit work 
ongoing. 

Audit of the 
Council’s 2022-23 
grant returns 

Audit of five claims as required by 
the terms and conditions of the 
grants. 

In line with the 
individual 
deadlines for 
each grant 
claim. 

Audit work now 
complete. 

Audit of the 2022-23 
Returns for 
Porthcawl Harbour 
Authority and 
Coychurch 
Crematorium Joint 
Committee 

To confirm that the returns have 
been completed correctly. 

Audit Opinion 
by 31 January 
2024. 

Work to be 
completed 
alongside audit 
of the Council’s 
2022-23 
statement of 
accounts. 

Page 21

extond
Appendix A



Page 2 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Performance Audit work  

2022-23 
Performance 
audit work  

Scope Timetable Status 

Assurance and 
Risk 
Assessment 

Project to identify the level of audit 
assurance and/or where further audit 
work may be required in future years 
in relation to risks to the Council 
putting in place proper arrangements 
to secure value for money in the use 
of resources and acting in accordance 
with the sustainable development 
principle. 

  

 • Financial position Ongoing 
monitoring of 
financial 
position 

Ongoing 

 • Capital programme management September – 
December 
2023 

Scoped 

 • Use of performance information – 
with a focus on service user 
feedback and outcomes 

February – 
September 
2023 

In progress – 
fieldwork is 
being 
scheduled at 
each council 
between March 
and August 
2023 

Page 22



Page 3 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

2022-23 
Performance 
audit work  

Scope Timetable Status 

Thematic 
Review – 
Unscheduled 
Care 

A cross-sector review focusing on the 
flow of patients out of hospital. This 
review will consider how the Council is 
working with its partners to address 
the risks associated with the provision 
of social care to support hospital 
discharge, as well as prevent hospital 
admission. The work will also consider 
what steps are being taken to provide 
medium to longer-term solutions. 

August 2022 – 
September 
2023 

Fieldwork 
complete, draft 
reports 
scheduled for 
September. 

Thematic review 
– Digital 

A review of councils’ strategic 
approach to digital, and the extent to 
which this has been developed in 
accordance with the sustainable 
development principle; and that it will 
help to secure value for money in the 
use of councils’ resources. 

January – 
September 
2023. 

Drafting  

Local project – 
Review of 
performance 
management 
arrangements 

We will review the Council’s 
performance management 
arrangements and establish how well 
they inform the Council of progress in 
meeting its priorities. 

July to October 
2022 

Complete 

 

Page 23



Page 4 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

2023-24 
Performance audit 
work  

Scope Timetable Status 

Assurance and Risk 
Assessment 

Project to identify the level of audit 
assurance and/or where further 
audit work may be required in future 
years in relation to risks to the 
Council putting in place proper 
arrangements to secure value for 
money in the use of resources and 
acting in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle. 
 
Setting of well-being objectives 

2023-24 Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Not yet started 

Thematic review – 
Financial 
Sustainability 

A review of councils’ financial 
sustainability including a focus on 
the actions, plans and 
arrangements to bridge funding 
gaps and address financial 
pressures over the medium term. 

2023-24 Scoping 

Thematic review – 
commissioning and 
contract 
management 

A review focusing on how councils’ 
arrangements for commissioning, 
and contract management apply 
value for money considerations and 
the sustainable development 
principle. 

2023-24 Scoping 

Local project Highways/Transport – currently 
scoping this piece of work 

2023-24 Scoping 

  

Page 24



Page 5 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Local government national studies planned/in progress. 

Study Scope Timetable Status Fieldwork 
planned at 
Bridgend County 
Borough Council 

Building 
safety 

Review of how 
well local 
authorities are 
delivering their 
responsibilities 
for building 
safety 

September 
2022 – 
August 2023 

Reporting – end of 
July 2023 

Yes – interview 
with nominated 
officer at the 
Council and 
survey. 

Planning for 
sustainable 
development 
– Brownfield 
regeneration 

Review of how 
local 
authorities are 
promoting and 
enabling 
better use of 
vacant non-
domestic 
dwellings and 
brownfield 
sites 

October 
2022 – 
September 
2023 

Reporting – 
September 2023 

Yes – interview 
with nominated 
officer at seven 
councils and 
survey. 

Governance 
of special 
purpose 
authorities – 
National 
Parks 

Review of 
systems and 
effectiveness 
of governance  

November 
2022 – 
September 
2023 

Evidence gathering – 
fieldwork due to be 
completed end of 
June 2023 

No 

Page 25



Page 6 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Study Scope Timetable Status Fieldwork 
planned at 
Bridgend County 
Borough Council 

Corporate 
Joint 
Committees 
(CJCs) 

Assessing 
CJCs’ 
progress in 
developing 
their 
arrangements 
to meet their 
statutory 
obligations 
and the Welsh 
Government’s 
aim of 
strengthening 
regional 
collaboration. 

September 
2022 – 
August 2023 

Draft report has been 
issued to the four 
CJCs. Letters to the 
four individual CJCs 
will also be issued. 
Updated summary 
report due to be 
published August. 

Yes – We 
explored the 
Council’s 
perspective via 
our routine liaison 
meetings.  
Fieldwork included 
interviews with the 
chief executive, 
director of finance 
and chair of each 
of the four CJCs. 

  

Page 26



Page 7 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Estyn  

Our link inspectors are continuing to work with Torfaen as part of our follow-up process for an authority 
causing significant concern. Wrexham local authority is still in a causing concern category, and we will 
convene a progress conference in July to evaluate progress against the recommendations from the 
core inspection. We also undertook a focused link work activity in Powys in May to consider aspects of 
their work on school improvement, the transformation agenda and financial management in schools. 
We will inspect Gwynedd in the week beginning 26 June and Carmarthenshire in the week beginning 
10 July. 

Field work being carried out across local authorities during the summer term includes a focus on how 
well local authorities are supporting the educational needs of asylum seekers and refugees. This work 
will be included in HMCI’s annual report. Our aim is to describe, acknowledge, and evaluate the 
experiences of these groups as they engage with education and training in Wales. 

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) 

CIW planned 
work 2022-23 

Scope Timetable Status 

Programme 
2022-23 

We have published our updated Code 
of Practice for our local authority 
inspection activity 
 
How we inspect local authority services 
and CAFCASS Cymru 

May 2023 Published 

Joint work We are finalising our thematic reviews 
programme of work for 2023-2026. 
Areas for consideration include, adult 
safeguarding, carers, CLDT and 
CAMHS.  

Current In progress 

 We continue to work with partners, 
sharing information and intelligence 
including completing joint reviews.  

Current 
 

In progress 
 

Page 27

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.careinspectorate.wales/230510-we-have-published-our-updated-code-practice-our-local-authority-inspection-activity__;!!A_jZAm9j2ts!8YWxNbLJrK_7asJTLQaQyaRVTpoS52uynsx_uDdx_QT8FNpK7rfaEM8sP5hzEbs21cFeAe6491LWhcNz21wX4sYDmjJLN6ofhdpv$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.careinspectorate.wales/230510-we-have-published-our-updated-code-practice-our-local-authority-inspection-activity__;!!A_jZAm9j2ts!8YWxNbLJrK_7asJTLQaQyaRVTpoS52uynsx_uDdx_QT8FNpK7rfaEM8sP5hzEbs21cFeAe6491LWhcNz21wX4sYDmjJLN6ofhdpv$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.careinspectorate.wales/230510-we-have-published-our-updated-code-practice-our-local-authority-inspection-activity__;!!A_jZAm9j2ts!8YWxNbLJrK_7asJTLQaQyaRVTpoS52uynsx_uDdx_QT8FNpK7rfaEM8sP5hzEbs21cFeAe6491LWhcNz21wX4sYDmjJLN6ofhdpv$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.careinspectorate.wales/how-we-inspect-local-authority-social-services-and-cafcass-cymru__;!!A_jZAm9j2ts!8YWxNbLJrK_7asJTLQaQyaRVTpoS52uynsx_uDdx_QT8FNpK7rfaEM8sP5hzEbs21cFeAe6491LWhcNz21wX4sYDmjJLN5KUMt4t$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.careinspectorate.wales/how-we-inspect-local-authority-social-services-and-cafcass-cymru__;!!A_jZAm9j2ts!8YWxNbLJrK_7asJTLQaQyaRVTpoS52uynsx_uDdx_QT8FNpK7rfaEM8sP5hzEbs21cFeAe6491LWhcNz21wX4sYDmjJLN5KUMt4t$


Page 8 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

CIW planned 
work 2022-23 

Scope Timetable Status 

 We are working in collaboration with 
HIW for a national review of the stroke 
pathway. A national report will be 
published early summer.  

Current 
 

In progress 
 

 We continue to work in collaboration 
with HIW in conducting CMHT 
inspections. 

Current 
 

In progress 
 

 CIW is working with partners to 
complete a rapid review. The 
overarching objective of the rapid 
review is to determine to what extent 
the current structures and processes in 
Wales ensure children who are in need 
of care, support and protection are 
appropriately placed on, and removed 
from, the Child Protection Register, 
when sufficient evidence indicates it is 
safe to do so. This is a collaborative 
review. 

Interim 
findings – 
Published 22 
June 2023 
 
National 
report – 
September 
2023 

In progress 

Deprivation of 
Liberty 
Safeguards 
Annual 
Monitoring 
Report for 
Health and 
Social Care 
2022-23 

The 2020-21 report was published on 7 
February 2021. 
 
The 2021-2022 report is underway. 

Published 
 
 
To be 
confirmed 

Published 
 
 
Preparing 

Page 28

https://www.careinspectorate.wales/national-review-use-deprivation-liberty-safeguards-dols-wales-2021-22


Page 9 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

CIW planned 
work 2022-23 

Scope Timetable Status 

National review 
of Care 
Planning for 
children and 
young people 
subject to the 
Public Law 
Outline pre-
proceedings 

Purpose of the review 
To provide external scrutiny, assurance 
and to promote improvement regarding 
the quality of practice in relation to the 
care planning for children and young 
people subject to the public law outline 
pre-proceedings. 
To consider the extent to which 
practice has progressed since the 
publication of both the CIW ‘National 
Review of care planning for children 
and young people subject to public law 
outline pre-proceedings’ and the 
publication of the PLO working group 
report 2021 including best practice 
guidance. 

National 
report 
publication 
October 
2023 

In progress 

Joint 
Inspection 
Child 
Protection 
Arrangements 
(JICPA) 

Cross-inspectorate approach. Areas to 
be determined. We will complete a 
further four multi-agency joint 
inspections in total. Each local authority 
will have a published letter post 
inspection.  
We will publish a national report in late 
spring 2023. 

April 2023 – 
April 2024  

Delivery 

 
  

Page 29



Page 10 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Audit Wales national reports and other outputs published 
since June 2022 

Report title Publication date and 
link to report  

Maximising EU funding – the Structural Funds Programme and the Rural 
Development Programme 

June 2023 

Digital inclusion in Wales (including key questions for public bodies) March 2023 

Orthopaedic Services in Wales – Tackling the Waiting List Backlog March 2023 

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board – Review of Board 
Effectiveness 

February 2023 

Welsh Government purchase of Gilestone Farm January 2023 

Together we can – Community resilience and self-reliance January 2023 

A Picture of Flood Risk Management December 2022 

‘A missed opportunity’ – Social Enterprises December 2022 

Poverty Data Tool November 2022 

‘Time for change’ – Poverty in Wales November 2022 

Learning from cyber-attacks October 2022 
(distributed privately to 
audited bodies) 

Page 30

https://www.audit.wales/publication/maximising-eu-funding-structural-funds-programme-and-rural-development-programme
https://www.audit.wales/publication/digital-inclusion-wales
https://www.audit.wales/publication/orthopaedic-services-wales-tackling-waiting-list-backlog
https://www.audit.wales/publication/betsi-cadwaladr-university-health-board-review-board-effectiveness
https://www.audit.wales/publication/welsh-government-purchase-gilestone-farm
https://www.audit.wales/publication/together-we-can-community-resilience-and-self-reliance
https://www.audit.wales/publication/picture-flood-risk-management
https://www.audit.wales/publication/missed-opportunity-social-enterprises
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNDg4Y2M3NjctYWUyMS00NTQ2LWJhNmUtZmVjMmZhOGU2YjUyIiwidCI6ImRmZDY5MmYwLTE2YmYtNDQ0OS04OGUzLWU3NzM1ZGZjY2ZlOCIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection0d8d49278965a2510172
https://www.audit.wales/publication/time-change-poverty-wales


Page 11 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Report title Publication date and 
link to report  

National Fraud Initiative 2020-21 October 2022 

COVID-19 business support in 2020-21 – Memorandum for the Public 
Accounts and Public Administration Committee 

October 2022 

Payment to the Welsh Government’s Former Permanent Secretary on 
Termination of Employment 

September 2022 

Equality Impact Assessments: More than a Tick Box Exercise? September 2022 

Welsh Government – setting of well-being objectives September 2022 

Welsh Government workforce planning and management September 2022 

NHS Wales Finances Data Tool – up to March 2022 August 2022 

Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero Carbon by 2030: Evidence Report August 2022 

Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero Carbon by 2030 July 2022 

Sustainable Tourism in Wales’ National Parks July 2022 

Third Sector COVID-19 Response Fund – Memorandum for the Public 
Accounts and Public Administration Committee 

July 2022 

The Welsh Community Care Information System – update and data tool July 2022 

Page 31

https://www.audit.wales/cyhoeddiad/national-fraud-initiative-2020-21
https://www.audit.wales/publication/covid-19-business-support-2020-21
https://www.audit.wales/publication/payment-welsh-governments-former-permanent-secretary-termination-employment
https://www.audit.wales/news/making-equality-impact-assessments-more-just-tick-box-exercise
https://www.audit.wales/publication/setting-well-being-objectives-welsh-government
https://www.audit.wales/cyhoeddiad/welsh-government-workforce-planning-and-management
https://www.audit.wales/publication/nhs-wales-finances-data-tool-march-2022
https://www.audit.wales/publication/public-sector-readiness-net-zero-carbon-2030-evidence-report
https://www.audit.wales/publication/public-sector-readiness-net-zero-carbon-2030
https://www.audit.wales/publication/sustainable-tourism-wales-national-parks
https://www.audit.wales/publication/third-sector-covid-19-response-fund-memorandum
https://www.audit.wales/publication/welsh-community-care-information-system-update


Page 12 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Audit Wales national reports and other outputs (work in 
progress/planned)1, 2 

Title Indicative publication date  

Local Government Financial Sustainability Data 
tool update 

July 2023 

NHS finances data tool – to 31 March 2023 July/August 2023 

Springing Forward: Managing assets and 
workforce in local government 

July/August 2023 

Covering teachers’ absence – follow-up August 2023 

NHS quality governance August/September 2023 

NHS workforce planning (data briefing) August/September 2023 

Net zero (pan UK overview)  September 2023 

Ukrainian refugee services October/November 2023 

 
1 We will continue to keep our plans under constant review, taking account of the evolving 
external environment, our audit priorities, the context of our own resourcing and the 
capacity of audited bodies to engage with us. Follow up work could also lead to other 
outputs, as may other local audit work where we consider there is merit in a national 
summary output of some kind. For example, we have been tracking developments with 
completion of the A465 section 2 road improvement project following our interim findings 
report in February 2020.  
2 We have also published to our website a paper – Our work programme for 2023-2026 –
that provides additional detail about our national work (including local thematic reviews). 
In addition to new work that we will be taking forward in 2023-24, the paper includes 
details about indicative topics for work to start in 2024-24 or 2025-26. 

Page 32

https://www.audit.wales/publication/a465-section-2-interim-findings
https://www.audit.wales/publication/a465-section-2-interim-findings
https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/2023-05/our-work-programme-23.pdf


Page 13 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Title Indicative publication date  

Local government digital strategy review – 
national summary  

October 2023 

Local government use of performance 
information, outcomes and service user 
perspective – national summary 

October 2023 

Affordable housing January/February 2024 

Local government capital programme 
management – national summary 

To be confirmed 

Active travel To be confirmed 

Cancer services To be confirmed 

Capital planning and programme management To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

Challenges for the cultural sector To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

Homelessness To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

Addressing biodiversity decline (pan-public sector 
and at Natural Resources Wales) 

To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

Rebalancing care and support To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

Tackling NHS waiting lists To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

Page 33



Page 14 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Title Indicative publication date  

Access to education for children with Additional 
Learning Needs 

To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

Further and higher education funding and 
oversight – Commission for Tertiary Education 
and Research 

To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

Governance of Fire and Rescue Authorities To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

The senior public service To be confirmed (starting in 2023-24) 

  

Page 34



Page 15 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Good Practice Exchange events and resources  

Title Link to resource   

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language: Inspired by 
the Football Association of Wales journey over the past decade, this 
event will examine and discuss how going beyond expectations creates 
an inclusive and positive attitude that becomes self-fulfilling. 
Working in partnership with the Future Generations Commissioner and 
the Welsh Language Commissioner, this event will assist and inspire 
public bodies, and the third sector to embrace the cultural diversity of 
modern Wales and work beyond compliance and into excellence. 

All resources are now 
available on our 
website.  
Blog 
 

Together we can – creating the conditions to empower our 
communities to thrive: This shared learning event will bring people 
together from across public services to share ideas, learning and 
knowledge. We will share the findings of our reports on social enterprises 
and community resilience, including our recommendations going forward. 

20 June 2023 – 10:00 
– 12:00 – Online.  
The recording will be 
available on our 
website in one to two 
weeks. 

Podcast: Poverty and Community Resilience Our latest podcast 
follows our recent reports and events on poverty, social enterprises, and 
community resilience. 

Podcast 

Digital Strategy: The Covid pandemic has demonstrated the importance 
of digital in delivering modern services at pace. We have seen digital 
acting as a major catalyst in adapting to the challenges we have faced. 
Public services need to continue with this agile and responsive mind set 
as the norm and not the exception. This event will help equip public 
services with the practical tools and knowledge they need to successfully 
implement a Digital Strategy within their organisations. 

21 September 09:00 – 
13:00 – Cardiff – To 
register for Cardiff 
27 September 09:00 – 
13:00 – North Wales – 
To register for North 
Wales 

  

Page 35

https://audit.wales/our-work/good-practice/wales-vibrant-culture-and-thriving-welsh-language
https://audit.wales/blog/gpx/2023/6/6/wales-vibrant-culture-and-thriving-welsh-language-events-may-2023
https://audit.wales/news/podcast-poverty-and-community-resilience
https://audit.wales/events/digital-strategy-cardiff
https://audit.wales/events/digital-strategy-north-wales
https://audit.wales/events/digital-strategy-north-wales


Page 16 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Recent Audit Wales blogs 

Title Publication date  

Helping people to help themselves 15 February 2023 

A perfect storm – the cost of living crisis and domestic abuse 21 November 2022 

Tackling poverty means tackling poverty data 11 November 2022 

Cost of living and putting away the bayonet 21 September 2022 

Heat is on to tackle Climate Change 18 August 2022 

Direct Payments in Wales 15 June 2022 

Unscheduled Care in Wales – a system under real pressure 21 April 2022 

Skills Competition Wales 18 February 2022 

Cyber resilience – one year on 9 February 2022 

Helping to tell the story through numbers  
(Local government financial sustainability data tool) 

3 February 2022 

Call for clearer information on climate change spending 2 February 2022 

Actions speak louder than words  
(Building social resilience and self-reliance in citizens and communities) 

14 January 2022 

 

Page 36

https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2023/2/15/helping-people-help-themselves-community-resilience-and-self-reliance
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/11/21/perfect-storm-cost-living-crisis-and-domestic-abuse
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/11/11/tackling-poverty-means-tackling-poverty-data
https://audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/9/21/cost-living-and-putting-away-bayonet-0
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/8/18/heat-tackle-climate-change
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/6/15/direct-payments-wales
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/4/21/unscheduled-care-wales-system-under-real-pressure
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/18/skills-competition-wales
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/9/cyber-resilience-one-year
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/3/helping-tell-story-through-numbers
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/2/call-clearer-information-climate-change-spending
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/1/14/actions-speak-louder-words


 

 
Meeting of:  

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date of Meeting:  
 

28 SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

 
Report Title:  

 
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
 

Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE & CHANGE 

Responsible 
Officer:  

NIGEL SMITH 
GROUP MANAGER – CHIEF ACCOUNTANT 

 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

The Code of Corporate Governance forms part of the policy 
framework 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

 The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance has 
been revised in line with the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)’s ‘Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework’ 
(2016). 

 The updated Code includes actions that demonstrate 
good governance and evidence that supports those 
actions. 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to present to the Governance and Audit Committee for 

approval, the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance as at Appendix A. 
 

2. Background  
 
2.1 Regulation 5 (2) of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 requires an 

authority to undertake, as part of its arrangements for corporate governance, an 
annual review of governance and report on internal control.  

 
2.2  In 2016, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) published 

‘Delivering good governance in Local Government: Framework’, which positions the 
attainment of sustainable economic, social and environmental outcomes as a key 
focus of governance processes and structures.  The CIPFA associated guidance 
notes considered the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and 
embedded the five ways of working into the CIPFA Framework. 

 
2.3 The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance was updated and approved by Cabinet 

on 7 February 2023. A function of the Governance and Audit Committee is to review 
and approve the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance and as such, this report is 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 

to ensure that this function is fulflled.  Any recommendations of the Committee will be 
considered and the Code amended as necessary, and resubmitted to the Committee 
for approval. 
 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 The updated Code of Corporate Governance includes actions that demonstrate good 

governance and evidence that supports those actions at sections 6.4 and 6.5 of 
Appendix A. 

 
3.2 The Code of Corporate Governance is based on the following seven core principles 

as set out in the CIPFA Framework: 
 
 

Core 
Principle 

Description 

A Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values, and respecting the rule of law. 

B Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement. 

C Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits. 

D Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes. 

E Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it. 

F Managing risks and performance through robust internal control 
and strong public financial management. 

G Implementing good practice in transparency, reporting, and audit 
to deliver effective accountability. 

 
 Below the core principles there are 21 sub-principles and, to achieve good 

governance, the Council should be able to demonstrate that its governance structures 
comply with the core and sub-principles contained in the Framework.  Details of the 
sub-principles are set out in Appendix A at paragraph 6.4. To demonstrate the 
Council’s good governance, each Core and sub-principle has been identified, with 
actions and evidence to support those actions identified. 

 
3.3 The updated Code of Corporate Governance at Appendix A has been reviewed by 

Corporate Management Board and approved by Cabinet. 
 

 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 

Page 38



 

preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales, with 

5 ways of working to guide how public services should work to deliver for people.  The 
well-being objectives are designed to complement each other and are part of an 
integrated way of working to improve well-being for the people of Bridgend.  It is 
considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon the 
achievement of the well-being goals or objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications as a result of this report. 

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no Safeguarding or Corporate Parent implications as a result of this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee considers and 

approves the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
Background documents 
 
None 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH 
COUNCIL 

 
 

CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Appendix A 

Page 41



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 2 | 33 

 

 
CONTENTS 

 
 

 
     

Section 
 

 Page 

1 
 

Introduction 3 

2 
 

What is Corporate Governance?  3 

3 
 

Why adopt a Code of Corporate Governance? 3 

4 
 

Why do we need a Code of Corporate Governance? 4 

5 
 

The Corporate Governance Principles as adopted in 
Bridgend 

5 

6 
 
 

The Corporate Governance Principles and the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

6 

7 
 

Monitoring and Review 31 

8 
 

The Annual Governance Statement 31 

 Glossary 
 

33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 42



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 3 | 33 

 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council is committed to the principles of good corporate governance and 

recognises it is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted within 
the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  It 
has a duty to make proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, 
secure continuous improvement in the way its functions are discharged and 
have robust arrangements in place for the management of risk.  The 
development, adoption and continued implementation and monitoring of a 
Code of Corporate Governance confirms this commitment. 

 
1.2 Good governance is about doing the right things, in the right way, for the right 

people in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner.  
 
1.3 This Code describes the Council’s understanding of corporate governance, 

and outlines the framework it has put in place to ensure that these 
arrangements are effective. The Code reflects a joint commitment by 
Members and senior managers to the principles it contains. This helps to 
ensure that the principles of corporate governance are not only fully 
embedded and cascaded throughout the Authority, but that they have the 
support of the Council, the Chief Executive and the Corporate Management 
Board.  

 
2. What is Corporate Governance? 
 
2.1 The Council has a key role in governing and leading our community.  Effective 

local government relies on public confidence in Elected Members and Council 
Officers. 

 
2.2 Corporate governance is a phrase used to describe how organisations direct 

and control what they do.  Effective systems of corporate governance provide 
confidence in public services. For local authorities this also includes how a 
council relates to the communities that it serves.  Good corporate governance 
requires local authorities to carry out their services in a way that demonstrates 
accountability, openness and honesty. 

 
3. Why adopt a Code of Corporate Governance? 
 
3.1 Adopting a Code of Corporate Governance is another way in which the 

Council shows its recognition of the fact that effective local government relies 
upon establishing and maintaining the confidence of local people in both 
elected members and Council officials. Good corporate governance 
underpins credibility and confidence in the leadership and forms the 
foundation from which all Council services are provided.  

 
3.2 Adopting, monitoring and complying with a Code of Corporate Governance 

helps enhance the Council’s legitimacy and acknowledges the trust placed in 
the Council by local people. 

Page 43



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 4 | 33 

 

3.3 Strong, transparent and responsive governance enables the Council to put 
citizens first by pursuing its aims and priorities effectively, and by 
underpinning them with appropriate mechanisms for managing performance 
and risk.  In order to maintain citizens’ confidence, these mechanisms must 
not only be sound, but also be seen to be sound. 

 
3.4 Corporate governance comprises the framework within which the Council 

manages its business; this includes the Council’s constitution and the various 
procedure rules, codes and protocols contained therein. It also includes the 
systems and processes, and the culture and values by which the activities of 
the Council are directed and controlled, and how it accounts to and engages 
with its citizens. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its 
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the 
delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.  

 
3.5 Overall, adopting and committing to this Code of Corporate Governance 

provides a basis for a Council wide commitment to the way in which it intends 
fulfilling its role in leading and representing the community, providing 
opportunities for all and ensuring that there is a strong customer focus 
underpinning everything that the Council does. 

 
4. Why do we need a Code of Corporate Governance? 

 
4.1 Corporate governance is important because it supports: 

 

 Provision of high quality public services 
 

Within the UK, governance weaknesses have sometimes led to significant 
failures in public services. High performing organisations on the other hand, 
generally, have effective governance arrangements. 
 

 Raising public trust 
 
The public’s trust is increased when they perceive the quality of services that 
they and their families experience to be sound and when organisations are 
seen to be open and honest in communicating their performance and 
learning from their mistakes. 

4.2 The Code of Corporate Governance is based upon the “Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Framework” (CIPFA/SOLACE, 2016).  
The Framework positions the attainment of sustainable economic, societal, 
and environmental outcomes as a key focus of governance processes and 
structures.  Outcomes give the role of local government its meaning and 
importance, and it is fitting that they have this central role in the sector’s 
governance.  Furthermore, the focus on sustainability and the links between 
governance and public financial management are crucial – local authorities 
must recognise the need to focus on the long term as required by the Well-
being of Future Generations Act.  Local authorities have responsibilities to 
more than their current electors as they must take account of the impact of 
current decisions and actions on future generations. 

Page 44



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 5 | 33 

 

4.3 The Framework defines the principles that should underpin the governance 
of each local government organisation. It provides a structure to help 
individual authorities with their approach to governance. Whatever forms of 
arrangements are in place, authorities should therefore test their governance 
structures and partnerships against the principles contained in the Framework 
by:  

 
 reviewing existing governance arrangements;  
 developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, including 

arrangements for ensuring ongoing effectiveness;  
 reporting publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis and 

on how they have monitored the effectiveness of their governance 
arrangements in the year and on planned changes.  

5. The Corporate Governance Principles as adopted in Bridgend 
 
5.1 The Framework is based on the following seven Core Principles: 
 

Core 
Principle 

Description 

A Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values, and respecting the rule of law. 

B Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement. 

C Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits. 

D Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes. 

E Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it. 

F Managing risks and performance through robust internal control 
and strong public financial management. 

G Implementing good practice in transparency, reporting, and audit 
to deliver effective accountability. 

 
5.2 There are also a number of sub-principles below the seven core principles. 

To achieve good governance, each local authority should be able to 
demonstrate that its governance structures comply with the core and sub-
principles contained in the Framework. It should therefore develop and 
maintain a local code of governance/governance arrangements reflecting the 
principles set out. It is also crucial that the Framework is applied in a way that 
demonstrates the spirit and ethos of good governance which cannot be 
achieved by rules and procedures alone. Shared values that are integrated 

Page 45



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 6 | 33 

 

into the culture of an organisation, and are reflected in behaviour and policy, 
are hallmarks of good governance. 

 
6. The Corporate Governance Principles and the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
6.1 The Act requires public bodies covered by the Act, including local 

government, to consider the longer term in making their decisions and to work 
collaboratively with other public bodies to improve well-being in Wales. The 
Act sets out seven well-being goals for public bodies and requires them to act 
in a sustainable way. It also sets out five ways of working that public bodies 
are required to take into account when applying the sustainable development 
principle. 

 
6.2   The Act is central to the Welsh Government’s long-term policy for the public 

services and its themes tie in with the Delivering Governance in Local 
Government: Framework (CIPFA/SOLACE, 2016). The Auditor General for 
Wales has set out a diagram (below) which brings together the International 
Framework with the requirements of the 2015 Act.   

 

 
Source: CIPFA Delivering Good Governance Guidance Notes 2016 

 
6.3 The diagram shows sustainable development as all encompassing. The core 

behaviours of: 

Page 46



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 7 | 33 

 

 behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 
values and respecting the rule of law  

 ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement  

 need to be applied to the five ways of working. The five ways of working 
(underpinned by the core behaviours) have to be at the heart of delivering 
outcomes, which in turn should ensure effective use of resources as public 
bodies maximise their contribution to the economic, social, environmental and 
cultural well-being of Wales. 

 
6.4 CIPFA’s Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 

(2016 Edition) identifies the Core Principles A-G as set out in paragraph 5.1 
and the Sub-Principles that underpin these. 

 

 
6.5 In demonstrating good governance the Council will meet the requirements of 

the core and sub-principles as set out below. 
 
 
 

A B C D E F G

Behaving with 
integrity

Openness Defining 
outcomes

Determining 
interventions

Developing the 
entity's 
capacity

Managing risk Implementing 
good practice 

in 
transparency

Demonstrating 
strong 

commitment 
to ethical 

values

Engaging 
comprehensiv

ely with 
institutional 
stakeholders

Sustainable 
economic, 
social and 

environmental 
benefits

Planning 
interventions

Developing the 
capability of 
the entity's 

leadership and 
other 

individuals

Managing 
performance

Implementing 
good practices 

in reporting

Respecting the 
rule of law

Engaging with 
individual 

citizens and 
service users 

effectively

Optimising 
achievement 
of intended 
outcomes

Robust 
internal 
control

Assurance and 
effective 

accountability

Managing data

Strong public 
finanical 

management

Delivering good governance

Page 47



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 8 | 33 

 

Core Principle A Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule 
of law 

 
Sub Principle Actions that Demonstrate Good Governance Evidence that supports the Actions 
Behaving with 

integrity 
Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity 
and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is 
visibly and consistently demonstrated thereby 
protecting the reputation of the organisation 

Council’s values – Fair, Ambitious, Citizen- 
focussed, Efficient 
Codes of Conduct for both Members and Oficers 
Regulatory Committees 
Modern.gov paperless meeting app with In-App 
voting, and system of publishing reports and 
decisions in open and transparent manner 
Register of Members’ Interests 

Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific 
standard operating principles or values for the 
organisation and its staff and that they are 
communicated and understood.  These should build on 
the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles) 

Council’s Constitution, including procedure rules 
Contract Procedure Rules 
Financial Procedure Rules 
 

Leading by example and using the above standard 
operating principles or values as a framework for 
decision making and other actions 

Employee Code of Conduct 
Member Code of Conduct 
 

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 
standard operating principles or values through 
appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed 
on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 
effectively 

Council’s Constitution 
 

 
Demonstrating 

strong 
Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the 
organisation’s ethical standards and performance 

Council’s Vision & values 
Standards Committee 

P
age 48



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 9 | 33 

 

commitment to 
ethical values 

Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values 
and ensuring they permeate all aspects of the 
organisation’s culture and operation 

Members Register of Interests 
Declaration of Members’ Interests at each 
meeting 
Resolution Policy 

Developing and maintaining robust policies and 
procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical 
values 

Members Code of Conduct 
Employee Code of Conduct 
Whistleblowing Policy 
Equality Impact Assessment processes 

Ensuring that external providers of services on behalf of 
the organisation are required to act with integrity and in 
compliance with ethical standards expected by the 
organisation 

Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy 

 
Respecting the 

rule of law 
Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong 
commitment to the rule of law as well as adhering to 
relevant laws and regulations 

Anti- Fraud and Bribery Policy 
Anti Money Laundering Policy 
Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
Financial Procedure Rules 
Contract Procedure Rules 
Whistleblowing Policy 
Annual Corporate Fraud Report 
Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy 

Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory 
officers, other key post holders, and members, are able 
to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with 
legislative and regulatory requirements 

Council’s Constitution sets out roles of key officers 
and Members 
Scheme of Delegation for decision making 
Observation of all legislative requirements 

Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available 
for the benefit of citizens, communities and other 
stakeholders 

Overview & Scrutiny Committees 
Governance & Audit Committee 
Standards Committee 

Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions 
effectively 

Role of Monitoring Officer 
Whistleblowing Policy 

P
age 49



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 10 | 33 

 

Referrals to Ombudsman and appropriate 
resolutions 

Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with 
effectively 

Anti- Fraud and Corruption Policy 
Anti-Bribery Policy 
Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
Whistleblowing Policy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 50



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 11 | 33 

 

Core Principle B Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
 

Sub Principle Actions that Demonstrate Good Governance Evidence that supports the Actions 
Openness Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, 

documenting and communicating the organisation’s 
commitment to openness 

Publication of policies, plans, meeting Agenda’s, 
Minutes and Webcasts 
Publishing decisions and updates via the 
Council’s social media accounts 
 

Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, 
resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes.  The 
presumption is for openness.  If that is not the case, a 
justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision 
confidential should be provided 

Holding meetings in public unless there is a good 
reason not to for confidentiality 
Annual Statement of Accounts 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
assessments 
Standard report templates 

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 
both public records and explanations to stakeholders 
and being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 
considerations used.  In due course, ensuring that the 
impact and consequences of those decisions are clear 

Overview & Scrutiny Committees 
Standard Report templates 
Publication of minutes, decisions and reasons 

Using formal and informal consultation and engagement 
to determine the most appropriate and effective 
interventions/courses of action 

Council website 
Council publications 
Citizen’s Panel 
Shaping Bridgend’s Future consultation 
Forward Work Programmes 
Communications, Marketing & Engagement 
Strategy 

 

P
age 51



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 12 | 33 

 

Engaging 
comprehensively 
with institutional 

stakeholders 

Effectively engage with institutional stakeholders to 
ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended 
outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so 
that outcomes are achieved successfully and 
sustainably 

Town and Community Councils 
Other local authorities 
Engaging with stakeholders including: 
Lead Local Flood Authorities 
Environment Agency 
Highways Authorities 
Local Community Groups and forums 
Emergency Services 

Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for 
resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes 
achieved more effectively 

Public Service Board Well-being Plan 2018-23 in 
place 
Regional Partnership Boards 
Joint Committees 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 
S33 NHS Wales Act pooled fund arrangements – 
Integrated Community Equipment; Integrated 
Community Support Services; Care Home 
Accommodation 
Bridgend Association of Voluntary Organisations 
Valleys to Coast 

Ensuring that partnerships are based on: 
- trust 
- a shared commitment to change 
- a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among 

partners 

and that the added value of partnership working is 
explicit 

Setting Terms of Reference 
Joint Committee meetings 
Agreeing voting rights at Joint Committees – 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal as an example 

 
Engaging with 

individual citizens 
Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the 
organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve 
communities, individual citizens, service users and other 

Citizens Panel 

P
age 52



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 13 | 33 

 

and service users 
effectively 

stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision 
is contributing towards the achievement of intended 
outcomes 
Ensuring that communication methods are effective and 
that members and officers are clear about their roles 
with regard to community engagement 

Communications, Marketing and Engagement 
Strategy 
Council’s website 
Talktous 
 

Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and 
experiences of communities, citizens, service users and 
organisations of different backgrounds including 
reference for future needs 

Council’s website, Facebook & Twitter accounts 
Talktous 

Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order 
to demonstrate how views have been taken into account 

Feedback and publication of consultation 
outcomes, including via social media – such as 
budget consultations.  Communications, 
Marketing and Engagement Strategy in place.  
The Council has made a commitment to endorse 
the National Principles for Public Engagement in 
Wales and has an authority-wide consultation and 
engagement toolkit to ensure engagement is 
consistent, robust and effective. 
Requirements of Local Government and Elections 
(Wales) Act to carry out a self-assessment of how 
the Council is meeting its performance 
requirements, and to publish a report setting out 
the conclusions of this every year. 

Balance feedback from more active stakeholder groups 
with other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity 

Consultations shared with Bridgend Community 
Cohesion and Equalities Forum to ensure different 
stakeholder groups are included. 

P
age 53



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 14 | 33 

 

Taking account of the impact of decisions on future 
generations of tax payers and service users 

Requirement to assess decisions under Well-
being of Future Generations Act (Wales) in key 
decisions of Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 54



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 15 | 33 

 

Core Principle C Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 
 

Sub Principle Actions that Demonstrate Good Governance Evidence that supports the Actions 
Defining 

outcomes 
Having a clear vision, which is an agreed formal 
statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended 
outcomes containing appropriate performance 
indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation’s 
overall strategy, planning and other decisions 

Council’s Corporate Plan 
Annual Statement of Accounts 
Directorate Business Plans 

Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 
stakeholders including citizens and service users.  It 
could be immediately or over the course of a year or 
longer 

Directorate Business Plans 
Corporate Plan 
Annual Self-Assessment of the Council’s 
Performance 

Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis 
within the resources that will be available 

Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Council’s Annual Budget Book 
Corporate Performance Assessment 
Annual Self-Assessment of the Council’s 
Performance 

Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of 
outcomes 

Corporate Risk Register 
Governance & Audit Committee 

Managing service users’ expectations effectively with 
regard to determining priorities and making the best use 
of the resources available 

Budget Consultation 
Council’s Corporate Plan 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and current year 
Budget Book 

 
Sustainable 

economic, social 
and 

environmental 
benefits 

Considering and balancing the combined economic, 
social and environmental impact of policies and plans 
when taking decisions about service provision 

Equality Impact Assessments for all key decisions 
Equality Impact Assessment consideration 
required on all Council reports 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
consideration required on all key decisions/reports 

P
age 55



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 16 | 33 

 

Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision 
making, taking account of risk and acting transparently 
where there are potential conflicts between the 
organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term 
factors such as the political cycle or financial constraints 

Finance, Legal, Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act, Environmental Impact Assessment 
and Socia-economic duty all considered in 
decision making process and decision reports. 

Determining the wider public interest associated with 
balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 
various economic, social and environmental benefits, 
through consultation where possible, in order to ensure 
appropriate trade-offs 

Environmental Impact Assessments 

Ensuring fair access to services Strategic Equality Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 17 | 33 

 

Core Principle D Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 
 

Sub Principle Actions that Demonstrate Good Governance Evidence that supports the Actions 
Determining 
interventions 

Ensuring decision makers receive objective and 
rigorous analysis of a variety of options indicating how 
intended outcomes would be achieved and associated 
risks.  Therefore ensuring best value is achieved 
however services are provided 

Reporting templates in use to ensure all 
considerations taken into account 
All reports require legal and financial comment 
and approval 

Considering feedback from citizens and service users 
when making decisions about service improvements or 
where services are no longer required in order to 
prioritise competing demands within limited resources 
available including people, skills, land and assets and 
bearing in mind future impacts 

Citizens Panel 
Complaints process 
Budget and other consultation outcomes 

 
Planning 

interventions 
Establishing and implementing robust planning and 
control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, 
priorities and targets 

Corporate Plan 
Corporate Performance Assessment process 
Local Development Plan 
Directorate, Service and Team Business Plans 
Digital Transformation Plan 
Schedule of Council and Cabinet meetings 

Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 
determining how services and other courses of action 
should be planned and delivered 

Citizens Panel 
Shaping Bridgend’s Future consultation 

Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner 
when working collaboratively, including shared risks 

Corporate Risk Management Policy and Risk 
Register 
Monitoring and reporting of Risk to Governance & 
Audit Committee 

P
age 57



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 18 | 33 

 

Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 
mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be 
adapted to changing circumstances 

Regular Committee meetings 
Delegated Powers to enable appropriate decision-
making 

Establishing appropriate key performance indicators 
(KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify 
how the performance of services and projects is to be 
measured 

Corporate Performance Assessment process and 
quarterly review 
Key Performance Indicators with Directorate 
Business and Team plans 

Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information 
required to review service quality regularly 

Business planning process, quarterly reporting on 
performance, self-assessment 

Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, 
strategies and the medium term financial plan 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Annual budget setting process 

Informing medium and long term resource planning by 
drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 
expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 
strategy 

3-year rolling Medium Term Financial Strategy 
and 10 Year Capital Programme 

 
Optimising 

achievement of 
intended 
outcomes 

Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates 
and balances service priorities, affordability and other 
resource constraints 

Medium Term Financial Strategy updated 
annually to reflect service pressures and 
efficiency savings 

Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking 
into account the full cost of operations over the medium 
and longer term 

Directorate engagement in Medium Term 
Financial planning process 
Overview and Scrutiny review of Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 
Budget Research and Evaluation Panel 

Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the 
context for ongoing decisions on significant delivery 
issues or responses to changes in the external 
environment that may arise during the budgetary period 
in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising 
resource usage 

Effective budget monitoring during year, reported 
to Departmental Management Teams, Corporate 
Management Board, Cabinet,Council and 
Scrutiny 

P
age 58



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 19 | 33 

 

Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through 
service planning and commissioning 
 
 

Consideration of all Committee decisions of Well-
being of Future Generations Act 
Outcomes of consultations 
Feedback from Citizen’s Panel 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 59



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 20 | 33 

 

Core Principle E Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within 
it 

 
Sub Principle Actions that Demonstrate Good Governance Evidence that supports the Actions 
Developing the 
entity’s capacity 

Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets 
on a regular basis to ensure their continuing 
effectiveness 

Asset Management Plan in place 
Council operates a Corporate Landlord model 
Regular budget monitoring process 
 

Improving resource use through appropriate application 
of techniques such as benchmarking and other options 
in order to determine how resources are allocated so 
that defined outcomes are achieved effectively and 
efficiently 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) delivers 
a robust financial plan through a rigorous budget 
setting process.  One of the key MTFS Principles 
is that all services will seek to provide value for 
money and contribute to public value and will 
continuously review budgets to identify efficiency 
savings. 
On occasions external support is used to provide 
an independent review of service areas, which 
may include comparisons to other local 
authorities. 
Audit Wales Financial Sustainability Assessment 
report February 2020 
 

Recognising the benefits of partnerships and 
collaborative working where added value can be 
achieved 

The Council participates in a number of 
collaborative working arrangements including: 
Shared Regulatory Service 
Regional Internal Audit Shared Service 
Pooled fund arrangements for Residential Care, 
day opportunities for people recovering from 
Mental Health problems; Community Equipment 
and Integrated Community Support Services 

P
age 60



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 21 | 33 

 

Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan 
to enhance the strategic allocation of resources 

Workforce Plan and Training & Development Plan 
in place 

 
Developing the 
capability of the 

entity’s 
leadership and 

other individuals 

Developing protocols to ensure that elected and 
appointed leaders negotiate with each other regarding 
their respective roles early on in the relationship and that 
a shared understanding of roles and objectives is 
maintained 

Council’s Constitution sets out roles and 
responsibilities 

Publishing a statement that specifies the types of 
decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the 
collective decision making of the governing body 

Scheme of Delegation in place 

Ensuring the leader and the chief executive have clearly 
defined and distinctive leadership roles within a 
structure whereby the chief executive leads in 
implementing strategy and managing the delivery of 
services and other outputs set by members and each 
provides a check and a balance for each other’s 
authority 

Roles set out in Council’s Constitution.  Section 6 
of the Council’s Constitution includes information 
regarding the role of the Leader and Member role 
descriptions are set out at section 22 of the 
document. 
Job descriptions and person specifications for all 
roles and an appraisal panel for the Chief 
Executive to review performance.  

Developing the capabilities of members and senior 
management to achieve effective leadership and to 
enable the organisation to respond successfully to 
changing legal and policy demands as well as 
economic, political and environmental changes and 
risks by: 

- ensuring members and staff have access to 
appropriate induction training and development 
matching individual and organisational 
requirements is available and encouraged 

Member development programme in place 
Standards Committee 
Corporate Training & Development Programme 
Professional job-related training eg CIPFA 
 

P
age 61



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 22 | 33 

 

- ensuring members and officers have the 
appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and 
support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and 
ensuring that they are able to update their 
knowledge on a continuing basis 

- ensuring personal, organisational and system-
wide development through shared learning, 
including lessons learnt from governance 
weaknesses both internal and external 

Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage 
public participation 

Communication, Marketing & Engagement 
Strategy 
Citizens Panel 
Talktous 
Social Media 

Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own 
effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to 
constructive feedback from peer review and inspections 

Annual Corporate Self-Assessment process 
Performance Appraisal process and system 
Estyn Reviews 
Care Inspectorate Wales reviewsAudit Wales 
reviews and audits 
Peer review reports reported to appropriate 
Committee, eg Audit Wales reports to 
Governance & Audit Committee 

Holding staff to account through regular performance 
reviews which take account of training or development 
needs 

Annual Appraisal and 6-month appraisal review 
process 
Performance Management reporting via 
Performance Indicators 

Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the 
health and well-being of the workforce and support 

Care-First on line staff welfare system 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

P
age 62



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 23 | 33 

 

individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental 
well-being 

HR policies and procedures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 63



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 24 | 33 

 

Core Principle F Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 
management 

 
Sub Principle Actions that Demonstrate Good Governance Evidence that supports the Actions 
Managing risk Recognising that risk management is an integral part of 

all activities and must be considered in all aspects of 
decision making 

Risk Management Policy and Corporate Risk 
Register in place, and reviewed by CMB and 
Governance & Audit Committee 
Team plans incorporate risk assessments 

Implementing robust and integrated risk management 
arrangements and ensuring that they are working 
effectively 

Risk Management Policy and Guidance notes 
published to the intranet and taken to 
Departmental Management Teams.  E-learning 
module for identified staff 

Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual 
risks are clearly allocated 

Set out in Risk Management Policy 

 
Managing 

performance 
Monitoring service delivery effectively including 
planning, specification, execution and independent post 
implementation review 

Corporate Performance Assessment 
Annual Performance report/Well-being Report 
Programme Management Centre of Excellence 
and Project Toolkit 

Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective 
analysis and advice pointing out the implications and 
risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 
environmental position and outlook 

Corporate Report Template – ensuring all 
necessary aspects are considered – financial; 
legal; Well-being of Future Generations Act; 
Equalities; links to Corporate plan. 

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 
place which provides constructive challenge and debate 
on policies and objectives before, during and after 
decisions are made thereby enhancing the 
organisation’s performance and that of any organisation 
for which it is responsible 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees in place 

P
age 64



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 25 | 33 

 

Providing members and senior management with 
regular reports on service delivery plans and on 
progress towards outcome achievement 

Corporate Performance Assessment process 
Scrutiny reviews 
Annual Performance report/Well-being Report 

Ensuring there is consistency between specification 
stages (such as budgets) and post implementation 
reporting (eg financial statements) 

Budget setting, monitoring and outturn reports all 
based on Council’s Directorate structure 

 
Robust internal 

control 
Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on 
internal control with achieving objectives 

Risk based audit plan in place 

Evaluating and monitoring risk management and 
internal control on a regular basis 

Internal Audit undertakes sufficient audit work to 
provide an annual opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and controls 

Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption 
arrangements are in place 

Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy in place and 
mandatory e-learning for all staff 
Whistleblowing Policy 
Employee and Member Codes of Conduct 
Anti Money Laundering Policy 

Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy 
and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 
management and control is provided by the internal 
auditor 

Head of Regional Internal Audit Service provides 
an annual opinion on the effectiveness of the 
framework of governance, risk management and 
control 

Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group/ 
function, which is independent of the executive and 
accountable to the governing body: 

- provides a further source of effective assurance 
regarding arrangements for managing risk and 
maintaining an effective control environment 

Governance & Audit Committee in place 
Governance & Audit Committee receive regular 
updates on the control environment and risk 
management.  The Committee scrutinises the 
Annual Governance Statement before presenting 
to Council for approval 
When Governance & Audit Committee make 
recommendations, they are acted upon 

P
age 65



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 26 | 33 

 

- that its recommendations are listened to and 
acted upon 

 
Managing data Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the 

safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, 
including processes to safeguard personal data 

Information Management Strategy in place 
ICT Code of Practice 

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and 
operating effectively when sharing data with other 
bodies 

Where necessary, information sharing protocols in 
place 

Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and 
accuracy of data used in decision making and 
performance monitoring 

Reports follow an approval process and require 
Chief Officer/Head of Service, Finance and Legal 
approval prior to publication.  Report authors are 
responsible for ensuring the accuracy and quality 
of reports submitted. 

 
Strong public 
management 

Ensuring financial management supports both long term 
achievement of outcomes and short-term financial and 
operational performance 

The Council formally adopts an annual budget and 
supporting Medium Term Financial Strategy as 
well as a 10-year Capital Programme.  Regular 
monitoring reports including forecasted 
expenditure is provided to Directors, Corporate 
Management Board and quarterly reports are 
presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny with the outturn 
report presented to Council. 

Ensuring well-developed financial management is 
integrated at all levels of planning and control, including 
management of financial risks and controls 

As set out in the Constitution and Financial 
Procedure Rules each Chief Officer is responsible 
for ensuring control of expenditure and income 
against approved budgets.  Chief Officers are 
responsible for providing the Chief Finance Officer 
with such information as is required to facilitate 

P
age 66



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 27 | 33 

 

and monitor budgetary control.  The management 
of budgets may be delegated to senior officers 
within the Directorate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 67



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 28 | 33 

 

Core Principle G Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 
 

Sub Principle Actions that Demonstrate Good Governance Evidence that supports the Actions 
Implementing 

good practice in 
transparency 

Writing and communicating reports for the public and 
other stakeholders in a fair, balanced and 
understandable style appropriate to the intended 
audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and 
interrogate 

All reports follow an agreed template 
All agenda papers, minutes and supporting 
documents are available via the Bridgend Council 
website 

Striking a balance between providing the right amount 
of information to satisfy transparency demands and 
enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to 
provide and for users to understand 

Meetings can be watched via the Bridgend 
website. 

 
Implementing 

good practices in 
reporting 

Reporting at least annually on performance, value for 
money and stewardship or resources to stakeholders in 
a timely and understandable way 

Annual Performance Report/Well-being Report 
External Audit (Audit Wales) audit of statement of 
accounts and Council performance and 
grantsAnnual Audit Letter setting out audit work 
undertaken by external audit and an opinion on 
the statement of accounts 

Ensuring members and senior management own the 
results reported 

Cabinet and Senior Management are responsible 
for all aspects of service performance 

Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent 
to which the principles contained in this Framework 
have been applied and publishing the results on this 
assessment, including an action plan for improvement 
and evidence to demonstrate good governance (the 
annual governance statement) 

An annual review of the Governance Statement is 
undertaken, and an action plan of agreed 
improvements monitored and reported to 
Corporate Management Board and Governance & 
Audit Committee 
 

Ensuring that this framework is applied to jointly 
managed or shared service organisations as 
appropriate 

Setting out Terms of Reference for joint 
committees and shared services 

P
age 68



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 29 | 33 

 

Ensuring Joint Committee structures are 
appropriate 

Ensuring the performance information that 
accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a 
consistent and timely basis and the statements allow for 
comparison with other, similar organisations 

Annual Performance Report/Well-being report 
prepared in line with statutory reporting 
requirements and on a consistent basis.   
Annual Statement of Accounts prepared in line 
with CIPFA requirements and Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting and audited to give 
unqualified audit report 

 
Assurance and 

effective 
accountability 

Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action 
made by external audit are acted upon 

Recommendations are reported to Governance & 
Audit Committee and acted on to ensure changes 
implemented 
Implementation of Regulatory Tracker for 
Governance & Audit Committee review 

Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct 
access to members is in place, providing assurance with 
regard to governance arrangements and that 
recommendations are acted upon 

Governance & Audit Committee receive reports at 
each meeting on the progress on the Internal 
Audit Plan that has been previously agreed by the 
Committee.  Head of the Regional Internal Audit 
Service provides an annual opinion on the 
effectiveness of governance and internal controls 
which is presented to the Committee and included 
in the Annual Governance Statement 

Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections 
from regulatory bodies and implementing 
recommendations 

Regular cycle of inspections from Care 
Inspectorate Wales, Estyn, Audit Wales.  Also 
new peer assessment requirement under Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 

Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering 
services through third parties and that this is evidenced 
in the annual governance statement 

Risks are contained within the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Assessment, which is 

P
age 69



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 30 | 33 

 

underpinned by the Council’s Risk Management 
Policy 

Ensuring that when working in partnership, 
arrangements for accountability are clear and the need 
for wider public accountability has been recognised and 
met 

Collaboration/Service Agreements/Heads of 
Terms in place for joint arrangements and 
partnership working, including Awen Trust, Halo 
Leisure Services; Shared Regulatory Services, 
Regional Internal Audit Service 

 
 
 

P
age 70



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 31 | 33 

 

7. Monitoring and Review 
 
7.1 Good corporate governance requires the active participation of Elected 

Members and Officers across the Council. These arrangements will be 
reviewed on an annual basis and the findings of this work will be reported in 
the Annual Governance Statement. This will help ensure the continuous 
improvement of the Council’s Corporate Governance culture. 

 
7.2 The adoption and maintenance of an up-to-date Code of Corporate 

Governance, including arrangements for ensuring its implementation and 
ongoing application is an important part of the process. 

 
7.3 The Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring and 

reviewing the Governance arrangements as described in this Code. 
 
7.4 Through that Committee, the Council will ensure that these arrangements are 

kept under continual review. This will include consideration of: 
 

 the work undertaken by internal audit; 
 reports prepared by managers with responsibility for aspects of this Code; 
 reports and opinions expressed by external auditors; and 
 reports of other regulatory bodies and Inspectorates. 

8. The Annual Governance Statement 
 
8.1 Each year the Council will publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

which is signed by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive. It will 
provide an overall assessment of the Council’s Corporate Governance 
arrangements, an appraisal of the controls in place to manage the Council’s 
key risks and details of where improvements need to be made 

 
8.2 The AGS will be reviewed by Corporate Management Board and approved by 

the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
8.3 The AGS will be published as part of the Council’s Annual Statement of 

Accounts and will be reviewed by our External Auditors. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 32 | 33 

 

 

Page 72



Code of corporate governance February 2023 

 

 
Page 33 | 33 

 

Glossary 
 

Term Explanation 
CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountability 
SOLACE The Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior 

Managers 
Member Elected Councillor (including co-opted councillors) 
Corporate 
Management 
Board 

The Corporate Management Board is the key internal 
management body of the Council and comprises the Chief 
Executive, Strategic Directors and Chief Officers. 

Officer Employee of the Council (including secondees) 
Constitution The Council’s rules and codes/protocols 

 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date of Meeting:  
 

28 SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

 
Report Title:  

 
ETHICAL INVESTMENT POLICY 

 
 

Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE & CHANGE 

Responsible 
Officer:  

NIGEL SMITH 
GROUP MANAGER – CHIEF ACCOUNTANT 

 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

Paragraph 22 of the Financial Procedure Rules requires the 
Chief Finance Officer to prepare and present an annual 
Treasury Management Strategy to the Governance and 
Audit Committee prior to submission to Council for 
approval in advance of the start of each financial year.  This 
must include an investment strategy. 
All investments and borrowing transactions shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the Treasury Management 
Strategy and with due regard to the requirements of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA)’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the 
Public Services. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

 Environmental, Social and corporate Governance 
(ESG) are becoming increasing important factors in 
the investment decision-making process. 

 It is proposed that the Council adopts ESG 
commitments as part of future Treasury Management 
Strategies and practice. 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to present to the Governance and Audit Committee the 

Ethical Investment Policy at Appendix A, for consideration.  The Ethical Investment 
Policy will be incorporated into the 2024-25 Treasury Management Strategy, which 
will be presented to Council for approval in February/March 2024.  

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 Environmental, Social and corporate Governance are becoming increasingly 

important factors in the investment decision-making process.  Members have 
requested that the Council consider an ethical investment policy when considering 
treasury management investments.  

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 7



 

2.2  Treasury Management Practice Note 1 in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) Treasury Management Code of Practice 2021 notes that 
‘The organisation’s credit and counterparty policies should set out its policy and 
practices relating to environmental, social and governance (ESG) investment 
considerations.  This is a developing area, and it is not implied that the organisation’s 
ESG policy will currently include ESG scoring or other real-time ESG criteria at 
individual investment level.” 
 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 Appendix A sets out the Council’s proposed approach to ESG in Treasury 

Management.  It notes the Treasury Management Strategy 2023-24 sets out the 
following: 

 
 ‘ESG Policy: Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are 

increasingly a factor in global investors’ decision making, but the framework for 
evaluating investment opportunities is still developing and therefore the Council does 
not currently include ESG scoring or other real-time ESG criteria at an individual 
investment level.  When investing in banks and funds, the Authority will prioritise 
banks that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Banking and funds 
operated by managers that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible 
Investment, the Net Zero Asset Managers Alliance and/or the UK Stewardship Code.’ 

 
 It is proposed that the Council adopts the following commitments as part of its 

Treasury Management Strategy from 2023-24: 
 

 Ensure as far as possible, that its investment parties are committed to the 
principles of ESG 

 The Council and its counterparties will seek to act with integrity at all times in their 
dealings 

 The Council will seek to encourage positive ESG behaviour 
 The Council will comply with any industry standard ESG guidelines that may arise 

and always seek to ensure best practice in managing its treasury investments. 

 
3.2 The Council invests in Money Market Funds, and those it uses have signed up to the 

UN Principles for Responsible Investment, UK Stewardship Code 2020 and the Net-
Zero Asset Managers Initiative.  Local Authorities are significant providers of social 
value in their services.  They are also, as public bodies, accountable for the actions 
they undertake and are required to demonstrate good governance.  It is important to 
note that the Council does not invest in any specific scheme of any other local 
authority to which it lends money but lends purely for short-term cash flow purposes. 
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

Page 76



 

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales, with 

5 ways of working to guide how public services should work to deliver for people.  The 
well-being objectives are designed to complement each other and are part of an 
integrated way of working to improve well-being for the people of Bridgend.  It is 
considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon the 
achievement of the well-being goals or objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications as a result of this report. 

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no Safeguarding or Corporate Parent implications as a result of this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 The Council invests its short-term available cash resources to ensure those resources 

are invested securely, have sufficient liquidity to be able to access those resources 
when needed, and then to achieve a return commensurate with the level of security 
and liquidity.   

 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee considers the Ethical 

Investment Policy and agrees its inclusion in future Treasury Management Strategies. 
 
Background documents 
 
None 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



TREASURY MANAGEMENT – ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) September 2023 

 

1  

 

What is ESG? 

ESG stands for Environmental, Social and corporate Governance.  In investing terms, it means the 
consideration of ESG factors alongside financial factors in the investment decision-making process.  
An organisation with a high carbon footprint would not score well on environmental impact; one that 
negatively affects people’s health would not score well for social impact; and one without appropriate 
structures and processes to ensure good corporate decision-making and behaviour would not rate 
highly for governance.  

When considering investing its available resources (short-term cash flows), the Council needs to 
consider the Environmental, Social and Governance implications of decisions to invest.  Treasury 
Management Practice note 1 in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
Treasury Management Code of Practice 2021 sets out the following: 

‘The organisation’s credit and counterparty policies should set out its policy and practices relating to 
environmental, social and governance (ESG) investment considerations.  This is a developing area, and 
it is not implied that the organisation’s ESG policy will currently include ESG scoring or other real-
time ESG criteria at individual investment level.’  (Emphasis applied) 

Many local authorities have declared a climate emergency and Councils are taking steps to reduce 
their own carbon emissions within their area.  The target for the UK is to achieve net-zero by 2050.  
Some Councils consider 2050 too long and are working towards achieving zero net carbon well ahead 
of 2050.  The Welsh Government published its Net Zero Strategic Plan in September 2022 setting out 
the Welsh Ministers’ ambition for the public sector to be collectively net zero by 2030. Local 
authorities have a huge role to play in terms of alleviating the climate crisis by encouraging greener 
infrastructure, increased cycle to work schemes, more flexible working and home working to reduce 
home to work commuting and implementing a range of energy efficiency measures such as solar 
panels and low carbon heating. 

Local authorities are significant providers of social value in their services.  The provision of social 
housing and social care to those in need are key services.  Councils are also providers of recreational 
services such as parks, playgrounds, community land and provide opportunities for healthy living and 
exercise. 

Local Authorities, as public bodies, are accountable for the actions they do and, being in the public 
eye, look very much to uphold the highest standards of conduct and behaviour, therefore 
demonstrating strong governance.  Decisions must be lawful and based on objectivity and reliable 
advice where needed.  Meeting agendas and minutes are posted to websites, increasing transparency 
and scrutiny of their decision making. 

The Council’s Treasury Advisors, Arlingclose, provide some information as regards organisations that 
have signed up to some major ESG-related initiatives, their latest update being 13 January 2023.  The 
Council will consider these organisations when lending monies, though would not limit its decisions 
to solely these organisations.  Local authorities are included as appropriate organisations for ESG 
purposes.  The Council’s bankers, Barclays Group, have signed up to UN Principles for Responsible 
Banking.  The UN Principles support banks to take action to align their core strategy, decision-making, 
lending and investment within the UN Sustainable Development Goals, and international agreements 
such as the Paris Climate Agreement.  The Principles for Responsible Banking include the Net-Zero 
Banking Alliance, which is the climate-focussed initiative of this global framework.  Other banks also 
signed up that the Council use include:  Handelsbanken (through Svenska Handelsbanken) and Lloyds 
Banking Group (including Bank of Scotland). 

APPENDIX A

Page 79



TREASURY MANAGEMENT – ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) September 2023 

 

2  

 

Arlingclose have also provided information regarding investment bodies.  The Council uses Money 
Market Funds and the four funds it uses have signed up to the UN Principles for Responsible 
Investment, UK Stewardship Code 2020 and the Net-Zero Asset Managers Initiative.  The UN Principles 
for Responsible Investment provides possible actions for incorporating ESG issues into investment 
practice.  In implementing the Principles, organisations contribute to developing a more sustainable 
global financial system.   
 

The UK Stewardship Code sets high stewardship standards for those investing money on behalf of UK 
savers and pensioners.  Stewardship is the responsible allocation, management and oversight of 
capital to create long-term value for clients and beneficiaries leading to sustainable benefits for the 
economy, the environment and society.  The Code applies to asset managers who manage assets on 
behalf of UK clients or invest in UK assets.  The Net Zero Asset Managers initiative is an international 
group of asset managers committed to supporting the goal of net zero greenhouse gas emissions by 
2050 or sooner, in line with global efforts to limit warming to 1.5 degrees Celsius; and to supporting 
investing aligned with net zero emissions by 2050 or sooner. 

The Council is committed to being a responsible investor.  This means recognising the importance of 
long-term financial health and stability of the financial markets, and to understand that external non-
financial factors, such as the environment, social stability and strong governance are key factors to 
consider. 

The Council has recognised climate change as a long-term and material risk.  The Council declared a 
climate emergency in June 2020 and set up its Climate Emergency Response programme, which has a 
commitment to achieve Net Zero carbon emissions by 2030 across its operations.  The Council 
developed its 2030 Net Zero Carbon Strategy, approved by Council on 13 December 2022.  It is 
recognised that the resource challenge faced by all public bodies in Wales to achieve net zero carbon 
by 2030 is significant. 

The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the following: 

‘ESG Policy: Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are increasingly a factor in 
global investors’ decision making, but the framework for evaluating investment opportunities is still 
developing and therefore the Council does not currently include ESG scoring or other real-time ESG 
criteria at an individual investment level. When investing in banks and funds, the Authority will 
prioritise banks that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Banking and funds operated 
by managers that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Investment, the Net Zero Asset 
Managers Alliance and/or the UK Stewardship Code.’ 
 
Proposed amendment/addendum to the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy 

In terms of its Treasury Management activities, it is proposed that the Council adopts the following 
commitments as part of its Treasury Management Strategy: 

 Ensure as far as possible, that its investment parties are committed to the principles of ESG 
 The Council and its counterparties will seek to act with integrity at all times in their dealings 
 The Council will seek to encourage positive ESG behaviour 
 The Council will comply with any industry standard ESG guidelines that may arise and always 

seek to ensure best practice in managing its treasury investments. 

 

Page 80



TREASURY MANAGEMENT – ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) September 2023 

 

3  

 

The Council’s approach in practice 

As noted above Local Authorities by their very nature will meet ESG requirements.  This Council does 
not invest in any specific schemes of any other local authority to which it lends money but lends 
purely for short-term cash flow purposes.  As such, it is not intended that any further checking of other 
local authorities will be undertaken (other than if the advice from our Treasury Advisors is to not invest 
due to specific financial concerns). 

The Money Market Funds that the Council use have also signed up to relevant ESG commitments and 
so no further checks will be undertaken when using these funds.   

The Council will continue to review any updated guidance received from the Council’s Treasury 
Advisors in relation to ESG considerations. 

This is a developing area for Treasury Management and the Council will continue to monitor progress 
and develop its policies in line with guidance from both CIPFA and the Council’s Treasury Management 
Advisors. 

 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
28 SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
PROGRESS AGAINST THE INTERNAL AUDIT RISK BASED 

PLAN 2023-24 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE & CHANGE 

Responsible 
Officer:  

ANDREW WATHAN 
HEAD OF REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

The proposals in this report are in accordance with the 
policy framework and budget. 

 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

 The progress made against the approved internal audit 

risk-based plan 2023-24 for the period 1st April 2023 to 

30th August 2023 shows that 10 of 39 planned audit 

reviews have been completed to date which equates to a 

completion rate of 26%. The Regional Internal Audit 

Service has set a target of 30% completion by the end of 

quarter 2. 

 Based on the assessment of the strengths and 

weaknesses of the areas examined through testing of the 

effectiveness of the internal control environment, audit 

opinions have been given to 10 audits. 9 audits have been 

given Substantial or Reasonable assurance and 1 audit 

has been given Limited assurance. The identified risks 

found in the Limited assurance audit is service specific and 

detailed within this report.  

 Included within this year’s plan are 12 audits that were not 

undertaken or completed in 2022-23.   3 of the 12 audits 

are now completed and 5 are in progress.    

 A total of 5 recommendations have been made to date to 

improve the control environment.  The progress being 

made in implementing these is regularly monitored by 

Internal Auditor and reported to this Committee. 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 To provide members of the Committee with a position statement on progress being 

made against the audit work included and approved within the Internal Audit Risk 
Based Plan 2023-24. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



 

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Audit is 

responsible for developing a risk-based annual audit plan which considers the 
Council's risk management framework.  Within the Standards there is also a 
requirement for the Head of Audit to review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in 
response to changes in the Council's business, risks, operations, programmes, 
systems, controls and resources.  The Head of Audit must also ensure that Internal 
Audit resources are appropriate, sufficient and effectively deployed to achieve the 
approved plan.  

 
2.2 The Internal Audit Plan for 2023-24 was submitted to the Governance and Audit 

Committee for consideration and approval on 1st  June 2023.  The Plan outlined the 
assignments to be carried out which will provide sufficient coverage to provide an 
overall opinion at the end of 2023-24.  

 
2.3 The plan is  flexible to allow for changing circumstances and events that may occur, 

such as requests to respond to new issues that may emerge. 
 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 Progress made against the approved plan for the period 1st April 2023 to 30th August 

2023 is attached at Appendix A. This details the status of each planned review, the 
audit opinion and the number of any high, medium, or low priority recommendations 
made to improve the control environment. It should be noted that some reviews listed 
have no audit opinion, for example advice and guidance and Governance and Audit 
Committee / Corporate Management Board (CMB) reporting / Fraud, Error, 
Irregularity. This is because the audit work carried out in respect of these items is 
planned but the nature of the work does not lead to testing and the formation of an 
audit opinion, although in some instances recommendations are made. 

 
3.2 The Regional Internal Audit Service (RIAS) has set quarterly targets to monitor the 

delivery of the approved audit plan. This will assist in ensuring sufficient audit 
coverage has been given to the Council in order to provide an overall opinion at the 
end of 2023-24. The targets that the RIAS are working towards at the end of each 
quarter are as follows: 

 

 Qtr 1 = 10% 

 Qtr 2 = 30% 

 Qtr 3 = 50% 

 Qtr 4 = 80% 
 
3.3 As at 30th August 2023, the level of coverage is 26%. A summary of the progress 

made to date shown in Table 1 below. Details of individual audit assignments are 
shown in Appendix A. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



 

Table 1 – Summary of the Progress Against the Audit Plan 2023-24 
 

 Status of Audits Assignments 
 

Number % of plan 
completed 

Final report issued  4 10% 

Draft report issued  6 16% 

Audits in progress 11  

Audits allocated and due to start in this quarter 6  

Planned Audits not started  12  

Total 39 26% 

 
3.4 An audit opinion is applied to an audit based on the assessment of the strengths and 

weaknesses of the areas examined during the audit through testing of the 
effectiveness of the internal control environment. Table 2 shows the audit opinions 
given as of 30th August 2023. Details of individual audit assignments are shown in 
Appendix A. 

 
 Table 2 – Audit Opinions Applied to Audits as of 30th August 2023 
 

 Audit Opinion Number 

Substantial Assurance 2 

Reasonable Assurance 7 

Limited Assurance 1 

No Assurance 0 

Total 10 

 
3.5 For reference, the audit assurance/opinion categories are: 
 

AUDIT ASSURANCE CATEGORY CODE 

Substantial A sound system of governance, risk management and 
control exists, with internal controls operating effectively 
and being consistently applied to support the achievement 
of objectives in the area audited.  

Reasonable There is a generally sound system of governance, risk 
management and control in place. Some issues, non-
compliance or scope for improvement were identified 
which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the 
area audited. 

Limited Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were 
identified. Improvement is required to the system of 
governance, risk management and control to effectively 
manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area 
audited. 

No Assurance Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of 
governance, risk management and control is inadequate 
to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Page 85



 

 
3.6 Table 2 identifies 1 audit that has been given a Limited assurance opinion; the 

identified risks are detailed below. 
 
 School Vehicles 
 There is government guidance in respect of vehicle weight and the required licence 

category. The audit, which included 7 schools, identified that in one case the weight 
of the vehicle was unknown so compliance to the guidance could not be verified. In 
addition, some of the schools failed to regulalry review staff driving licences to ensure 
validity and some vehicles had been driven by staff who did not hold the correct 
vehicle category on their driving licence or the licence was out of date which 
invalidates the insurance.  

 
3.7 The audit plan 2023-24 at Appendix A includes audits that were not started during 

2022-23 or were incomplete at year end. There are 12 of these which are detailed at 
Appendix B. Table 3 below provides a summary of the status of these 12 audits as 
at 30th August 2023. 

  
Table 3 – Status of Audits Carried Forward into the Audit Plan 2023-24 as at                  

30th August 2023 
 

  Status of Audits Assignments 
 

Number % Complete 

Final report issued  2 17% 

Draft report issued  1 8% 

Audit in progress 5 42% 

Audit allocated and due to start in quarter 2 1  

Planned Audits not started  3  

Total 12 67% 

 
3.8 Appendix A shows a total of 5 recommendations have been made to date to improve 

the control environment: 1 high priority, 2 medium priority and 2 low priority.  The 
implementation of these recommendations are regularly monitored by the Auditors to 
ensure that the identified and agreed improvements are being made. More detailed 
information is included in a separate report to this Committee. 
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. 
It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 
result of this report.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 
 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report however effective 

audit planning and monitoring are key contributors in ensuring that the Council’s 
assets and interests are properly accounted for and safeguarded. 

 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 It is recommended that members of the Committee note the content of the report and 

the progress made against the 2023-24 Internal Audit Risk Based Plan. 
 
 
Background documents 
 
None 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Substantial Reasonable Limited High Medium Low

Cross - Cutting Follow up - Limited Assurance Reports To ensure that improvements have been made to the control environment since the previous 
limited assurance review.

Cross Cutting Good Governance To provide assurance that key Corporate Governance processes are in place within the 
Council and that these are operating effectively to enable the Council to be provided with 
sufficient information to enable them to discharge their responsibilities. Assist in the AGS

Cross Cutting Safeguarding To review a sample of contracts to ensure that safeguarding has been adequately considered 
and included where appropriate eg) contracts within schools, cleaners in certain settings, 
agency staff etc

allocated

Under the conditions of the specific grant determination, the Head of Audit must certify that 
the conditions of the grant have been complied with.
Bus Services Support Grant 2022-23 final issued √ 0 0 0
Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant 2022-23 final issued √ 0 0 0

Cross Cutting Risk Management  A review of  a sample of corporate risks to identify if they are being appropriately managed 
and progress is being reported accurately. 

Cross Cutting Welsh Language Standards Select a sample of web based communications and verify compliance to the Welsh Language 
standards 

allocated

Cross Cutting Consultants To review the use of consultants across the Council including procurement, payments and 
ongoing arrangements including authority to extend contracts 

Cross Cutting Energy Efficiency Monitoring & Reporting To undertake a review of how the Council aims to reduce its consumption of energy and 
provide assurance on the arrangements in place.  This review will also examine the use of 
energy usage data across the Council and how this information impacts and informs strategic 
decisions

allocated

Cross Cutting Security & Access to Council Buildings To undertake a review of the Council's arrangements for the security and access to Council 
buildings and provide assurance that robust controls are in place 

in progress

Chief Executives Procurement Review current processes and practices to ensure that they are reasonable, effective and 
efficient in the current economic landscape and compliant to the Council's contract procedure 
rules and any grant conditions where relevant.
A rolling programme of audits is adopted, work programme for each year may differ.  This 
approach enables us to deliver a more cost-effective service, whilst providing sufficient 
assurance as to the adequacy of the Council’s material system control environment. 

Housing Benefits final issued √ 0 1 2
Council Tax allocated
Treasury Management in progress
Banking Arrangements in progress

Chief Executives Capital Accounting & Asset Register To undertake a review of the Capital Accounting & Asset Register and provide assurance to 
Management of the controls in place

in progress

Chief Executives Budget Savings To identify and review the systems in place to monitor the high level of savings identified allocated

Chief Executives Project Management To undertake a review of the governance and decision making around Major  Projects.  
Particular emphasis will be placed on compliance to the Council’s Rules and Regulations and 
Project Management Methodology associated with high risk contracts. 
In consultation with ICT, systems reviews will be undertaken across Directorates to ensure 
robust controls are evident and operating effectively in order to minimise the threat of cyber 
crime
File Systems & Folder Access draft issued √

Chief Executives Cyber Security Undertake testing to ensure that staff are aware or requirements to protect devices, services 
and networks and the information on them from theft or damage via electronic means and 
staff are aware of what to do if there is a concern or breach. Ensure this information is 
monitored and reported consistently across the Council

Chief Executives Temporary Housing Solutions Examine compliance with this statutory duty, review process for availability, processing and 
prioritising cases to provide assistance that systems are efficient and effective.

final issued √ 1 1

Recommendations
Directorate Area Audit Scope / Risk Status

Opinion

Cross Cutting Grant Certification Work

Chief Executives Financial Systems

Chief Executives ICT Audit

P
age 89



Appendix A

Substantial Reasonable Limited High Medium Low

Recommendations
Directorate Area Audit Scope / Risk Status

Opinion

Communities Coychurch Crematorium A compliance review to complete the Annual Accounting Statement 

Communities Porthcawl Harbour A compliance review to complete the Annual Accounting Statement 2022/23 draft issued √

Communities Porthcawl Regeneration To ensure the governance, structure and scope of the Project Board  are in place and 
operating effectively to successfully deliver this programme.

in progress

Communities Waste To provide assurance that any external funding is being spent in compliance to the specific 
criteria as well as in compliance with the Council’s Financial & Contract Procedure Rules and 
PCop and any agreed business plans.

Communities Rights of Way To provide assurance on the control environment in respect of processes, charges and dispute 
resolution

draft issued
√

Communities Parking Enforcement To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance 
and risk management arrangements in respect of Parking Enforcement including testing of 
workflows, procedures and performance management.

in progress

To undertake a number of school based reviews as well as cross cutting thematic reviews in 
accordance with the Internal Audit risk based assessment.
Abercerdin Follow Up draft issued √
School Vehicles draft issued √
St Mary & St Patrick's Primary draft issued √

Education & Family Support School CRSA To undertake the annual controlled risk self – assessment for schools. The aim of the process 
is to enable Head Teachers to review their internal controls and to ensure that they undertake 
and comply with the requirements of current legislation and the Financial Procedure Rules. 

Education & Family Support School Admissions To ensure all processes and procedures are in place and operating effectively in progress

Education & Family Support Exclusions To provide assurance that schools are adhering to the Welsh Governance guidance in respect 
of fixed term and permanent exclusions

Education & Family Support Additional Learning Needs (ALN) To provide assurance that robust arrangements are in place to monitor and evaluate 
additional learning needs services, with specific reference to the implementation of the 
reduced timetable policy

in progress

Education & Family Support Learner Travel To provide assurance that procurement and contract monitoring is in adherence to Council 
policies and procedures to ensure the delivery of the agreed service within the agreed 
contract price.

Social Services & Wellbeing Adult Placements/ Shared Lives Review the contracts and monitoring arrangements in place to provide assurance that the 
Council's interests are protected and agreed rates are paid. Include Adults Learning 
Disabilities and Mental Health as well as LAC

in progress

Social Services & Wellbeing Halo Leisure Review the contract management and performance measures in place. Verify the data and 
calculations used and examine the scrutiny and challenge that takes place in respect of the 
Halo contract

in progress

Social Services & Wellbeing Carers Assessments To review the processes in place in respect of adult and young carers assessments in progress

Social Services & Wellbeing Complaints To provide assurance that the policy and procedures are being adhered to, performance is 
monitored and reported data is accurate 

allocated

Social Services & Wellbeing Quality Assurance To provide assurance that the quality assurance process is embedded and effective 
throughout the Directorate

Internal Audit Governance & Audit Committee /Members 
and CMB Reporting

This allocation covers Member reporting procedures, mainly to the Governance & Audit 
Committee.  Regular reporting to, and meeting with, the Section 151 Officer, Corporate 
Management Board and the RIAS Board.

Internal Audit Meetings, Advice & Guidance To allow auditors to facilitate the provision of risk and control advice which is regularly 
requested by officers within the authority.

Education & Family Support Schools

P
age 90



Appendix A

Substantial Reasonable Limited High Medium Low

Recommendations
Directorate Area Audit Scope / Risk Status

Opinion

Internal Audit Data Analytics Data Analytics is proving to be a useful internal audit tool as councils become more reliant on 
electronic data, as data analytics enables a vast amount of data to be analysed when selecting 
testing samples

Internal Audit External Audit Liaison To ensure that a “managed audit” approach is followed in relation to the provision of internal 
and external audit services.

Internal Audit Recommendation Monitoring Monitoring the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations in consultation with 
service areas which have received these recommendations.  

Internal Audit Annual Opinion Report To prepare and issue the Head of Audit’s Annual Opinion Report 2022/23 and start 
preparation for 2023/24 report.

Internal Audit Audit Planning To prepare and monitor the annual risk based audit plan for 2023/24 and commence 
preparation for 2024/25 plan

Internal Audit Quality Assurance & Improvement 
Programme 

To review / ensure compliance with the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 / Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

Internal Audit Closure of Reports from 2022/23 To finalise all draft reports outstanding at the end of 2022/23.

Internal Audit Emerging Risks / unplanned To enable Audit Services to respond to provide assurance activity as required.  
Cross - Cutting Fraud / Error / Irregularity National Fraud Initiative - Collection of data and analysis of matches for the NFI exercise, 

acting as first point of contact and providing advice and guidance to key contact officers.

Cross - Cutting Fraud / Error / Irregularity Irregularity Investigations - Reactive work where suspected irregularity has been detected.

Cross - Cutting Fraud / Error / Irregularity Anti-Fraud & Corruption – Proactive - Proactive counter-fraud work that includes targeted 
testing of processes with inherent risk of fraud.
 
OVERALL TOTALS 2 7 1 1 2 2

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BCBC - AUDIT PLAN 2023/24 Progress of 2022/23 Audit Jobs carried forward into 2023/24 APPENDIX B

Substantial Reasonable Limited High Medium Low

Cross Cutting Good Governance To provide assurance that key Corporate Governance processes are in place within the Council 

and that these are operating effectively to enable the Council to be provided with sufficient 

information to enable them to discharge their responsibilities. Assist in the AGS

Cross Cutting Safeguarding To review a sample of contracts to ensure that safeguarding has been adequately considered 

and included where appropriate eg) contracts within schools, cleaners in certain settings, 

agency staff etc

allocated

Chief Executives Procurement Review current processes and practices to ensure that they are reasonable, effective and 

efficient in the current economic landscape and compliant to the Council's contract procedure 

rules and any grant conditions where relevant.

A rolling programme of audits is adopted, work programme for each year may differ.  This 

approach enables us to deliver a more cost-effective service, whilst providing sufficient 

assurance as to the adequacy of the Council’s material system control environment. 

Housing Benefits final issued √ 0 1 2

Chief Executives Project Management To undertake a review of the governance and decision making around Major  Projects.  

Particular emphasis will be placed on compliance to the Council’s Rules and Regulations and 

Project Management Methodology associated with high risk contracts. 

Chief Executives Temporary Housing Solutions Examine compliance with this statutory duty, review process for availability, processing and 

prioritising cases to provide assistance that systems are efficient and effective.
final issued √ 1 1

Communities Porthcawl Regeneration To ensure the governance, structure and scope of the Project Board  are in place and 

operating effectively to successfully deliver this programme.

in progress

To undertake a number of school based reviews as well as cross cutting thematic reviews in 

accordance with the Internal Audit risk based assessment.

School Vehicles draft issued √

Education & Family Support School Admissions To ensure all processes and procedures are in place and operating effectively in progress

Social Services & Wellbeing Adult Placements/ Shared Lives Review the contracts and monitoring arrangements in place to provide assurance that the 

Council's interests are protected and agreed rates are paid. Include Adults Learning Disabilities 

and Mental Health as well as LAC

in progress

Social Services & Wellbeing Halo Leisure Review the contract management and performance measures in place. Verify the data and 

calculations used and examine the scrutiny and challenge that takes place in respect of the 

Halo contract

in progress

Social Services & Wellbeing Carers Assessments to review the processes in place in respect of adult and young carers assessments in progress

OVERALL TOTALS 0 2 1 1 2 2

Opinion Recommendations

Chief Executives 

Education & Family Support

Audit Scope / Risk Status

Financial Systems

Schools

Directorate Area

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
28 SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION MONITORING  

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE & CHANGE 

Responsible 
Officer:  

ANDREW WATHAN 
HEAD OF REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

The proposals in this report are in accordance with the 
policy framework and budget. 

 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

 A position statement in respect of internal audit high and 

medium priority recommendations made, implemented 

and outstanding as of 30th August 2023 is detailed in 

Appendix A.  

 A total of 3 high and medium priority recommendations 

have been made following the conclusion of audits from 

the 2023-24 annual plan. All have been agreed and to date 

2 have been implemented and 1 has a future 

implementation date;  there are none outstanding.   

 A total of 9 medium priority recommendations, made prior 

to 2023-24, have exceeded the agreed implementation 

date and these are detailed in Appendix B. 

 3 medium priority recommendations made in audits 

undertaken in 2021-22 still have a future target date for 

implementation. These are detailed in Appendix C. In 

addition, 17 recommendations made in 2022/23 audits 

have a future target date and these continue to be 

monitored.    

 The monitoring of recommendations is undertaken 

regularly by Auditors and any undue delays or issues will 

be highlighted to Senior Management via the Council’s 

Corporate Management Board and ultimately this 

Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



 

1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 To provide members of the Committee with a position statement on internal audit 

recommendations that have been made to identify those that have been implemented 
and those that are outstanding.  
 

2. Background  
 
2.1 In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the internal audit 

activity must assess and make appropriate recommendations to improve the 
Council’s governance, risk management and internal control. The Regional Internal 
Audit Service (RIAS) Strategy states that the implementation of agreed 
recommendations will be monitored.  

 
2.2 Recommendations are made at the conclusion of an audit review if it is felt that 

improvements should be made to mitigate risk and strengthen controls.  
Recommendations are included, if appropriate, in the final audit report and recipients 
are asked to provide responses to indicate whether they agree with the 
recommendations and how and when they plan to implement them. To assist 
managers in focussing their attention, each recommendation is classified as being 
either high, medium and low priority. 

 
2.3 Table 1 shows the recommendation categorisation as follows: 
  

Table 1 – Recommendation Categorisation 

Risk may be viewed as the chance, or probability, of one or more of the organisation’s 
objectives not being met. It refers both to unwanted outcomes which might arise, and to 
the potential failure to realise desired results. The criticality of each recommendation is as 
follows: 

High Priority Action that is considered imperative to ensure that the organisation 
is not exposed to high risks. 

Medium Priority Action that is considered necessary to avoid exposure to significant 
risks. 

Low Priority Action that is considered desirable and should result in enhanced 
control. 

 
2.4 To ensure maximum coverage of the annual plan based on the capacity available 

within the team, the RIAS monitors the implementation of the high and medium 
priority recommendations, but the low priority recommendations are left to 
management to successfully implement.  

 
2.5 Once the target date for implementation has been reached the relevant Officers will 

be contacted and asked to provide feedback on the status of each agreed high and 
medium priority recommendation. The implementation of these recommendations is 
monitored using MK Insight internal audit software to ensure that improvements are 
being made. 

 
2.6 Any audits concluded with a no assurance or limited assurance opinion will also be 

subject to a follow up audit.  

Page 96



 

 
 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 Appendix A provides a summary of the status of the high and medium priority internal 

audit recommendations made as of 30th August 2023. 
 
3.2 The status of the recommendations that have been made following the completion of 

audits from the 2023-24 audit plan is summarised in Table 2 below: 
 

Table 2 – Recommendation Status – Completed Audits 2023-24 
 

 No. Made 
 

Not 
Agreed 

Imp. Outstanding Future 
Target 
Date 

 High Med. Total High Med.  

2023-24 1 2 3 0 2 0 0 1 

 
3.3 Appendix A also includes the recommendations made in relation to audits completed 

in the audit plans of 2021-22 and 2022-23 which are yet to be implemented. This 
information is summarised in Table 3. 

 
Table 3 – Outstanding Recommendations – Audits Completed Pre-2023-24 

 

 No. Made 
 

Not 
Agreed 

Imp. Outstanding Future 
Target 
Date  High Med. Total High Med. 

2021-22 0 20 20 0 10 0 7 3 

         

2022-23 2 39 41 0 22 0 2 17 

 
3.4 Appendix B provides the detail of the 9 current outstanding recommendations and 

the position in respect of their implementation. This information has been shared with 
the Council’s Corporate Management Board.  

 
3.5 It is noted that 3 recommendations made during 2021-22 audits still have a future 

implementation date. These are detailed in Appendix C which includes an update on 
the current position of each. In addition, 17 recommendations made during 2022-23 
still have a future target date. However, several of these audits were completed within 
the last 6 months and the proposed implementation timescales agreed. The situation 
will be monitored and any undue delays with implementation will be reported 
accordingly. 

 
3.6 The monitoring of recommendations is undertaken regularly by Auditors and any 

delays or issues are highlighted to the Council’s Corporate Management Board and 
ultimately this Committee. 

 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 

Page 97



 

impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. 
It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 
result of this report.  

 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 
 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report however effective 

audit planning and monitoring are key contributors in ensuring that the Council’s 
assets and interests are properly accounted for and safeguarded. 

 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 That members of the Governance and Audit Committee note the content of the report 

and consider the information provided in respect of the status of the high and medium 
priority recommendations made by the Regional Internal Audit Service. 

 
 
Background documents 
 
None 

Page 98



Appendix A

Internal Audit Recommenadtion Monitoring Report - 30th August 2023

Implemented Future Target 
Date

High Medium Total Total High Medium Total Total
2021-22
iTrent System Chief Executives REASONABLE 05/11/2021 0 4 4 0 3 0 0 0 1
Direct Payments Social Services & Wellbeing REASONABLE 21/06/2022 0 3 3 0 2 0 0 0 1
Payroll & Expenses Chief Executives REASONABLE 21/06/2022 0 6 6 0 4 0 1 1 1
Cyber Security Chief Executives REASONABLE 02/09/2022 0 7 7 0 1 0 6 6 0
Total 0 20 20 0 10 0 7 7 3

2022-23
Tynyrheol Primary School Education & Family Support REASONABLE 16/01/2023 0 5 5 0 2 0 0 0 3
Home To Work Mileage in Council Vehicles Communities REASONABLE 27/01/2023 0 4 4 0 0 0 1 1 3
Climate Change & Energy Efficiency Cross Cutting REASONABLE 17/02/2023 0 5 5 0 3 0 1 1 1
Blaengarw Primary School Education & Family Support REASONABLE 06/03/2023 0 5 5 0 4 0 0 0 1
Performance Management Chief Executives REASONABLE 04/05/2023 1 5 6 0 5 0 0 0 1
Information, Advice & Assistance Service Internal Audit REASONABLE 09/05/2023 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Ysgol Calon Y Cymoedd Education & Family Support REASONABLE 09/05/2023 1 8 9 0 8 0 0 0 1
Vehicles Fuel Management Communities REASONABLE 17/05/2023 0 6 6 0 0 0 0 0 6
Total 2 39 41 0 22 0 2 2 17

2023-24
Housing Benefit Chief Executives REASONABLE 04/07/2023 0 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0
Temporary Housing Solutions Chief Executives REASONABLE 24/08/2023 1 1 2 0 1 0 0 0 1
Total 1 2 3 0 2 0 0 0 1

Outstanding Audit Name Directorate Audit Opinion Final Report 
Date

Number Made  Not AgreedP
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

 
 

Bridgend County Borough Council –Recommendation Monitoring  
 

Outstanding Recommendations Made Before 2023/24 
 

Audit 
 

Final 
Report 
Date 

Recommendation Category Agreed Action Agreed 
Date 

Current Position 

Payroll & 
Expenses 

21/06/22 Service Specific (Communities) - 
Any excess mileage paid where 
the identified officers have 
included travel from/to home is to 
be recovered. 

Medium The excess payment to be 
recovered in liaison with 
HR/Payroll as required. 

31/10/22 
 

Revised 
6/04/23 

Advised in March that the Manager was 
awaiting a response as to whether or not 
the sum can be recovered over three-
monthly salary periods.  
 
Systems checked and no recovery found 
– no response from the service 

Cyber 
Security 

2/09/22 The Council introduces a Chief 
Information Security Officer 
(CISO), or equivalent, reporting 
directly to Corporate Management 
Board. 

Medium A business case will be drafted to 
pursue funding for a CISO, this will 
then go to CMB for a decision. 

30/09/22 
 
Revised 
28/2/23 
 

In January 2023 a report to CMB to 
recruit a cyber security officer had been 
delayed due to structure and financial 
issues.  This report is the cornerstone of 
all the recommendations in the report.   
 
No further update received  

The Council considers further 
structured reporting to CMB 
(potentially utilising performance 
indicators and suitable metrics) to 
continually improve upon the need 
for regular, relevant, high-profile 
reporting on cyber threats to senior 
management.    

Medium This will be the responsibility of the 
CISO if agreed and appointed. 

30/09/22 
 
Revised 
28/2/23 

As above 

Cyber security is further 
highlighted within Council strategy 
and plans as a reflection of its 
importance to the ongoing 
achievement of the Council’s 
objectives. 

Medium This will be the responsibility of the 
CISO if agreed and appointed. 

30/09/22 
 
Revised 
28/2/23 

As above 

The Council introduces a record of 
the cyber risks faced by the 
Council, along with how they are 
analysed, assessed, prioritised 
and managed. 

Medium This will be the responsibility of the 
CISO if agreed and appointed. 
 
 

 

30/09/22 
 
Revised 
28/2/23 

As above 

P
age 101



Appendix B 

 
 

Audit 
 

Final 
Report 
Date 

Recommendation Category Agreed Action Agreed 
Date 

Current Position 

The Council compiles an Incident 
Response Plan/Procedure 
relevant in the event of cyber-
attack.  This is periodically tested 
with buy-in from across the 
organisation and periodically 
updated.   

Medium This will be the responsibility of the 
CISO if agreed and appointed. 

30/09/22 
 
Revised 
28/2/23 

As above 

The current e-learning is 
enhanced to include cyber 
security.  Training is to be 
refreshed from time-to-time so that 
officers Council-wide can continue 
to refresh their knowledge and 
understanding of cyber-attack 
methods and how to spot them. 

Medium No comment - Auditor note that 
this is aligned to the outcome of 
Ref 1.1 relating to the appointment 
of a CISO 

30/09/22 
 
Revised 
28/2/23 

As above 

Home To 
Work 
Mileage in 
Council 
Vehicles 

27/01/23 Information detailing employees 
who take vehicles home and any 
assigned vehicles should be 
documented and maintained 
within each service 

Medium Individual departments will be 
requested to maintain a register of 
who has an assigned vehicle.    

31/05/23 No response on progress from the 
service 

Climate 
Change & 
Energy 
Efficiency 

17/02/23 The Council should continue to 
actively try to recruit for the roles 
required to address the Net Zero 
Strategy. If unsuccessful, they 
should consider raising concerns 
with the Welsh Government to 
determine if support can be 
provided so that the skills gap can 
be addressed. 

Medium  Continue recruitment activity 
and review results after each 
round if not successful to 
assess performance of 
advertising locations used.  

 Consider using graduate roles 
if appropriate. 

 Work with Welsh Government, 
Welsh Local Government 
Association, Cardiff Capital 
Region, and other stakeholders 
to address gaps and access 
any available support. 
 

31/05/23 No response on progress from the 
service 

 

P
age 102



Appendix C 

 
 

Bridgend County Borough Council –Recommendation Monitoring  
 

Recommendations Made in 2021/22 Audits but Still Have Future Target Dates  
 

Audit 
 

Final 
Report 
Date 

Recommendation Category Agreed Action Agreed 
Date 

Current Position 

iTrent 
System 

5/11/21 The Council completes a new 
network connection agreement 
with the iTrent supplier. 

Medium Will send iTrent Supplier a BCBC 
External End User Agreement for 
sign up. 

31/12/21 
 

Revised 
1/10/22 
31/01/23 
14/07/23 
30/09/23 

BCBC ICT have been trying to get the 
agreement signed by the supplier.  
Meeting being arranged. 
 
More recent update delayed due to 
annual leave 

Direct 
Payments 

21/06/22 An exercise is needed to establish 
the DBS status of all PAs and a 
process adopted to ensure all DBS 
renewals are completed in a timely 
fashion and recorded and 
monitored appropriately 

Medium All DBS checks undertaken for 
new clients since September 2021 
are recorded on an Excel 
spreadsheet, which will prompt 
renewals to be completed every 3 
years, if required.  It is planned that 
all existing DP recipients will 
receive an annual review over the 
next 12 months, which will identify 
whether PAs require either new or 
DBS renewals undertaken.  These 
will be monitored on the 
spreadsheet. 

31/5/23 
 
Revised 
30/9/23 

DBS reviews delayed due to sickness so 
target date extended 

Payroll & 
Expenses 

21/06/22 The Expenses Policy and 
Procedure document is reviewed 
and, where applicable, updated. 

Medium A plan will be put in place to 
review the policy. 

31/03/23 
 
Revised 
31/10/23 

Slipped due to other priorities 

 

 

 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE  

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
28 SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

 
Report Title:  

PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS (PSIAS) - 
EXTERNAL PEER ASSESSMENT OF THE REGIONAL 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
HEAD OF THE REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

Responsible 
Officer:  

ANDREW WATHAN 
HEAD OF THE REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure 
rules as a result of this report. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

 This report sets out to provide members of the 

Governance and Audit Committee with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards External Peer Assessment of the 

Regional Internal Audit Service 

 Appendix A contains the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards External Peer Assessment of the Regional 

Internal Audit Service Report from the external assessor, 

Newport City Council. 

 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

became effective from 1st April 2013 (updated 2017) and 

introduced a requirement for an external assessment of all 

internal audit services, which must be conducted at least 

once every five years by a qualified, independent reviewer 

from outside of the organisation. 

 There are 305 best practice lines within the PSIAS; the 

Regional Internal Audit Service is currently conforming to 

305 of the requirements, with no partial conformance or 

non-conformance areas. 

 There were two areas for consideration which would 

further enhance conformance with the PSIAS, although 

these were not a significant concern: 

 

o 1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility (41) – 

To make reference to the Counter Fraud Strategy in 

the Internal Audit Charter. 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10



 

o 1230 Continuing Professional Development (96) – 

All Internal Audit staff to maintain a record of their 

training activities.  

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide members of the Governance and Audit 
Committee with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards External Peer 
Assessment of the Regional Internal Audit Service 
 

2. Background 
  

2.1. The United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards provides the framework 
within which an internal audit service should function. 

2.2. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) became effective from 1st April 
2013 (updated 2017) and introduced a requirement for an external assessment of all 
internal audit services, which must be conducted at least once every five years by a 
qualified, independent reviewer from outside of the organisation. 

 
2.3. The two possible approaches to external assessments outlined in the standard 

include either a full external assessment or an internal self-assessment which is 
validated by an external reviewer. 

 
2.4. Members of the Welsh Chief Internal Auditor Group (WCIAG) elected to adopt the 

self-assessment approach, with another member of the WCIAG undertaking the 
validation; a peer review assessment.  At the time this was agreed with the Section 
151 Officers and the former Audit Committees of the regional service. 

 

 
3. Current situation / proposal 

3.1. The assessment involved a validation of a self-assessment of conformance against 
the PSIAS undertaken by the Acting Chief Internal Auditor at Newport City Council.   
The external report is attached at Appendix A. 

3.2. The assessment comprised a desktop review of the self-assessment and supporting 
evidence and discussions were held with the previous Head of Regional Internal 
Audit Service to gain insight and views on the operation of the Internal Audit Team 
and adherence to the Standards. 

3.3. In summary, there are 305 best practice lines within the PSIAS. A review of 
conformance against the PSIAS was undertaken during the period February to May 
2023 by the Acting Chief Internal Auditor at Newport City Council, qualified via CIPFA 
with extensive internal audit management experience within local government. The 
Regional Internal Audit Service is currently conforming to all 305 of the requirements, 
with no partial conformance or non-conformance areas.  

3.4. There were two areas for consideration which would further enhance conformance 
with the PSIAS, although these were not a significant concern: 

 1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility (41) – To make reference to the 
Counter Fraud Strategy in the Internal Audit Charter. 

Page 106



 

 1230 Continuing Professional Development (96) – All Internal Audit staff to 
maintain a record of their training activities. 

 
3.5. As part of the self-assessment, the Regional Internal Audit Service, identified their 

own actions needed to strengthen arrangements where conformance was already 
being achieved. This summary can be seen at the beginning of Appendix C of the 
external report. 

 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 

 
4.1. The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. 
It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as 
a result of this report. 
 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 
Well- being Objectives 

 
5.1. The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 
 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report however effective 

audit planning and monitoring are key contributors in ensuring that the Council’s 
assets and interests are properly accounted for and safeguarded.  Conformance with 
national standards demonstrates a professional audit service continues to be 
delivered. 

 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 It is recommended that members of the Governance and Audit Committee give due 

consideration to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards External Peer 
Assessment of the Regional Internal Audit Service at Appendix A and acknowledge 
and endorse that it is fully conforming to those Standards. 

 
Background documents 
 
None 

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

 

 

 

 

Newport City Council  

Internal Audit Report 

 

 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

 

External Assessment of  

Regional Internal Audit Service 

 

Welsh Chief Internal Auditor Group 

WCIAG 

 

 

  

Date of Assessment Fieldwork February 2023 to May 2023 

Date of Report Issue 5th July 2023 

Report Status Final 

Report Author 
D Palmer CPFA, Acting Chief Internal Auditor, 
Newport City Council 

  

Issued to 
Andrew Wathan, Head of Regional Internal Audit 
Service 

Page 109



2 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) became effective from 1st April 

2013 (updated 2017) and introduced a requirement for an external assessment of 

all internal audit services, which must be conducted at least once every five years 

by a qualified, independent reviewer from outside of the organisation.  

 

1.2 The two possible approaches to external assessments outlined in the standard 

included either a full external assessment or an internal self-assessment which is 

validated by an external reviewer. 

 

1.3 Members of the Welsh Chief Internal Auditor Group (WCIAG) elected to adopt the 

self-assessment approach, with another member of the WCIAG undertaking the 

validation.  

 

2. Purpose 

2.1 The purpose of the external assessment is to help improve delivery of the audit 

service to an organisation. The assessment is designed to be a supportive process 

that identifies opportunities for development which ultimately help to enhance the 

value of the audit function to the authority. 

 

3. Results 

 

3.1 The assessment involved a validation of a self-assessment of conformance against 

the PSIAS undertaken by the Acting Chief Internal Auditor at Newport City Council.    

 

3.2 The assessment comprised a desktop review of the self-assessment and supporting 

evidence and discussions were held with the previous Head of Regional Internal 

Audit Service (MT) to gain insight and views on the operation of the Internal Audit 

Team and adherence to the Standards.  

 

3.3 In summary, there are 305 best practice lines within the PSIAS. A review of 

conformance against the PSIAS was undertaken during the period February to May 

2023 by the Acting Chief Internal Auditor (DP) at Newport City Council, qualified via 

CIPFA with extensive internal audit management experience within local 

government. The Regional Internal Audit Service is currently conforming to 305 of 

the requirements, with no partial conformance or non-conformance areas.  

  

Page 110



3 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

3.4 The table below summarises the outcome of the assessment. 

 

Standard 

Conformance  

Yes Partly No Total 

1. Mission of Internal Audit 1   1 

2. Definition of Audit Risk 2   2 

3. Core Principles 10   10 

4. Code of Ethics 13   13 

5. Attribute Standards     

Purpose, Authority and 
Responsibility (1000) 

20   20 

Objectivity and Independence 
(1100) 

29   29 

Proficiency and Due Professional 
Care (1200) 

21   21 

Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (1300) 

24   24 

6. Performance Standards     

Managing the Internal Audit 
Activity (2000) 

37   37 

Nature of Work (2100) 28   28 

Engagement Planning (2200) 52   52 

Performing the Engagement 
(2300) 

15   15 

Communicating Results (2400) 47   47 

Monitoring Progress (2500) 4   4 

Communicating the Acceptance 
of Risks (2600) 

2   2 

Total 305 0 0 305 

 

 

  

Page 111



4 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

3.5 This report contains three appendices as follows: 

Appendix A Action Plan to address non / partial conformance areas 

Appendix B 
Enhancing proposals for areas where conformance is already 
achieved 

Appendix C 
Completed checklist for assessing conformance with the PSIAS 
and Local Government Application Note (LGAN) 

 

 

3.6 There were no areas of partial conformance or non-conformance. There were two 

area’s for consideration which would further enhance conformance with the PSIAS, 

although these are not a significant concern: 

 1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility (41) – To make reference to the 

Counter Fraud Strategy in the Internal Audit Charter. 

 1230 Continuing Professional Development (96) – All Internal Audit staff to 

maintain a record of their training activities. 

 

3.7 As part of the self-assessment, the Regional Internal Audit Service, identified their 

own actions needed to strengthen arrangements where conformance was already 

being achieved. This summary can be seen at the beginning of Appendix C.  

 

Impact of non-compliance and steps to be taken to ensure compliance 

3.7.1 Any non-conformance with the Standards and the impact must be disclosed to senior 

management and the Governance and Audit Committee.  

 

3.7.2 In terms of the review that has been undertaken, the impact of the non-conformance 

is not relevant, such that the Regional Internal Audit Service generally conforms with 

the Standards in all significant areas and operates independently and objectively.  

 

3.7.3 No Action Plan is required. The Head of the Regional Internal Audit Service has 

agreed to consider the proposals suggested to further enhance conformance in areas 

already conforming and share this information with the Governance and Audit 

Committee. 

Page 112



5 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

Appendix A 

Action Plan to address non / partial conformance areas 

Standard Action to address non / partial compliance Who is responsible for 
implementing the action 

Timescale 

 
No areas of non / partial conformance identified 

 

  

P
age 113



6 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

Appendix B 

Further Action Plan – Enhancing proposals for areas where conformance is already achieved 

Ref Attribute / Performance 
Standard 

Compliant, but enhancing recommendation 
proposed. 

Who is responsible for 
implementing the action 

Timescale 

1000 (31-45) K To make reference to the Counter Fraud Strategy in 
the Internal Audit Charter.  

Head of RIAS Next review of 
Internal Audit 

Charter 
 

1230 (96) All Internal Audit staff to maintain a record of their 
training activities. 

Head of RIAS 2023/24 

P
age 114



7 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

 

Appendix C 

 

REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE – PSIAS SELF ASSESSMENT 2022/23 

 

Action Plan to address non / partial conformance areas: 

Standard Action to address non / partial compliance Who is responsible for implementing the 
action 

Timescale 

 
None 

 
None identified 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 

Identified Actions for strengthening arrangements where conformance is already achieved (As determined by RIAS November 2022) 

Standard Action to address non / partial compliance Who is responsible for implementing the 
action 

Timescale 

Core Principles for the 
Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing 

Include a direct reference to the Seven Principles of Public Life in the 
Charter & Audit Manual 

 

Head of Regional Internal Audit Service  Next review for 2023/24 

Core Principles for the 
Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing 

Include a direct reference to the Local Code of Corporate Governance in 
the Charter & Audit Manual 

 

Head of Regional Internal Audit Service  Next review for 2023/24 

Attribute Standards 1000 Include reference to the Counter Fraud Strategy in the Audit Manual  Head of Regional Internal Audit Service  Next review for 2023/24 

Attribute Standards 2010 Further develop the audit planning process by exploring the functionality 
available within the Pentana MK Audit Software to undertake a more 
systematic risk management process and options to link more easily with 
assurance mapping. 

Head of Regional Internal Audit Service During 2023/24 

 

 

 

  

P
age 115



8 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS  

AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT APPLICATION NOTE (LGAN) 
 

Glossary 

GC 

 

Generally Conforms with PSIAS - The relevant structures, policies and procedures of the activity, as well as the processes by which they are applied, comply with the requirements of individual 
Standard or element of the Code of Ethics in all material respects. For the sections and major categories, this means that there is general conformance to a majority of the individual Standards or 
elements of the Code of Ethics, and at least partial conformance to the others, within the section / category. General conformance does not require complete / perfect conformance, the ideal situation, 
successful practice, etc. 

PC 
Partially Conforms with PSIAS - The activity is making good-faith efforts to comply with the requirements of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics, section or major category, but 
falls short of achieving some major objectives. These will usually represent significant opportunities for improvement in effectively applying the Standards or Code of Ethics and / or achieving their 
objectives. 

DNC 
Does Not Conform with PSIAS - The activity is not aware of, is not making good-faith efforts to comply with, or is failing to achieve many / all of the objectives of the individual Standard or element 
of the Code of Ethics, section, or major category. These deficiencies will usually have a significant negative impact on the activity’s effectiveness and its potential to add value to the organisation. 
These may also represent significant opportunities for improvement, including actions by senior management or the board. 

N/A Not Applicable - The sections marked N/A do not apply to this assessment. Any n/a answers should be treated as generally conforming with the PSIAS.  

CAE 
Chief Audit Executive (CAE) - A generic title used to describe the person responsible for managing the internal audit activity. In the Regional Internal Audit Service it is the Head of Regional Internal 
Audit Service (HoRIAS). 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 116



9 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

 

  SUMMARY OF RESULTS GC PC DNC N/A 

A1 Mission of Internal Audit     

B2-3 Definition of Internal Auditing     

C4-13 Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing      

D14-26 Code of Ethics      

Ref Attribute / Performance Standards     

1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility (The sum of Standards 1000-1010) 27-46     

1100 Independence and Objectivity 47-54     

1110 Organisational Independence 55-60     

1111 Direct Interaction with the Board 61     

1112 Chief Audit Executive Roles Beyond Internal Auditing 62-63     

1120 Individual Objectivity 64-65     

1130 Impairments to Independence or Objectivity 66-75     

1200 Proficiency and Due Professional Care      

1210 Proficiency 76-84     

1220 Due Professional Care 85-92     

1230 Continuing Professional Development 93-96     

1300 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 97-100     

1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 101     

1311 Internal Assessments 102-111     

1312 External Assessments 112-115     

1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 116-117     

1321 Use of Conforms with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing 118     

1322 Disclosure of Non-conformance 119-120     

2000 Managing the Internal Audit Activity     

2010 Planning 121-144     

2020 Communication and Approval 145-147     

2030 Resource Management 148-150     

2040 Policies and Procedures 151-152     

2050 Coordination 153     

2060 Reporting to Senior Management and the Board 154-156     

2070 External service Provider and Organisational Responsibility for Internal Audit 157     

2100 Nature of Work     

2110 Governance 158-165     

P
age 117



10 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

  SUMMARY OF RESULTS GC PC DNC N/A 

2120 Risk Management 166-179     

2130 Control 180-185     

2200 Engagement Planning 186-205     

2210 Engagement Objectives 206-218     

2220 Engagement Scope 219-227     

2230 Engagement Resource Allocation 228-230     

2240 Engagement Work Programme 231-237     

2300 Performing the Engagement      

2310 Identifying Information 238     

2320 Analysis and Evaluation 239-244     

2330 Documenting Information 245-250     

2340 Engagement Supervision 251-252     

2400 Communicating Results      

2410 Criteria for Communicating 253-266     

2420 Quality of Communications 267     

2421 Errors and Omissions 268     

2430 Use of ‘conducted in conformance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’. 269     

2431 Engagement Disclosure of Non-conformance 270-272     

2440 Disseminating Results 273-278     

2450 Overall Opinions 279-299     

2500 Monitoring Progress 300-303     

2600 Resolution of Senior Managements Acceptance of Risks 304-305     

 OVERALL CONCLUSION – CONFORMANCE WITH PSIAS     

 

 – external assessment confirms conformance 

 – external assessment did not confirm conformance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 118



11 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

 

 

 

Ref Conformance with the Standard Generally 

Conforms 

Partially 

Conforms 

Does Not 

Conform 

Evidence Evidence Ref 

A Mission of Internal Audit      

1 Based on your review of conformance with other requirements 

of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and Local 

Government Application Note (LGAN), does the internal audit 

activity aspire to accomplish the Mission of Internal Audit as set 

out in the PSIAS? To enhance and protect organisational value 

by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and 

insight. 

   Internal Audit Charter   

RIAS Manual   

Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 

Strategy & Plan 2022-23 * 4 

Governance & Audit Committee Terms of Reference 

1    

2    

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4 

 Mission of Internal Audit    Internal Audit Charter - page 2  1 

B Definition of Internal Auditing      

2 Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of 

the PSIAS and LGAN, is the internal audit activity independent and 

objective? 

   Internal Audit Charter  - Section 2 - Independence & Objectivity (page7) 

 

RIAS Manual – Reference made Section 1 and Appendix D  

All auditors are required to make an annual declaration to comply with PSIAS and Code 

of Ethics as well as declaring any conflicts of interest. A register is kept of these. 

Internal Auditors appointed from within the Council are not permitted to perform an audit, 

which is any way related to their previous post, for at least 2 years after appointment. 

Internal Audit has no operational responsibility for any other service delivery but does lead 

on Fraud matters in the Vale & Merthyr and liaises with Fraud staff at Bridgend & RCT  

 

1 

 

2 

 

6 

 

 

 

3 Based on your review of conformance with other requirements 

of the PSIAS and LGAN, does the internal audit activity use a 

systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 

effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 

processes within the organisation? 

   Internal Audit Charter 

RIAS Manual 

Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 

Strategy & Plan 2022-23 * 4 

 

1 

2 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

 

 Definition      

C Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal 

Auditing 

     

4 Having regard to your review of conformance with the Code of 

Ethics (Integrity, Seven Principles of Public Life), do you 

consider that the internal audit activity fully conforms with the 

PSIAS and LGAN by demonstrating integrity? 

   Internal Audit Charter– Annex 2 Code of Ethics 

RIAS Manual - Section 3 Structure & Responsibilities 
 
Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 

Counter Fraud Strategy Framework 2021-24 – Introduction 

VOG Constitution – Section 23 (page 246 ) 

1 

2 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

24 

22 

 

P
age 119



12 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

5 Having regard to your review of conformance with the Code of 

Ethics (Competence, Confidentiality, Seven Principles of 

Public Life) and any other evidence from the review of 

conformance with Standards, do you consider that the internal 

audit activity fully conforms with the PSIAS and LGAN by 

demonstrating competence and due professional care? 



 

  Internal Audit Charter– Annex 2 Code of Ethics 

RIAS Manual - Section 3 Structure & Responsibilities 
 
Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 

 

1 

2 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

 

6 Having regard to your review of conformance with the Code of 

Ethics (Objectivity, Seven Principles of Public Life) and any other 

evidence from the review of conformance with standards, do you 

consider that the internal audit activity fully conforms with the 

PSIAS and LGAN by being objective and free from undue 

influence (independent)? 

   Internal Audit Charter– Annex 2 Code of Ethics 

RIAS Manual - Section 3 Structure & Responsibilities 
 
Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 

 

1 

2 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

 

7-13 Based on your review of conformance with standards, do you 

consider that the internal audit activity fully conforms with the 

PSIAS and LGAN  

a) By being aligned with the strategies, objectives, and risks of 
the organisation. 

b) Being appropriately positioned and adequately resourced? 

c) Demonstrating quality and continuous improvement? 

d) Communicating effectively? 

e) Providing risk-based assurance, based on adequate risk 
assessment? 

f) Being insightful, proactive, and future-focused? 

g) Promoting organisational improvement? 























 

 

  Yes, all the documents listed below support this 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

RIAS Manual 

Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 

Strategy & Plan 2022-23 * 4 

Counter Fraud Strategy Framework 2021-24 – Introduction 

VOG Constitution – Section 23 (page 246 ) 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

24 

22 

   Conclusion      

D Code of Ethics      

14-17 Integrity 

Based on your review of conformance with other 

requirements of the PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider 

that internal auditors display integrity by: 

a) Performing their work with honesty, diligence and 
responsibility? 

b) Observing the law and making disclosures expected by 

the law and the profession? 

c) Not knowingly partaking in any illegal activity nor 

engaging in acts that are discreditable to the profession 

of internal auditing or to the organisation? 

d) Respecting and contributing to the legitimate and ethical 
objectives of the organisation? 













 



 

 



 

  Internal Audit Charter – Section 2 & 3 

RIAS Manual – Section 3 Structure & Responsibilities 

Strategy & Plan 2022-23  * 4 

All auditors are required to make an annual declaration to comply with PSIAS and Code 

of Ethics as well as declaring any conflicts of interest. A register is kept of these. 

Internal Auditors appointed from within the Council are not permitted to perform an audit, 

which is any way related to their previous post, for at least 2 years after appointment. 

 

 

1 

2 

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

6 

 

18-20 Objectivity 

Based on your review of conformance with other 

requirements of the PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider 

that internal auditors display objectivity by: 

a) Not taking part in any activity or relationship that may 

impair or be presumed to impair their unbiased 

assessment? 

b) Not accepting anything that may impair or be 

presumed to impair their professional judgement? 

c) Disclosing all material facts known to them that, if not 
disclosed, may distort the reporting of activities under 
review? 























  Internal Audit Charter – Code of Ethics – Annex 2 

Vale of Glamorgan Code of Conduct & Register of Interests 

Annual declarations 

 

1 

7 

6 

P
age 120



13 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

21-22 Confidentiality 

Based on your review of conformance with other requirements 

of the PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider that internal auditors 

display due respect and care by: 

a) Acting prudently when using information acquired in the 
course of their duties and protecting that information? 

b) Not using information for any personal gain or in any manner 
that would be contrary to the law or detrimental to the 
legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation? 















 

  As above. 

Plus/ 

Annual mandatory idev training on GDPR  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 

23-25 Competency 

Based on your review of conformance with other 

requirements of the PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider 

that internal auditors display competence by: 

a) Only carrying out services for which they have the 
necessary knowledge, skills and experience? 

b) Performing services in accordance with the PSIAS? 

c) Continually improving their proficiency and effectiveness 
and quality of their services, for example through CPD 
schemes? 

















 

  As above 

Plus/ 

RIAS Manual – Appendix L – Quality Assurance & Performance Management outlines the 

continuous review process 

The 2 Audit Manager’s allocate quarterly workloads to staff based on the knowledge, skills 

and experience of individual auditors.  

Relevant professional training actively encouraged and supported – CIA being actively 

supported, recently appointed Graduate Auditors with a view to them studying CIPFA 

Support to complete CPD requirements for those with professional qualifications 

 

 

2 

26 Seven Principles of Public Life 

Based on your review of conformance with other 

requirements of the PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider 

that internal auditors, whether consciously or through 

conformance with organisational procedures and norms, 

have due regard to the Committee on Standards of Public 

Life’s Seven Principles of Public Life? 

   Yes – as above plus 

Counter Fraud Strategy & Framework  

VOG Constitution – page 246 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

 

21 

22 

 Code of Ethics Conclusion      

 Standards      

 Attribute Standards      

 1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility      

27-29 Does the internal audit charter conform with the PSIAS by 
including a formal definition of: 

a) the purpose 

b) the authority, and 

c) the responsibility 

of the internal audit activity consistent with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)? 









 

  Internal Audit Charter – Section 1 1 

30 Does the internal audit charter conform with the PSIAS by 

clearly and appropriately defining the terms ‘board’ and ‘senior 

management’ for the purposes of the internal audit activity? 

 

Note that it is expected that the audit committee will fulfil the role 

of the board in the majority of instances. 

   Internal Audit Charter – Definition of Internal Auditing page 3 

 
Board & senior management - page 3  
 

Governance & Audit Committees Terms of Reference * 4 

1 
 
1 
 
5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4 

31-45 

 

 

Does the internal audit charter also: 

a) Set out the internal audit activity’s position within the 
organisation? 

b) Establish the chief audit executive’s (CAE) functional 
reporting relationship with the board? 







 



  Internal Audit Charter  

Section 2 Independence and Objectivity states that the Head of Internal Audit has 
unrestricted access to the Chair of Governance and Audit Committee and direct access to 
Chief Executive, S151 Officer and Monitoring Officers and unrestricted access to Directors, 
Leaders and Audit Wales.  

 

1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 121



14 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

c) Establish the accountability, reporting line and 
relationship between the CAE and those to whom the 
CAE may report administratively? Where applicable, this 
will need to encompass shared service or external 
providers of internal audit, and the role of the contract 
manager. 

d) Establish the responsibility of the board and also the role 
of the statutory officers (such as the CFO, the monitoring 
officer and the head of paid service) with regards to 
internal audit? 

e) Establish internal audit’s right of access to all records, 
assets, personnel and premises and its authority to 
obtain such information and explanations as it considers 
necessary to fulfil its responsibilities? 

f) Define the scope of internal audit activities? 

g) Recognise that internal audit’s remit extends to the entire 
control environment of the organisation? 

h) Establish the organisational independence of internal 
audit? 

i) Cover the arrangements for appropriate resourcing? 

j) Define the role of internal audit in any fraud-related work? 

k) Set out the existing arrangements within the 
organisation’s anti- fraud and anti-corruption policies, 
requiring the CAE to be notified of all suspected or 
detected fraud, corruption or impropriety? 

l) Include arrangements for avoiding conflicts of interest if 
internal audit or the CAE undertakes non-audit activities? 

 

m) Define the nature of assurance services provided to the 
organisation, as well as assurances provided to parties 
external to the organisation? 

n) Define the nature of consulting services? 

o) Recognise the mandatory nature of the PSIAS? 



 

 







 



 

 





 











 

 

 







 







 

 

 

In addition, it states the governance of the provision of the shared service is carried out by 
the Regional Board made up of Chief Finance Officers for each Authority 

 

All aspects a) to o) are covered 

d)Section 2 

 

e) Section 1.18 

 

 

 

 

 

f) Section 1.10 

g) Section 1.11 

 

h) Mainly Section 2 of Charter 

 

i)Section 3.4 

j)Section 3.2 and additional references 

k) Counter Fraud Strategy & Framework – Section 10 reporting & Review & Fraud 

Response Plan Appendix 1  

 

 

l)Conflicts and declarations of interest are covered in the Charter -Section 2. The Head of 

RIAS does not undertake any non audit activities however if this did happen the processes 
set out in the Charter would apply.  

 

m)Section 1.16 of Charter 

 

 

n)Section 1.16 of Charter 

o)Page 3, point C of Charter 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
21 
 

46 Does the CAE periodically review the internal audit charter and 

present it to senior management and the board for approval? 



 

  Internal Audit Charter is reviewed annually and was most recently approved by the relevant 
Governance & Audit Committee on the following dates: 
 
Bridgend = 22nd June 2022 

Merthyr = 18th June 2022 

RCT = 18th July 2022 

Vale = 13th June 2022 

 

9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4 

 1000 Conclusion      

 1100 Independence and Objectivity      

47 Does the CAE have direct and unrestricted access to senior 

management and the board? 



 

  Internal Audit Charter  
 
Section 2 Independence and Objectivity states that the Head of Internal Audit has 
unrestricted access to the Chair of Governance and Audit Committee and direct access to 
Chief Executive, S151 Officer and Monitoring Officers and unrestricted access to Directors, 
Leaders and Audit Wales.  

 

1 

48 Does the CAE have free and unfettered access to, as well as 

communicate effectively with, the chief executive or equivalent 

and the chair of the audit committee? 



 

  As above 

 

1 

49 Does the CAE attend audit committee meetings? 

 

  Head RIAS and/ or the relevant Audit Manager attends Governance & Audit Committee 
meetings. 

 

 

P
age 122



15 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

50 Does the CAE contribute to audit committee agendas? 

 

  The Head of RIAS reports to all 4  Governance & Audit Committees the following items as 
per the Forward Work Plan and agendas  –  

 Annual Internal Audit Report 2021/22 

 Internal Audit Shared Service Charter 2022/23 

 Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Audit Plan 2022/23 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 

 Recommendation Monitoring Report 

 Governance & Audit Committee Self-Assessment 

 

10.1, 10.2, 10.3, 10.4  
 

 

51-54 Are threats to objectivity identified and managed at the following 

levels: 

a) Individual auditor? 

b) Engagement? 

c) Functional? 

d) Organisation? 















 

 

  The IA activity complies with the definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and 
Standards contained in Section 6 of the PSIAS, 2019 Edition.  
  
Individual Auditor 

 Vale of Glamorgan Code of Conduct & Register of Interests 

 Annual declarations 
 
All Internal Audit Staff members have signed a Declaration that they have read the PSIAS 
and that they understand that they must comply with the Standards and its Code of Ethics. 
 
Register of Personal Interests is maintained and consulted when work is allocated 

  
RIAS Manual 

 
Charter 

 

 
 

 
 
7 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6 
 
2 

 
1 

 1100 Conclusion      

 1110 Organisational Independence      

55 Does the CAE report to an organisational level equal or higher 

to the corporate management team? 



 

  Head of RIAS reports to Regional Board made up of Chief Financial Officer of each of the 4 
Authorities.- (Example of agenda provided ) 

11  

56 Does the CAE report to a level within the organisation that 

allows the internal audit activity to fulfil its responsibilities? 



 

  Head of RIAS reports to Chief Financial Officers of each of the 4 authorities and has 

unrestricted access to the Chief Executives 

 

57-58 Does the CAE’s position in the management structure: 

a) Provide the CAE with sufficient status to ensure that audit 
plans, reports and action plans are discussed effectively 
with the board? 

b) Ensure that he or she is sufficiently senior and independent 
to be able to provide credibly constructive challenge to 
senior management? 













 

  

Internal Audit Charter - Section 2 Independence and Objectivity 

 
Audit Plans and Annual reports approved by the relevant Governance and Audit 

Committee 

 

 
1 
 
4.1.2, 4.2.2, 4.3.2, 4.4.2 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

59 Does the CAE confirm to the board, at least annually, that the 

internal audit activity is organisationally independent? 



 

  Audit Strategy 2022-23 

Internal Audit Charter  

Annual Report 2021-22 

4.1.1, 4.2.1, 4.3.1, 4.4.1 

1 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

60 Is the organisational independence of internal audit realised 

by functional reporting by the CAE to the board? 

 

The ‘Interpretation’ to PSIAS 1110 provides examples of 

factors which may indicate that the CAE reports 

functionally to the Board, which include where the board: 

a) approves the internal audit  charter 

b) approves the risk-based audit plan 

c) approves the internal audit budget and resource plan 

d) receives communications from the CAE on 

the activity’s performance (in relation to the 

plan, for example) 

e) approves decisions relating to the appointment and 

   a) and b) annually as per Governance and Audit Committee agendas  

c) Partnership agreement agrees days and therefore contributions and budget monitoring 

reported to RIAS Board. GAC kept informed of staff resource within the regular Progress 

Against the Plan reports (see agendas) and the Annual Reports  

d) Progress Against the Plan reports to each GAC quarterly as per agenda 

e) and f) Head of RIAS was appointed by VOG Senior Management Committee involving 

chairs of the 4 audit committees. Meeting 6/12/18. Replacement will be via the Senior 

Management Appointment Committee meeting 3/11/22 with input from S151 and Chairs of 

GAC of the 4 participating Councils 

g) highlighted if necessary, in above reports  

9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4 

 

 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

P
age 123



16 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

removal of the CAE 

f) approves the remuneration of the CAE 

g) seeks reassurance from management and the CAE as to 
whether there are any inappropriate scope or resource 
limitations. 

 

 1110 Conclusion      

 1111 Direct Interaction with the Board      

61 Does the CAE communicate and interact directly with the board?    At Governance & Audit Committee meetings. Meeting minutes evidence Head of RIAS in 

attendance. In addition there are pre meetings with Chairs and training sessions when 

appropriate. 

 

 1111 Conclusion      

 1112 Chief Audit Executive Roles Beyond Internal Auditing      

62 Where the CAE has roles or responsibilities that fall outside of 

internal auditing, are adequate safeguards in place to limit 

impairments to independence or objectivity? 

   Not Applicable – Regional Internal Audit Service  

Internal Audit has no operational responsibility for any other service delivery but does lead 

on Fraud matters in the Vale & Merthyr and liaises with Fraud staff at Bridgend & RCT 

 

 

 

63 Does the board periodically review these safeguards?    Not Applicable – Regional Internal Audit Service 

 

 

 1112 Conclusion      

 1120 Individual Objectivity      

64 Do internal auditors have an impartial, unbiased attitude?    Internal Audit Charter – Code of Ethics – Annex 2 

Vale of Glamorgan Code of Conduct & Register of Interests 

Annual declarations 

1 

7 

6 

65 Do internal auditors avoid any conflict of interest, whether 

apparent or actual? 

   Vale of Glamorgan Code of Conduct & Register of Interests 

Annual declarations  

Declarations and any previous roles within the Council are taken into account by Audit 

Managers when allocating work 

7 

6 

 

 1120 Conclusion      

 1130 Impairment to Independence or Objectivity      

66 If there has been any real or apparent impairment of 

independence or objectivity, has this been disclosed to 

appropriate parties (depending on the nature of the impairment 

and the relationship between the CAE and senior 

management/the board as set out in the internal audit charter)? 

   There has been no instances of an auditor’s independence or objectivity being impaired. 
 

 

67 Does review indicate that work allocations have operated so that 

internal auditors have not assessed specific operations for which 

they have been responsible within the previous year? 

   As above  

68 If there have been any assurance engagements in areas over 

which the CAE also has operational responsibility, have these 

engagements been overseen by someone outside of the 

internal audit activity? 

   Not applicable 
 

- NCC external assessment  

 

69 Is the risk of over-familiarity or complacency managed 

effectively: for example by rotating assignments for ongoing 

assurance engagements and other audit responsibilities 

periodically within the internal audit team? 

   Whenever possible, as part of the annual planning process and audit allocation process, the 

Audit Managers will ensure that there is staff rotation of auditable areas if necessary 

 

P
age 124



17 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

70 Have internal auditors declared interests in accordance with 

organisational requirements? 

   Annual declarations  6 

71 Where any internal auditor has accepted any gifts, hospitality, 

inducements or other benefits from employees, clients, 

suppliers or other third parties (other than as may be allowed 

by the organisation's own policies), has this been declared 

and investigated fully? 

   N/A - Auditors have not accepted any gifts or hospitality but are aware of the Council’s Code 

of Conduct and the Gifts & Hospitality Policy.    

6 

72 Does review indicate that no instances have been 

identified where an internal auditor has used information 

obtained during the course of duties for personal gain? 

   No evidence to suggest auditors using information obtained during their duties for personal 

gain. 

 

73 Have internal auditors disclosed all material facts known 

to them which, if not disclosed, could distort their reports 

or conceal unlawful practice, subject to any 

confidentiality agreements? 

   RIAS Manual  

Charter & Code of Ethics 

All audits are reviewed by a Senior staff member prior to draft being issued. Code of Ethics 

requires that ‘Internal Auditors will perform their work with honesty, diligence and 

responsibility. Will observe the law and make disclosures expected by law and the 

profession’.  

2 

1 and 6 

74 If there has been any real or apparent impairment of 

independence or objectivity relating to a proposed 

consulting services engagement, was this disclosed to the 

engagement client before the engagement was accepted? 

   N/A 

NCC external assessment  

 

 

75 Where there have been significant additional consulting 

services agreed during the year that were not already 

included in the audit plan, was approval sought from the 

board before the engagement was accepted? 

   All 4 Annual Plans include an allocation for emerging risks or unplanned work. Any 

unplanned work will be included on the Progress Against Plan report to GAC 

 

 

 1130 Conclusion    NCC external assessment generally conforms  

 1200 Proficiency and Due Professional Care      

 1210 Proficiency      

76 Does the CAE hold a professional qualification, such as 

CMIIA/CCAB or equivalent? 

   CIPFA qualified. 

 

 

77 Is the CAE suitably experienced?    Head of RIAS has many years’ experience in the public sector and a number of years audit 

experience prior to becoming the Head of RIAS in February 2019, as well as CIPFA qualified 

he  is also AAT qualified and a qualified Programme Manager  with over 30 years Internal 

Audit & Senior management experience in  the public sector    

Deputy Head is also CIPFA qualified with over 30 years public sector finance & audit  

experience. 

 

78 Is the CAE responsible for recruiting appropriate internal audit 

staff, in accordance with the organisation’s human resources 

processes? 

   Recruitment & Selection undertaken in accordance with the Vale of Glamorgan 
Recruitment & Selection Policy as Vale is the host Authority.  
 
Adverts are placed externally and shared with partnering Authorities. 

 

 

79 Does the CAE ensure that up-to-date job descriptions exist that 

reflect roles and responsibilities and that person 

specifications define the required qualifications, 

competencies, skills, experience and personal attributes? 

   All job descriptions and person specifications independently evaluated and were updated 
during 2021 prior to the RIAS staff restructure 
 
All JD’s and Person Specs 

12 

80 Having regard to the answers to the other questions in this 

section and other matters, does the internal audit activity 

collectively possess or obtain the skills, knowledge and other 

competencies required to perform its responsibilities? 

   IA Charter – Section 3.4 to 3.7 – Resources and Proficiency  
RIAS Manual Part 3 Structure & Responsibilities & App D Structure implemented in 2021 
Person Specifications – specifies skills and knowledge required 

 
During 2021 staff were matched into posts within the structure, commensurate experience 
was demonstrated in some roles where the required formal qualifications were not held. 
 
The service has a qualified IT Auditor and some CIPFA + IIA qualified staff. It has recently 
recruited another IT Auditor and a number of graduates who will be undertaking professional 
training to increase the proportion of qualified staff. The Service also has a call off contract 
with SWAP to support with capacity and potentially specialist skills. 

1 
2 & 13 
12 

P
age 125



18 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

81 Where the internal audit activity does not possess the skills, 

knowledge and other competencies required to perform its 

responsibilities, does the CAE obtain competent advice and 

assistance? 

   SWAP Internal Audit Services are used if required. Not yet used for specialist skills, just 

additional capacity. 

 

82 Do internal auditors have sufficient knowledge to evaluate the 

risk of fraud and anti-fraud arrangements in the organisation? 

   RIAS Manual – Part  7 Anti Fraud, Bribery & Whistleblowing  

 
Counter Fraud Strategy & Framework and other fraud documents are available to all staff 
on staffnet  
 
Corporate Fraud Officer available for staff referrals / discussions at any time. 
 
Gaps in knowledge would be identified in individual’s its about me process 

 

2 
 
24, 23 

83 Do internal auditors have sufficient knowledge of key 

information technology risks and controls? 

   Staff have sufficient knowledge for audits that are allocated to them 
 
Gaps would be identified in its about me process and the post audit assessment reviews 
 
Assistant Audit Manager holds (ISACA) – CISA qualification and available if required to 
share knowledge 
 
ICT Auditor now in post and will assist in any complex IT issues 
 

 

84 Do internal auditors have sufficient knowledge of the 

appropriate computer-assisted audit techniques that 

are available to them to perform their work, including 

data analysis techniques? 

 

   Auditors do consider the use of technology-based audit and other data analysis techniques  
 
IDEA Training was undertaken by some staff pre Regional Service 
 

4 IDEA licences within RIAS so specific Auditors use IDEA for complex data analysis.  

 

 1210 Conclusion      

 1220 Due Professional Care      

85-89 Do internal auditors exercise due professional care by 

considering the: 

a) Extent of work needed to achieve the engagement’s 
objectives? 

b) Relative complexity, materiality or significance of matters 
to which assurance procedures are applied? 

c) Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control processes? 

d) Probability of significant errors, fraud, or non-
compliance? 

e) Cost of assurance in relation to potential benefits? 











 







 

 

  There is a statutory requirement for Internal Audit to work in accordance with the “proper 
audit practices”.  The PSIAS and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note have been 
adopted. 
 
Internal Audit Charter – Due Professional Care – 3.8 

RIAS Manual – 3.5 

Term of Reference template 

Report template 

e) N/A 

 
 
 
 
1 
 
2 
 
25 
 
20 

90-92 Do internal auditors exercise due professional care during a 

consulting engagement by considering the  

a) Needs and expectations of clients, including the nature, 
timing and communication of engagement results? 

b) Relative complexity and extent of work needed to achieve 
the engagement’s objectives? 

c) Cost of the consulting engagement in relation to potential 
benefits? 

















 

  All requests considered on merit; requirements are obtained in writing. If appropriate 
reports are produced and recommendations are made if necessary. 
 
Attendance on certain Boards if presence requested -eg) Information Governance Board to 
offer advice and guidance 
 

 

 

 1220 Conclusion      

 1230 Continuing Professional Development      

93 Has the CAE defined the skills and competencies for each level 

of auditor? 

   JD’s and person specifications 12 

P
age 126



19 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

94 Does the CAE periodically assess individual auditors against the 

predetermined skills and competencies? 

   “Its about me” which is a corporate staff development process conducted by line managers 

on their staff to identify development and training needs. 

Also, assessment is undertaken as part of the review of every audit piece of work by the 

relevant Audit Manager.  

 

 

 

 

14 

 

95 Do internal auditors undertake a programme of continuing 

professional development? 

   Those professionally qualified need to complete own CPD requirements 

Annual its about me – training and development discussed 

Opportunity to undertake professional qualifications regularly offered  

Idev –mandatory and optional training undertaken and recorded 

 

 

96 Do internal auditors maintain a record of their professional 

development and training activities? 

   Idev maintains a record of courses completed and information held by staff. This is reported 

in the Head of Internal Audit Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

 1230 Conclusion      

 1300 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme      

97 Has the CAE developed a QAIP that covers all aspects of the 

internal audit activity and enables conformance with all 

aspects of the PSIAS to be evaluated? 

   A Self-Assessment to ensure compliance with PSIAS is conducted on an annual basis by 
an auditor and any non-conformance is reported to the relevant Governance & Audit 
Committee. 
 
Since forming the Regional Service many documents and work methods have changed to 
form as standardised approach and to reflect the new audit software system. 

 

 

98 Does the QAIP assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the 

internal audit activity and identify opportunities for 

improvement? 

   Internal Audit Charter – Section 4 
 
RIAS Manual – Section 6 
 
IA has recently adopted a post audit performance and quality check undertaken by the 

relevant Audit Manager or Assistant Audit Manager following the issuing of a draft report. 
This identifies good practice and areas for improvement for the Auditor completing the 
work. 
 
IA performance / progress against the plan is reviewed by Audit Managers and reported 

to the Governance & Audit Committee on a quarterly basis  
 
Performance Targets developed in consultation with All Wales IA Benchmarking Group are 
included in the respective annual reports (Section 8) 

 
Client Satisfaction Questionnaires - The completed client satisfaction questionnaires are 

returned electronically and reviewed by the relevant manager 
 
See completed questionnaire 
 
Performance is raised at Team meetings and at Service wide staff meetings with staff 

involved in identifying how performance can be improved.   
 

1 
 
2 
 
14 
 
 
 
 
27.1, 27.2, 27.3 (RCT same 
format but GAC cancelled) 
 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
 
 
16 
 
 
 
 
15 

99 Does the CAE maintain the QAIP?    The PSAIS Self-Assessment is performed by an elected Auditor in consultation with the 
Head of RIAS and it is referenced in the Annual Reports 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

 

100 Are any statutory requirements for review of the internal audit 

activity satisfied? 

   IA Charter – Section 4 – Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme.  

 

Self-assessment undertaken annually and reported in Annual Reports along with the RIAS 

Service Performance.   

1 
 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
 

 1300 Conclusion      

 1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme 

     

101 Does the QAIP include both internal and external 

assessments? 

   Charter -  External Assessment (page 13) 
 

In compliance with the PSIAS, external assessment will be carried out once every five years 

by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside of the RIAS Councils. 

The External Assessment of the previous Shared Service between Bridgend CBC and the 

Vale of Glamorgan Council took place during in 2017 and RCT in 2017 and Merthyr Tydfil in 

1 

P
age 127



20 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

2019. The next external assessment for the expanded Regional Service will take place in 

2022. 

 1310 Conclusion      

 1311 Internal Assessments      

102 Does the CAE ensure that audit work is allocated to staff with the 

appropriate skills, experience and competence? 

   The relevant Audit Manager ensures that audits are allocated to appropriate staff members  

103-

104 

Do internal assessments include ongoing monitoring of the 

internal audit activity such as: 

a) Routine quality monitoring processes? 

b) Periodic assessments for evaluating conformance with the 

PSIAS? 









 

  All audit reports are reviewed by the relevant Audit Manager or Assistant Audit Manager 

Post audit performance and quality check completed each time 

 

See example of completed quality check  

 
 
14 

105 Does ongoing performance monitoring contribute to quality 

improvement through the effective use of performance 

targets? 

   Annual Reports – Key performance measures reported in Section 8 

 
Performance discussed at RIAS Staff Session August 2022  

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
 
15 
 

106 Is there a set of comprehensive targets which 

between them encompass all significant internal audit 

activities? 

   Performance Targets developed in consultation with All Wales IA Benchmarking Group. 
(WCIAG) and reported in all 4 Annual Reports 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
 

107 Are the performance targets developed in consultation 

with appropriate parties and included in any service level 

agreement? 

   Performance Targets developed in consultation with All Wales IA Benchmarking Group. 

(WCIAG) 

 

108 Does the CAE measure, monitor and report on progress 

against these targets? 

   RIAS performance is reviewed by management and reported to the Governance & Audit 
Committee in the annual report – Section 8 

 

Staff were informed via the annual report and the RIAS Service Wide Staff meeting  

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
 
 
15 
 

109 Does ongoing performance monitoring include obtaining 

stakeholder feedback? 

   Client Satisfaction Questionnaire issued after completion of each audit and outcomes 

reviewed and reported in annual report 

 

16 

110 Are the periodic self-assessments or assessments carried out by 

people external to the internal audit activity undertaken by those 

with a sufficient knowledge of internal audit practices? 

Sufficiency would require knowledge of the PSIAS and the wider 

guidance available such as the Local Government Application 

Note and/or IIA practice advisories, etc. 

   Annual internal self-assessments undertaken by Audit Managers.  
 
External Assessment undertaken by a qualified, independent assessor every 5 years, last 
time it was CIPFA for Vale and Bridgend and peer reviews for RCT and Merthyr  
 
Further External Assessment planned for 2022  
 
External Assessment undertaken during 2022/23 by Chief Internal Auditor and Audit 
Manager at Newport CC, both CPFA qualified with extensive IA experience 
 

 

111 Does the periodic assessment include a review of the activity 

against the risk-based plan and the achievement of its aims and 

objectives? 

   Monitoring of activity against the risk-based plan regularly undertaken and reported quarterly 

to Governance and Audit Committee – Progress Against the Plan Reports  

27.1, 27.2, 27.3 

 1311 Conclusion      

 1312 External Assessments      

112 Has an external assessment been carried out, or is one 

planned to be carried out, at least once every five years? 

 

   The External Assessment of the previous Shared Service between Bridgend CBC and the 

Vale of Glamorgan Council took place during in 2017 and in the other respective Councils in 

2018/19. The next external assessment will take place in 2022 via a per review by a Head of 

Internal Audit in another Local Authority. 

 

External Assessment undertaken during 2022/23 by Chief Internal Auditor and Audit 
Manager at Newport CC, both CPFA qualified with extensive IA experience 

 

 

113 Has the CAE discussed the alternative approaches to external 

assessment with the board?  

This should reflect the relative costs of   the different approaches, 

the potential advantages of an external viewpoint, and whether 

   The Welsh Chief Internal Auditors Group (WCIAG) considered the pros and cons of the 
types of assessment and agreed upon self-assessment with independent external 
verification – peer review.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
28 

P
age 128



21 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

there are factors which might be considered to warrant a 

demonstrably independent assessment. 

Peer review was agreed with the RIAS Board but they requested that it should be undertaken 

by a Chief Auditor who has experience of providing Internal Audit to more than 1 Council.  

114 Has the CAE properly discussed the qualifications and 

independence of the assessor or assessment team with the 

board? 

In doing this, the CAE should consider whether the 

assessor or assessment team has demonstrated its 

competence in both the professional practice of internal 

auditing and the external assessment process. 

Competence can be demonstrated through both 

experience and theoretical learning. Experience of similar 

organisations or sectors is more valuable than less 

relevant experience. In the case of an assessment team, 

not all members need to have all the competencies 

– it is the team as a whole that is qualified. 

If the capability of the assessor or assessment team is 

not immediately obvious, the CAE should document how 

they used professional judgement to decide whether this is 

sufficient to carry out the external assessment. 

If the assessor or assessment team has any real or 

apparent conflicts of interest with the organisation, this 

should be clearly explained to the board, and safeguards 

should be put in place to minimise the effect of this on the 

conduct of the external assessment. 

Conflict of interest may include, but is not limited to, being a 

part of or under the control of the organisation to which the 

internal audit activity belongs. 

   The Welsh Chief Internal Auditors Group (WCIAG) has established the scope of the 
assessment and the Terms of Reference identifies that the assessors must be 
appropriately qualified and competent. 

 

 

 

115 Has the CAE agreed the scope of the external assessment 

with an appropriate sponsor, such as the chair of the audit 

committee, the CFO or the chief executive? 

The CAE should also agree this scope with the external 

assessor or assessment team. 

   The RIAS Board agreed that the external review process as agreed with WCAG be 

adopted  
 
The external assessment was referenced in the Annual Reports (Section 9) 

 

The Welsh Chief Internal Auditors Group (WCAG) has established the scope. 

28 
 
 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
 

 1312 Conclusion      

 1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement 

Programme 

     

P
age 129



22 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

116 Has the CAE reported the results of the QAIP to senior 

management and the board? 

Note that: 

a) the results of both external and periodic internal assessment 

must be communicated upon completion 

b) the results of ongoing monitoring must be communicated at 

least annually 

c) the results must include the assessor’s or assessment team’s 

evaluation with regards to the degree of the internal audit 

activity’s conformance with the PSIAS. 

   The previous external assessments were reported to the relevant Audit Committees at the 
time. An example of the VOG & BCBC action plan in 2017 is provided 

 
Annual Reports confirm continuing compliance to the Standards – Section 9 and Progress 
in Section 10  

17 

 

 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

117 Has the CAE included the results of the QAIP and progress 

against any improvement plans in the annual report? 

   Annual Report -  Section 9 & 10 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
 

 1320 Conclusion      

 1321 Use of ‘Conforms with the International Standards for 

the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’ 

     

118 Has the CAE stated that the internal audit activity conforms with 

the PSIAS only if the results of the QAIP support this? 

   Annual Report -  Section 9 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

 

 1321 Conclusion      

 1322 Disclosure of Non-conformance      

119 Has the CAE reported any instances of non-conformance with 

the PSIAS to the board? 

   No deviations from PSIAS have been identified 
 

 

 

120 If appropriate, has the CAE considered including any significant 

deviations from the PSIAS in the governance statement and has 

this been evidenced? 

   n/a  

 1322 Conclusion      

F Performance Standards      

 2000 Managing the Internal Audit Activity      

 2010 Planning       

121 Has the CAE determined the priorities of the internal audit 

activity in a risk-based plan and are these priorities consistent 

with the organisation’s goals?   

   RIAS Manual – Preparing the RIAS Audit Plan - 4.8  2 

122 Does the risk-based plan take into account the requirement to 

produce an annual internal audit opinion? 

   Charter – Section 1 - Purpose  

 
Annual Reports – 1.4 

The 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan outlined the assignments to be carried out to enable the 

Head of Internal Audit to form an annual opinion of the Council’s overall control environment 

including, governance, risk management and internal control. The plan had regard to the 

continuing impact caused by the pandemic and the changes that have been made to the 

way the Council is operating. 

1,  
 
 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

P
age 130



23 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

123-

125 

Does the risk-based plan incorporate or is it linked to a strategic 

or high-level statement of: 

a) How the internal audit service will be delivered? 

b) How the internal audit service will be developed in accordance 

with the internal audit charter? 

c) How the internal audit service links to organisational 

objectives and priorities? 









 



 

  Charter  

Audit Strategy * 4 

1,  

4.1.1, 4.2.1, 4.3.1, 4.4.1 

126 Does the risk-based plan set out how internal audit’s work will 

identify and address local and national issues and risks? 

   Charter   

Audit Strategy – Section 6 

1,  

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

127 In developing the risk-based plan, has the CAE taken into 

account the organisation’s risk management framework and 

relative risk maturity of the organisation? 

   Charter   

Audit Strategy – Section 8 

1,  

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

128 If such a risk management framework does not exist, has the 

CAE used their judgement of risks after input from senior 

management and the board and evidenced this? 

   Meetings and emails between Chief Officers and Audit Managers during the planning 

process 

See example of reply from HoS 

 

18 

129-

131 

Does the risk-based plan set out the: 

a) Audit work to be carried out? 

b) Respective priorities of those pieces of audit work? 

c) Estimated resources needed for the work? 









 

  

 

 

 

The Annual Plan is approved by Governance & Audit and sets out the audit work to be 
performed, the priorities and the resources required. 

 

Resources are also discussed in the RIAS Board meetings 

See resources available to deliver the audit plan overall and per audit job 

4.1.2, 4.2.2, 4.3.2, 4.4.2 

 

 

28 

 

132 Does the risk-based plan differentiate between audit and other 

types of work? 

   Yes, consultancy, advice and guidance built in 4.1.2, 4.2.2, 4.3.2, 4.4.2 

133 Is the risk-based plan sufficiently flexible to reflect the changing 

risks and priorities of the organisation? 

   Contingency is built into the plan for emerging risks and unplanned items 4.1.2, 4.2.2, 4.3.2, 4.4.2 

134 Does the CAE review the plan on a regular basis and has he 

or she adjusted the plan when necessary in response to 

changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, 

programmes, systems and controls? 

   Each plan is monitored regularly by the relevant Audit Manager and Head RIAS,  

Regular meetings with relevant S151 Officers in each Authority regarding progress, issues 

identified etc, and  

Progress against the plan is reported to all 4 GAC’s quarterly. 

In progress v plan reports state if there any changes to plan or not  

 

 

 

 

27.1, 27.2, 27.3, 27.4 

 

135 Is the internal audit activity’s plan of engagements based on 

a documented risk assessment? 

   Corporate risk registers and service plans are used to inform the planning process as per the 

Audit Strategy (Sections 6,7 and 8)  alongside discussions with Senior Officer and 

Governance and Audit Committee 

It is planned to refine this process further making use of the MK Pentana software 

functionality  

 

 

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

136 Is the risk assessment used to develop the plan of 

engagements undertaken at least annually? 

   As Above.   

137-

140 

In developing the risk-based plan, has the CAE also given 

sufficient consideration to: 

a) Any declarations of interest (for the avoidance for conflicts 
of interest)? 

b) The requirement to use specialists, eg IT or contract and 
procurement auditors? 

c) Allowing contingency time to undertake ad hoc reviews or 
fraud investigations as necessary? 















 

 

  
 

a) All staff complete and are asked to maintain declarations of interest and Audit 
Manager had regard to these 

 
 

b) Have IT Specialist in team and Senior Auditors have developed specialisms which 
are considered. Also have the option to use SWAP 

 
c) Fraud and contingency provision is included in the audit plans 

 

 
 

6 
 
 
 
 
 

4.1.2, 4.2.2, 4.3.2, 4.4.2 

P
age 131



24 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

d) The time required to carry out the audit planning process 
effectively as well as regular reporting to and attendance of 
the board, the development of the annual report and the CAE 
opinion? 







 

 

d) This provision is also included in the audit plan for these items    

141 In developing the risk-based plan, has the CAE consulted 

with senior management and the board to obtain an 

understanding of the organisation’s strategies, key business 

objectives, associated risks and risk management 

processes? 

   Consultation meetings with Chief Executives, Directors, Heads of Service each year on the 
annual plan of work provides the opportunity for senior management to input to the risk-
based plan.  
 
This is completed using a questionnaire and meetings 
   
 
 

18.1 
 
 
18.2 

142 Does the CAE identify and consider the expectations of 

senior management, the board and other stakeholders for 

internal audit opinion and any other conclusions? 

   Annual Reports 2021/22 
 

 The Consultation with Heads of Service allows consideration of their expectations. 

 Quarterly meetings with External Auditors 

 Regular Meetings with S151 Officers 

 Pre Governance & Audit Committee briefings with Chair & Vice Chair. 

 Regular Governance and Audit Committee Meetings 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

143 Does the CAE take into consideration any proposed 

consulting engagement’s potential to improve the 

management of risks, to add value and to improve the 

organisation’s operations before accepting them? 

   As above, audits and consultancy work terms of reference takes account of any identified / 
perceived risks 
 
 

 

144 Are consulting engagements that have been accepted 

included in the risk-based plan? 

   If accepted they would be included in plan and therefore the monitoring reports. There is a 
provision in the plan for advice and guidance as well as a contingency provision. 

 

 

 2010 Conclusion      

 2020 Communication and Approval      

145 Has the CAE communicated the internal audit activity’s plans 

and resource requirements to senior management and the board 

for review and approval? 

   Covering Reports of the Strategy and Plan to GAC * 4 
 
 

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

146 Has the CAE communicated any significant interim changes to 

the plan and/or resource requirements to senior management 

and the board for review and approval, where such changes 

have arisen? 

   Any significant changes are reported to Governance & Audit Committee as and when they 
arise and included in quarterly the progress against plan report. 

 

 

27.1, 27.2, 27.3 

147 Has the CAE communicated the impact of any resource 

limitations to senior management and the board? 

   Vacancies and impact of Covid have been communicated to G&A Committees and RIAS 

Board Meetings along with mitigation until posts are filled including use of SWAP. 

11 & 28 

 2020 Conclusion      

 2030 Resource Management      

148 Does the risk-based plan explain how internal audit’s resource 

requirements have been assessed? 

   The number of audit days have been agreed in the RIAS business case and the plan is 
developed on this basis. 

 

149 Has the CAE planned the deployment of resources, 

especially the timing of engagements, in conjunction with 

management to minimise disruption to the functions being 

audited, subject to the requirement to obtain sufficient 

assurance? 

   As part of the consultation process heads of service etc are informed of audit work to be 

undertaken in their areas in advance of work being performed. As part of the planning for 

individual audits, management are informed that an audit is to be undertaken and issues 

regarding timing considered. 

An email is send to each Directorate after plan has been agreed to inform them of the planned 

work and request information in respect of best timings etc. 

19 

150 If the CAE believes that the level of agreed resources will 

impact adversely on the provision of the internal audit opinion, 

has he or she brought these consequences to the attention of 

the board? 

   Any resource issues e.g. vacant posts are reported to Governance & Audit Committee 

including impact in terms of slippage. Agreement to have an agreement with SWAP Internal 

Audit Services to cover for any shortfalls as and when required. 

 

 2030 Conclusion      

P
age 132



25 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 2040 Policies and Procedures      

151 Has the CAE developed and put into place policies and 

procedures to guide the internal audit activity? 

   RIAS Manual and associated appendices 

 
 

2 

152 Are the policies and procedures regularly reviewed and 

updated to reflect changes in working practices and 

standards? 

   RIAS Manual updated regularly to reflect any changes in working practices, standards & 

legislation. 
 
The RIAS Manual has been updated most recently to reflect the changes following the 
implementation of the audit software system and the adoption of processes across the 
RIAS   

 

2 

 2040 Conclusion      

 2050 Coordination      

153 Does the risk-based plan include an adequately developed 

approach to using other sources of assurance and any work 

that may be required to place reliance upon those sources? 

   Audit Strategy – take account of other regulatory bodies’ reports, - 15.1 

 
Regular Audit Wales meetings and Audit Wales reports 
 

Other regulators where appropriate 

 

4.1.1, 4.2.1, 4.3.1, 4.4.1 

 2050 Conclusion      

 2060 Reporting to Senior Management and the Board      

154 Does the CAE report periodically to senior management 

and the board on the internal audit activity’s purpose, 

authority, responsibility and performance relative to its 

plan? 

   GAC - Progress against plan reports 

Annual Reports 

RIAS Board Meetings  

27.1, 27.2, 27.3 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.5 
11 & 28  

155 Does the periodic reporting also include significant risk 

exposures and control issues, including fraud risks, 

governance issues and other matters needed or 

requested by senior management and the board? 

   Performance and progress relative to the Plan is reported to the Governance & Audit 

Committee on a quarterly basis. Issues identified within any limited assurance reports are 
detailed a well as any areas of concern including regular fraud updates 

Information also provided in the Annual Reports 

27.1, 27.2, 27.3 
 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.5 
 

 

156 Is the frequency and content of such reporting determined in 

discussion with senior management and the board and are 

they dependent on the importance of the information to be 

communicated and the urgency of the related actions to be 

taken by senior management or the board? 

   Quarterly reporting to the Governance & Audit Committee,  
 
Additional meetings may be called as required in exceptional circumstances. 

 

 

 2060 Conclusion      

 2070 External Service Provider and Organisational 

Responsibility for Internal Auditing 

     

157 Where an external internal audit service provider acts as the 

internal audit activity, does that provider ensure that the 

organisation is aware that the responsibility for maintaining 

and effective internal audit activity remains with the 

organisation? 

   Set out in reports and legal agreement for the expansion of Regional Internal Audit Service. 

Tender exercise undertaken and contract awarded to SWAP Internal Audit Services to be 

used as and when required.  

 

 2070 Conclusion      

 2100 Nature of Work      

 2110 Governance      

158-

163 

Does the internal audit activity assess and make appropriate 

recommendations to improve the organisation’s governance 

processes for: 

a) Making strategic and operational decisions? 

b) Overseeing risk management and control? 

c) Promoting appropriate ethics and values within the 
organisation? 















  The following documents provide a systematic and disciplined approach: 
 

 RIAS Manual – Appendix F  

 Annual Reports 2021/22 

 IA Charter 

 Annual Plan 2022/23. 

 Progress against the plan reports 

 

 
 
2 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
1 
4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 
 
27.1, 27.2, 27.3 
 
 
20 

P
age 133



26 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

d) Ensuring effective organisational performance 

management and accountability? 

e) Communicating risk and control information to 

appropriate areas of the organisation? 

f) Coordinating the activities of and communicating 

information among the board, external and internal 

auditors and management? 





 



 



 

 

 

In addition, the standard audit report template states the audit will provide an opinion on “the 

adequacy and effectiveness of internal control, governance and risk management 

arrangements in place”. Risk and controls are explained in context of findings 

 

Annual Governance Statement  is included on the audit plan across all 4 Council’s for this 

purpose as well as this element being included in individual audits where appropriate 

 

 

 

164 Has the internal audit activity evaluated the design, 

implementation and effectiveness of the organisation’s 

ethics-related objectives, programmes and activities? This is 

an area where the CAE may be able to use other sources of 

assurance. 

 

   Annual Reports – to provide the Governance and Audit Committee with assurance on the 

whole system of internal control, including the adequacy of risk management and corporate 
governance arrangements and also audit reviews on the codes of conduct is included in the 
audit plans as well as a review of the Annual Governance Statements 
 
 
 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
 

165 Has the internal audit activity assessed whether the 

organisation’s information technology governance supports 

the organisation’s strategies and objectives? This is an area 

where the CAE may be able to use other sources of 

assurance. 

   IT audits are programmed each year to enable Internal Audit to assess whether the 

Authority’s IT governance supports its strategies and objectives.  

The Assistant Audit Manager is ISACA qualified and there is a new ICT Auditor post recently 

filled to ensure there is a level of expertise.   

 

 2110 Conclusion      

 2120 Risk Management      

166-

169 

Has the internal audit activity evaluated the effectiveness of 

the organisation’s risk management processes by determining 

that: 

a) Organisational objectives support and align with the 
organisation’s mission? 

b) Significant risks are identified and assessed? 

c) Appropriate risk responses are selected that align risks 
with the organisation’s risk appetite? 

d) Relevant risk information is captured and communicated 
in a timely manner across the organisation, thus enabling 
the staff, management and the board to carry out their 
responsibilities? 















 



 

  Risk Management is included on the audit plan across all 4 Council’s for this purpose as well 

as this element being included in individual audits where appropriate 

 

RIAS Manual – Appendix G 

 

 

 
 
 
 
2 

170-

174 

Has the internal audit activity evaluated the risks relating to the 

organisation’s governance, operations and information 

systems regarding the: 

a) Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives? 

b) Reliability and integrity of financial and operational 
information? 

c) Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and 
programmes? 

d) Safeguarding of assets? 

e) Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures 
and contracts? 

















 

 

  These elements are considered in all audits as appropriate. 

 

 

 

175 Has the internal audit activity evaluated the potential for fraud 

and also how the organisation itself manages fraud risk? 

   Counter Fraud Strategy Framework 2021-24  

Anti Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Policy 

RIAS Manual Part 7  Anti-Fraud, Bribery And Whistleblowing 

Annual Plan - Audit budget for fraud, error, and irregularities in each plan 

24 

23 

2 

P
age 134



27 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

176 Do internal auditors address risk during consulting 

engagements consistently with the objectives of the 

engagement? 

   Risk is always considered during all audit assignments. 

Corporate & Service Risk Registers are accessed 

Audit terms of reference and work programmes on MK Insight identify the risks 

 

 

25 

177 Are internal auditors alert to other significant risks when 

undertaking consulting engagements? 

   Risk is always considered during all assignments. 

 

 

178 Do internal auditors incorporate knowledge of risks gained 

from consulting engagements into their evaluation of the 

organisation’s risk management processes? 

   Knowledge of risks gained form consulting engagements are considered where necessary. 
 

Annual Reports - Analyses the work and overall performance of the Internal Audit Service 

and contains the assurance statement based on all the work undertaken during the year. 

 

179 Do internal auditors successfully avoid managing risks 

themselves, which would in effect lead to taking on 

management responsibility, when assisting management in 

establishing or improving risk management processes? 

   Auditors provide advice and guidance but would not directly be involved in risk 

management processes.  

 

 

 2120 Conclusion      

 2130 Control      

180-

184 

Has the internal audit activity evaluated the adequacy and 

effectiveness of controls in the organisation’s governance, 

operations and information systems regarding the: 

a) Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives? 

b) Reliability and integrity of financial and operational 
information? 

c) Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and 
programmes? 

d) Safeguarding of assets? 

e) Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and 
contracts? 



















 

  Annual Reports – Evaluates and provides assurance to Governance & Audit Committee 

on the adequacy of controls in respect of each Authority’s governance, operations and 

information systems. 

 

 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

 

185 Do internal auditors utilise knowledge of controls gained 

during consulting engagements when evaluating the 

organisation’s control processes? 

   Yes all relevant information is used  

 2130 Conclusion      

 2200 Engagement Planning      

186 Do internal auditors develop and document a plan for each 

engagement? 

   RIAS Manual – Section 5 : Conducting Audits including Appendix J detailed process 

and Appendix H – MK Pentana instructions 

Terms of reference then developed and issued from Pentana MK 

2 

 

 

25 

187-

190 

Does the engagement plan include the engagement’s: 

a) Objectives? 

b) Scope? 

c) Timing? 

d) Resource allocations? 











 

 

 

 

 

 

 See RIAS Terms of reference template 

 

Timing – when best to avoid or undertake the audit is asked of Senior Managers when plan 

is agreed and the Audit Manager makes every effort to take requests into consideration. 

 

The Auditor is allocated a number of days to complete each audit on their quarterly allocation 

and this allocation is reflected on the Pentana MK system where actual against planned time 

is monitored. 

 

25 

 

19 

191-

198 

Do internal auditors consider the following in planning an 

engagement, and is this documented: 

a) The objectives of the activity being reviewed? 

b) The means by which the activity controls its performance? 

c) The significant risks to the activity being audited? 

d) The activity’s resources? 













  RIAS Manual – Section 5 : Conducting Audits & Appendix J 

All documents and evidence are saved in an electronic folder for each audit and key 

documents are linked in Pentana MK 

a) Objectives included in the terms of reference and on work programmes 
b) Expected and actual controls included in work programmes. 

c) Risks included in work programmes 

2 

P
age 135



28 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

e) The activity’s operations? 

f) The means by which the potential impact of risk is kept to 
an acceptable level? 

g) The adequacy and effectiveness of the activity’s 
governance, risk management and control processes 
compared to a relevant framework or model? 

h) The opportunities for making significant improvements to 
the activity’s governance, risk management and control 
processes? 





 



 



 

 

d) Would be covered in initial meeting 

e) Service plans, performance indicators, staffnet reviewed 
f) Actual and expected controls are documented in Pentana MK 

 
g) All documented in work programmes 

 
 

h) Management action plan issued containing any recommendations made to make 
improvements 

 

199-

201 

Where an engagement plan has been drawn up for an audit to 

a party outside of the organisation, have the internal auditors 

established a written understanding with that party about the 

following: 

a) Objectives? 

b) Scope? 

c) The respective responsibilities and other expectations of 
the internal auditors and the outside party (including 
restrictions on distribution of the results of the 
engagement and access to engagement records)? 





 

 







 

  Not applicable to Merthyr VOG & BCBC but in RCT there is an agreement is in place for work 

on  SE Wales Corporate Joint Committee (CJC) 

29 

202-

204 

For consulting engagements, have internal auditors established 

an understanding with the engagement clients about the 

following: 

a) Objectives? 

b) Scope? 

c) The respective responsibilities of the internal auditors and 
the client and other client expectations? 













 

  Same process would be followed as explained above    

205 For significant consulting engagements, has this 

understanding been documented? 



 

  As above.  

 2200 Conclusion      

 2210 Engagement Objectives      

206 Have objectives been agreed for each engagement? 

 

  Initial objective is agreed at the audit plan stage as detailed 

 
This is developed during the initial meeting and are included on the terms of reference 

 
RIAS Manual – Appendix J 

 

4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

25 

2 

207 Have internal auditors carried out a preliminary risk assessment 

of the activity under review? 



 

  RIAS Manual Section 4 – audit planning and risk assessment process to develop the audit 

plan 

Once the audit has been allocated, the Auditor will discuss risk in the initial meeting with 

the auditee   

 

 

 

208 Do the engagement objectives reflect the results of the 

preliminary risk assessment that has been carried out? 

   Yes, the terms of reference will reflect any information gained by Auditors during the 
planning stage as well as the information gathered during the audit planning stage – risk 
registers, service plans etc  

 

209-

212 

Have internal auditors considered the probability of the following, 

when developing the engagement objectives: 

a) Significant errors? 

b) Fraud? 

c) Non-compliance? 

d) Any other risks? 













 

  RIAS Manual – Section 4 

The audit objectives are prepared by the relevant Audit Manager based on the information 

obtained when preparing the audit plans. 

This is the basis for the TOR of the audit. The Auditor discusses this with the Auditee and 

develops the audit scope, testing etc to deliver the scope. This takes into account 

governance, risk and internal control and also errors, fraud and non-compliance 

2 

P
age 136



29 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

213 Have internal auditors ascertained whether management 

and/or the board have established adequate criteria to 

evaluate and determine whether organisational objectives and 

goals have been accomplished? 



 

  Corporate Plans, Service Plans, Corporate Self-Assessments are available and Corporate 

Self Assessment is included in 2022/23 plan 

 

 

214 If the criteria has been deemed adequate, have the internal 

auditors used the criteria in their evaluation of governance, risk 

management and controls? 



 

  Yes, depending on the nature and type of audit being conducted  

215 If the criteria has been deemed inadequate, have the internal 

auditors worked with management and/or the board to develop 

appropriate evaluation criteria? 



 

  Yes if necessary  

216 If the value for money criteria has been referred to, has the use 

of all the organisation’s main types of resources been 

considered, including money, people and assets? 



 

  Yes if necessary but VFM audits not conducted recently  

217 Do the objectives set for consulting engagements address 

governance, risk management and control processes as 

agreed with the client? 



 

  Yes, depending on the nature and type of engagement  

218 Are the objectives set for consulting engagements consistent 

with the organisation’s own values, strategies and objectives? 



 

  As above.  

 2210 Conclusion      

 2220 Engagement Scope      

219 Is the scope that is established for each engagement 

generally sufficient to satisfy the engagement’s objectives? 



 

  RIAS Manual – Appendix J 
 

Terms of Reference is discussed with relevant Manager and Auditor, and this is also 
agreed by relevant Audit Manager before issue 

 

2 

220 Does the scope for each engagement include consideration of 

relevant systems, records, personnel and physical properties?  



 

  As above.  

221 Does this consideration include areas under the control of 

outside parties, where appropriate? 



 

  As above.   

222 Where significant consulting opportunities have arisen during 

an assurance engagement, was a specific written 

understanding as to the objectives, scope, respective 

responsibilities and other expectations drawn up? 



 

  N/A  

223 Where significant consulting opportunities have arisen during 

an assurance engagement, were the results of the subsequent 

engagement communicated in accordance with the relevant 

consulting standards? 



 

  N/A  

224 For each consulting engagement, was the scope of the 

engagement generally sufficient to address any agreed-upon 

objectives? 



 

  N/A  

225 If the internal auditors developed any reservations about 

the scope of a consulting engagement while undertaking 

that engagement, did they discuss those reservations with 

the client and therefore determine whether or not to 

continue with the engagement? 





 

  N/A   

226 During consulting engagements, did internal auditors address 

the controls that are consistent with the objectives of those 

engagements? 



 

  N/A  

P
age 137



30 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

227 During consulting engagements, were internal auditors alert to 

any significant control issues? 



 

  RIAS Manual Section 5 :paragraph 5.1  

During the conduct of an audit, auditors will be alert to any significant risks and control issues. 

2 

 2220 Conclusion      

 2230 Engagement Resource Allocation      

228-

230 

Have internal auditors decided upon the appropriate and 

sufficient level of resources required to achieve the objectives of 

the engagement based on: 

a) The nature and complexity of each individual engagement? 

b) Any time constraints? 

c) The resources available? 











 

  The individual audits are allocated to audit staff by the relevant Audit Manager.  

 

The audits are allocated to staff after considering a), b) and c) 

 

See staff allocation to audit job  

 

 2230 Conclusion      

 2240 Engagement Work Programme      

231 Have internal auditors developed and documented work 

programmes that achieve the engagement objectives? 

   Work programmes are developed for each audit in MK Pentana – see RIAS Manual – 

Appendix G – page 26 

2 

232-

235 

Do the engagement work programmes include the following 

procedures for: 

a) Identifying information? 

b) Analysing information? 

c) Evaluating information? 

d) Documenting information? 











 

  RIAS Manual Section 5 : Audit Testing and Appendix J 

See actual work programme 

2 

236 Were work programmes approved prior to implementation for 

each engagement? 



 

  Scope and objectives are approved by the Audit Manager for each audit and the Auditor 

will select the appropriate pre-approved programmes from the library of programmes for 

audits. Staff also discuss any queries with colleagues across the Service including the 

relevant Manager. Where staff are less experienced support is provided by the Audit 

Managers / Senior Auditors to guide them. 

 

 

237 Were any adjustments required to work programmes approved 

promptly? 



 

  N/A  

 2240 Conclusion      

 2300 Performing the Engagement      

 2310 Identifying Information      

238 Do internal auditors generally identify (sufficient, reliable, 

relevant and useful) information which supports engagement 

results and conclusions? 



 

  RIAS Manual Section 5 : Audit Testing and Appendix J 

Audit Manager will ensure during management review that information has been 
appropriately identified, analysed, evaluated and documented.  
 
In order to ensure the quality of the work performed by Audit staff, a range of quality 

measures are in place which include: 

 Supervision & direction of staff conducting audit work 

 Documented review of all completed audits by the relevant Audit Manager via the 
post audit performance and quality check by the relevant manager. 

2 

 

 

 

14 

 2310 Conclusion      

 2320 Analysis and Evaluation      

239 Have internal auditors generally based their conclusions and 

engagement results on appropriate analyses and evaluations? 



 

  RIAS Manual Section 5 : Audit Testing and Appendix J 

Audit Manager will ensure during management review that information has been 
appropriately identified, analysed, evaluated, and documented.  

 

2 

14 

240-

244 

Have internal auditors generally remained alert to the possibility 

of the following when performing their individual audits, and has 

this been documented: 







  RIAS Manual Section 5 : Audit Testing and Appendix J 

Audit Manager will ensure during management review that information has been 
appropriately identified, analysed, evaluated and documented.  

2 

14 

P
age 138



31 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

a) Intentional wrongdoing? 

b) Errors and omissions? 

c) Poor value for money? 

d) Failure to comply with management policy? 

e) Conflicts of interest? 











 

 

 

 2320 Conclusion      

 2330 Documenting Information      

245 Have internal auditors documented the relevant information 

required to support engagement conclusions and results? 



 

  As above. All working papers & audit reports are reviewed to ensure this is the case. 
 
 

 

246 Are working papers sufficiently complete and detailed to enable 

another experienced internal auditor with no previous connection 

with the audit to ascertain what work was performed, to re-

perform it if necessary and to support the conclusions reached? 

   RIAS Manual and Appendix J 

Standardised work programmes and linked evidence in MK Pentana 

Relevant Audit Manager, during review process, will ensure that the working papers are 

sufficiently detailed and support the report’s conclusions.  

 

2 

 

 

14 

247 Does the CAE control access to engagement records?    Pentana MK is a cloud based application with security access in place 
 

 

 

248 Has the CAE obtained the approval of senior management 

and/or legal counsel as appropriate before releasing such 

records to external parties? 



 

  The Head of RIAS would only release information after advice from the relevant Information 
Governance Manager.  

 

 

249 Has the CAE developed and implemented retention 

requirements for all types of engagement records? 



 
  VOG Retention Schedule is used as Vale is the host authority – information kept for 7 

years 

Pentana MK can allow archiving of information 

 

26 

250 Are the retention requirements for engagement records 

consistent with the organisation’s own guidelines as well as any 

relevant regulatory or other requirements? 



 

  As above  

 2330 Conclusion      

 2340 Engagement Supervision      

251 Are all engagements properly supervised to ensure that 

objectives are achieved, quality is assured and that staff are 

developed? 

   RIAS Manual and Appendix K – Audit Reporting 

RIAS Manual and Appendix L – Quality Assurance 

Audit Managers undertake audit reviews and the results are recorded on the  Post Audit 

Performance & Quality Check form included in Appendix K 

2 

 

14 

252 Is appropriate evidence of supervision documented and retained 

for each engagement? 

   RIAS Manual and Appendix H – Pentana MK User Manual  

All work programmes within Pentana MK are examined and signed off during the audit 

review by the relevant Audit Manager.  

Review points are also raised in MK for Auditors to action and review points on draft reports 

retained   

2 

 2340 Conclusion      

 2400 Communicating Results      

 2410 Criteria for Communicating      

253-

256 

Do the communications of engagement results include the 

following: 

a) The engagement’s objectives? 







  RIAS Manual and Appendix J – Managing Audit Assignments & Appendix K – Audit 

Reporting 

 

2 
 
 
20 

P
age 139



32 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

b) The scope of the engagement? 

c) Applicable conclusions? 

d) Recommendations and action plans, if appropriate? 





 

Report Template- Internal Audit reports include the scope & objectives, conclusions and 

recommendations of the audit. 

 

See example of a completed audit report 

 

 

257 Do internal auditors generally discuss the contents of the draft 

final reports with the appropriate levels of management to 

confirm factual accuracy, seek comments and confirm the 

agreed management actions? 

   RIAS Manual and Appendix J – Managing Audit Assignments – Communicating Results 

page 9 

 

See evidence of discussion with management 

  

2 

258 If recommendations and an action plan have been included, 

are recommendations prioritised according to risk? 



 

  RIAS Manual and Appendix K – Audit Reporting 

Individual recommendations within the audit report will be categorised using colour coding 
as: 

 High Priority: Action that is considered imperative to ensure that the organisation 

is not exposed to high risks. 

 Medium Priority: Action that is considered necessary to avoid exposure to 

significant risks. 

 Low Priority: Action that is considered desirable and should result in enhanced 

control.  

2 

20 

259 If recommendations and an action plan have been included, 

does the communication also state agreements already 

reached with management, together with appropriate 

timescales? 



 

  As above. 

All audit reports include an action plan, which includes a column “Management Comments” 
and the “date to be implemented”. 

 

20 

260 If there are any areas of disagreement between the internal 

auditor and management, which cannot be resolved by 

discussion, are these recorded in the action plan and the 

residual risk highlighted? 



 

  As above. 

There is a column on the action plan “agreed Y/N”. If the Manager selects no the Auditor or 

Audit Manager will ensure that the risk is highlighted to ensure that the Manager is willing to 

accept this risk. This does not happen very often. 

Governance and Audit Committee receive a quarterly Recommendation Monitoring report 

and any recommendations not agreed will be highlighted in that report  

This information is also included  in the performance data in the Annual Reports Section 8 

 

 

20 

 

30.1, 30.2, 30.3 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

261 Subject to confidentiality requirements and other limitations 

on reporting, do communications disclose all material facts 

known to them in their audit reports which, if not disclosed, 

could distort their reports or conceal unlawful practice? 



 

  Internal Audit Charter – Code of Ethics – Annex 2 

Vale of Glamorgan Code of Conduct & Register of Interests 

Annual declarations 

1 

7 

6.1 

262 When an opinion or conclusion is issued, are the expectations 

of senior management, the board and other stakeholders 

taken into account? 



 

  Opinions are taken into account where relevant.  

263 Opinions should be supported by sufficient, reliable, 

relevant and useful information (in line with responses to 

questions for PSIAS 2300). 

 



 

  RIAS  Manual and Appendix J – Managing Audit Assignments 

RIAS Manual and Appendix K – Audit Reporting 

Audit Managers check that all conclusions are appropriately supported with evidence.   

 

2 

2 

14 

264 Where appropriate, do engagement communications 

acknowledge satisfactory performance of the activity in 

question? 



 

  Report Template – strengths are reported as well as areas for improvement 20 

265 When engagement results have been released to parties outside 

of the organisation, does the communication include limitations 

on the distribution and use of the results? 



 

  Report Template – standard text states “any enquires regarding the disclosure or re-issue 
of this document to third parties should be sent to the Head of the Regional Internal Audit 
Service via cmthomas@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk 
 

20 

266 Where the CAE has been required to provide assurance to 

other partnership organisations, or arm's length bodies such 

as trading companies, have the risks of doing so been 

managed effectively, having regard to the CAE’s primary 



 

  Yes – SLA in place for CJC.  

 

 

P
age 140



33 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

responsibility to the management of the organisation for which 

they are engaged to provide internal audit services? 

Other examples are bodies hosted by the LA eg) Amgen and Central South Consortium as 

they are hosted by RCT,  small body returns for Llwydcoed Crematorium, Coychurch 

Crematorium, Regional Adoption Service and Porthcawl Harbour 

  

 2410 Conclusion      

 2420 Quality of Communications      

267 Are internal audit communications generally accurate, 

objective, clear, concise, constructive, complete and timely? 

   RIAS Manual 5.6 & Appendix K – Audit Reporting 

 

 

2 

 2420 Conclusion      

 2421 Errors and Omissions      

268 If a final communication has contained a significant error or 

omission, did the CAE communicate the corrected information 

to all parties who received the original communication? 

   N/A but yes that would be the case  

 2421 Conclusion      

 2430 Use of ‘Conducted in Conformance with the 

International Standards for the Professional Practice of 

Internal Auditing’ 

     

269 Do internal auditors report that engagements are ‘conducted 

in conformance with the PSIAS’ only if the results of the QAIP 

support such a statement? 

   Report template states this and assurance is gained that the report is reviewed prior to issue 

to ensure there is compliance. 

20 

 2430 Conclusion      

 2431 Engagement Disclosure of Non conformance      

270-

272 

Where any non-conformance with the PSIAS has impacted 

on a specific engagement, do the communication of the results 

disclose the following: 

a) The principle or rule of conduct of the Code of Ethics or 
Standard(s) with which full conformance was not 
achieved? 

b) The reason(s) for non-conformance? 

c) The impact of non-conformance on the engagement and the 
engagement results? 













 

  Charter – 4.4 – reported to the relevant Governance & Audit Committee and the Regional 

Board with any significant deviations being detailed within the relevant Annual Governance 

Statement 

1 

 2431 Conclusion      

 2440 Disseminating Results      

273 Has the CAE determined the circulation of audit reports within 

the organisation, bearing in mind confidentiality and 

legislative requirements? 

   RIAS Manual and Appendix K – Audit Reporting 

Draft internal audit reports are issued to the relevant Group Manager / Operational 

Manager and the service manager. 

Final Reports may also be issued to Heads of Service / Director depending on the content 

and audit opinion. In 2 Councils they are also routinely sent to the Chief Executive and 

S151 Officer. In 1 Council they are also routinely sent to the relevant Cabinet Member.   

 

2 

274 Has the CAE communicated engagement results to all 

appropriate parties? 

   RIAS Manual and Appendix K – Audit Reporting 

Audit reports are issued to all appropriate parties. 

 

 

 

275-

277 

Before releasing engagement results to parties outside the 

organisation, did the CAE: 





  Audit reports are not released to parties outside the organisation without the knowledge of 
the Head of Audit and further advice is sought if necessary, prior to the release. All audit 
reports state the following: 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 141



34 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

a) Assess the potential risk to the organisation? 

b) Consult with senior management and/or legal counsel as 
appropriate? 

c) Control dissemination by restricting the use of the results? 











 

“Any enquires regarding the disclosure or re-issue of this document to third parties should 
be sent to the Head of the Regional Internal Audit Service via 
cmthomas@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk” 
 

20 

278 Where any significant governance, risk management and 

control issues were identified during consulting engagements, 

were these communicated to senior management and the 

board? 

   RIAS Manual and Appendix J – Managing Audit Assignments – Communicating Results 

(page 8) – consulting engagements dealt with in the same way as audit assignments  

 
 

20 

 2440 Conclusion      

 2450 Overall Opinion      

279 Has the CAE delivered an annual internal audit opinion?    Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 – Section 11 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

280 Does the annual internal audit opinion conclude on the overall 

adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of 

governance, risk management and control? 

   Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 – Section 11 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

281 Does the annual internal audit opinion take into account the 

expectations of senior management, the board and other 

stakeholders? 

   Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 – Section 11. 

There has been one example where the Council Leadership disagreed with the 

unsatisfactory annual opinion of the Head of RIAS and this was discussed at the highest 

level within the organisation on a number of occasions and at the Governance & Audit 

Committee. The Head of IA took into consideration the various comments and amended 

some of the wording but stood by the original opinion given. 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

282 Is the annual internal audit opinion supported by sufficient, 

reliable, relevant and useful information (having regard to the 

answers to questions on PSIAS 2300)? 

   Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 – Section 11 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

283-

286 

Does the communication identify the following: 

a) The scope of the opinion, including the time period to which 
the opinion relates? 

b) Any scope limitations? 

c) The consideration of all related projects including the 
reliance on other assurance providers? 

d) The risk or control framework or other criteria used as a 
basis for the overall opinion? 















 

 



 

 Annual Reports 2021-22 * 4 – Section 11 

 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

287 Where a qualified or unfavourable annual internal audit opinion 

is given, are the reasons for that opinion stated? 

   Yes.   

There has been one example for 2019/20 where the Council Leadership disagreed with the 

unsatisfactory annual opinion of the Head of RIAS and this was discussed at the highest 

level within the organisation on a number of occasions and at the Governance & Audit 

Committee. The Head of IA took into consideration the various comments and amended 

some of the wording but stood by the original opinion given. 

 

 

288 Has the CAE delivered an annual report that can be used by 

the organisation to inform its governance statement? 

   Yes  

289 - 

299 

Does the annual report incorporate the following: 

a) The annual internal audit opinion? 

b) A summary of the work that supports the opinion? 

 





  As per annual report for 4 LA’s. 

 

 

 

P
age 142



35 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

c) A disclosure of any qualifications to the opinion? 

d) The reasons for any qualifications to the opinion? 

e) A disclosure of any impairments or restriction in scope? 

f) A comparison or work actually carried out with the work 
planned? 

g) A statement on conformance with the PSIAS? 

h) The results of the QAIP? 

i) Progress against any improvement plans resulting from the 
QAIP? 

j) A summary of the performance of the internal audit activity 
against its performance measures and targets? 

Any other issues that the CAE judges is relevant to the 

preparation of the governance statement? 







 















 

 

 

 2450 Conclusion      

 2500 Monitoring Progress      

300 Has the CAE established a process to monitor and follow up 

management actions to ensure that agreed actions have 

been effectively implemented or that senior management have 

accepted the risk of not taking action? 

   RIAS Manual – 5.8 -   Recommendations and intended management actions are recorded 

with Pentana MK with the agreed timescales for implementation. These are monitored to 
ensure successful completion. Detailed process is included in Appendix K. 

 
Process  
Limited / No Assurance Opinion 

 Subject to a follow up to reperform testing 

 

All remaining audit assignments which have recommendations shall be  

 followed up via email ideally within six months of the audit review, but also 

dependent on the agreed implementation date supplied by senior management 

 

Quarterly report on Recommendation Monitoring is taken to the relevant Governance 

and Audit Committee. This will highlight those overdue and those not accepted by 

management 

2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30.1, 30.2, 30.3 

301 Where issues have arisen during the follow-up process (for 

example, where agreed actions have not been implemented), 

has the CAE considered revising the internal audit opinion? 

   If a previous limited assurance audit is followed up a new audit report will be issued with an 

appropriate audit opinion based on the recent testing. 

 

 

 

302 Do the results of monitoring management actions inform the 

risk- based planning of future audit work? 

   All recommendations are followed up by the relevant auditor to ensure implementation and 

if recommendations are not implemented the matter will be escalated and reported to 

Governance and Audit Committee as well as being considered for another audit. 

 

 

 

303 Does the internal audit activity monitor the results of consulting 

engagements as agreed with the client? 

   Reports issued as a result of consulting engagements i.e. additional unplanned work, are 

reported to Governance & Audit Committee and will be followed up in the same manner if 

any recommendations are made.    

 

 2500 Conclusion      

 2600 Communicating the Acceptance of Risks      

304 If the CAE has concluded that management has accepted a 

level of risk that may be unacceptable to the organisation, has 

he or she discussed the matter with senior management? 

   If the Manager does not accept a recommendation the Auditor or Audit Manager will ensure 

that the risk is highlighted to ensure that the Manager is willing to accept this risk. This does 

not happen very often. 

This is recorded onto Pentana MK and included in the quarterly Recommendation Monitoring 

report to Governance and Audit Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 

P
age 143



36 | P a g e  
 

RESTRICTED CLASSIFICATION – CIA PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR CIRCULATION / PUBLICATION  

 

 

The Percentage of recommendations accepted versus made are reports in the relevant 

annual report – Section 8 

 

305 If, after discussion with senior management, the 

CAE continues to conclude that the level of risk 

may be unacceptable to the organisation, has he 

or she communicated the situation to the board? 

   If the Head of Audit concludes that management has accepted a level of risk that may be 

unacceptable to the Authority, the issue will be brought to the attention of the Senior 

Leadership Team. If the matter remains unresolved this will be communicated to the relevant 

Governance & Audit Committee.         

 

 2600 Conclusion      

P
age 144



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE  

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
28 SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 

2022/23 - DRAFT 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHAIR OF THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Responsible 
Officer:  

                ANDREW WATHAN 
HEAD OF REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure 
rules 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

 The Governance and Audit Committee is required to 

approve an Annual Report for presentation to Council. 

 This report demonstrates how the Committee has met its 

terms of reference as per the Council’s Constitution as set 

out by the Local Government Measure 2011 and the Local 

Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 

 The Committee has achieved this by concentrating on its 

core responsibilities during 2022-23. 

 The outcome of the 2022-23 self-assessment process, 

consistent with previous years, demonstrates that the 

Council has sound arrangements in place in respect of its 

Governance and Audit Committee, noting that the level of 

knowledge and experience of members was good or 

satisfactory. 

 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to present the Governance and Audit Committee’s 

Annual Report for the Committee to determine whether it forms a balanced summary 

of the work undertaken by the Committee during 2022-23 and to approve its 

presentation to full Council. 

 

 

 

Page 145

Agenda Item 11



 

2. Background  
 
2.1 The Council’s Governance and Audit Committee has responsibility for ensuring that 

there are procedures in place to guarantee the adequacy and effectiveness of 
financial control and corporate governance arrangements. 

 
2.2 A key component of good governance for all organisations is to have in place a 

Governance and Audit Committee. Bridgend County Borough Council complies with 
this requirement; the Terms of Reference of the Committee, as included within the 
Council’s Constitution, are set in line with the Local Government Measure 2011 and 
the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. The responsibilities of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, as required by the above legislation, are included 
in Appendix 1 of the Annual Report (Appendix A).  

 
2.3 The Governance and Audit Committee and its Members are required to: 
 

•  Report to Council on the Committee’s findings, conclusions and 
recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
governance, risk management and internal control frameworks, financial 
reporting arrangements and internal and external audit functions. 

 
•  Report to Council on an annual basis and to publish an annual report on the 

Committee’s work, its performance in relation to its Terms of Reference and its 
effectiveness in meeting its purpose including a conclusion on compliance with   
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Position 
Statement on audit committees. 

 
2.4 The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 determined that former Audit 

Committees would be re-named Governance and Audit Committees and from May 
2022 the chair of the Governance and Audit Committee had to be a lay member and 
that one third of its membership had to be lay members.  Bridgend’s Governance and 
Audit Committee had its full quota of 4 lay members and 8 elected councillors during 
2022/23.  The Committee held 6 meetings during the municipal year. 

 

2.5 The Governance and Audit Committee focused on its core responsibilities:  
 

 Reviewing the draft financial statements;  

 Scrutinising and being satisfied with the Council’s Annual Governance  
Statement, to demonstrate how governance supports the achievement of 
objectives, and monitor management action in-year to further improve 
arrangements; 

 Monitoring the Council’s internal audit function in terms of overseeing 
independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism, through the regular 
reporting of performance and finalised audit assignments; 

 Considering the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements;   

 Considering reports and recommendations of external audit in respect of the 
Council; 

 Supporting the ongoing development and effectiveness of Governance and Audit 
Committee; and  

 Ensuring compliance with legal requirements, namely the Local Government and 
Elections (Wales) Act 2021, in respect of overseeing the Council’s performance 
assessment and the arrangements for handling complaints. 

Page 146



 

 
 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 This report at Appendix A, sets out the Governance and Audit Committee’s Annual 

Report for 2022/23, how it has complied with its terms of reference, and outlines its 
performance during the year, together with a self-assessment against the CIPFA 
publication ‘Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities & Police 
2022 Edition’. 

 
3.2 The outcome of the 2022-23 self-assessment process, consistent with previous 

years, demonstrates that the Council has sound arrangements in place in respect of 
its Governance and Audit Committee, noting that the level of knowledge and 
experience of members was good or satisfactory. 
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report. 

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9. Recommendations 

 
9.1 It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee review its draft Annual 

Report and approve the Governance and Audit Committee’s Annual Report and its 
presentation to full Council. 

 
 
 
 

Page 147



 

Background documents 
 
Local Government Measure 2011  
Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 
CIPFA publication ‘Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities & Police 
2022 Edition’ 
Bridgend CBC Governance and Audit Committee agendas and minutes for 2022/23 

Page 148



  

APPENDIX A 

 

 
 
 

Subject Draft Governance and Audit Committee 
Annual Report 2022/23 
 

Directorate:  Finance, Performance & Change  
 

Meeting: Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Date: 28 September 2023 
 

Division/Wards 
Affected 

All 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 0.4 

Page 149



  

1. PURPOSE 
 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to present the Governance and Audit Committee’s 

Annual Report for the Committee to determine whether it forms a balanced 

summary of the work undertaken by the Committee during 2022-23 and to 

approve its presentation to full Council. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 On behalf of the Governance and Audit Committee, the annual report for 
2022/23 is submitted for consideration by the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It shows that, over this period, the Committee has fulfilled its role 
as defined in its terms of reference.  
 

2.2 The report shows that the workings of the Committee continue to be both 
valuable and productive and that it provides assurance to the Council regarding 
the Committee’s activities in the effective governance of financial affairs and 
other matters by the Authority. 
 

2.3 That Governance and Audit Committee endorse this report and recommend its 
presentation to Council. 

 
 
3. INTRODUCTION  

 
3.1 The Council’s Governance and Audit Committee has responsibility for ensuring 

that there are procedures in place to guarantee the adequacy and effectiveness 
of financial control and corporate governance arrangements. 

 
3.2 A key component of good governance for all organisations is to have in place 

a Governance and Audit Committee. Bridgend County Borough Council 
complies with this requirement; the Terms and Reference of the Committee, as 
included within the Council’s Constitution, are set in line with the Local 
Government Measure 2011 and the Local Government and Elections (Wales) 
Act 2021. The responsibilities of Governance and Audit Committee, as required 
by the above legislation, are included at Appendix 1 of this report.  
 

3.3 The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 determined that former 
Audit Committees would be re-named Governance and Audit Committees and  
from May 2022 the Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee had to be a 
lay member and that one third of its membership had to be lay members.  
Bridgend’s Governance and Audit Committee had its full quota of 4 lay 
members and 8 elected councillors during 2022/23.  The Committee held 6 
meetings during the municipal year. 
 

3.4 Changes to the way the Council is operating since Covid-19, including new risks 
as a result of different ways of working, remote and digital working and other 
service changes have continued to influence the delivery of Council services. 
The Governance and Audit Committee was mindful of this in setting its workplan 

Page 150



  

for the year and also of the need for robust and proportionate oversight of the 
Council’s governance, internal control and risk managements to be in place. 
The Governance and Audit Committee focussed on its core responsibilities:  

 

 Reviewing the draft financial statements;  

 Scrutinising and being satisfied with the Council’s Annual Governance  
Statement, to demonstrate how governance supports the achievement of 
objectives, and monitor management action in-year to further improve 
arrangements; 

 Monitoring the Council’s internal audit function in terms of overseeing 
independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism, through the 
regular reporting of performance and finalised audit assignments; 

 Considering the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management 
arrangements;   

 Considering reports and recommendations of external audit in respect of 
the Council; 

 Supporting the ongoing development and effectiveness of Governance and 
Audit Committee; and  

 Ensuring compliance with legal requirements, namely the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, in respect of overseeing the 
Council’s performance assessment and the arrangements for handling 
complaints. 

 
3.5 All reports presented to the Governance and Audit Committee during 2022/23 

are shown at Appendix 2. 
 
4. WORK DELIVERED IN 2022/23  

 
4.1 The CIPFA Guidance (‘Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local 

Authorities & Police 2022 Edition’) identifies ‘Core Functions’ of a Governance 
and Audit Committee along with what it refers to as possible ‘wider functions’ of 
a Governance and Audit Committee.  The Committee undertook its role during 
2022/23 by receiving a comprehensive suite of reports in line with its work 
programme for the year, as shown at Appendix 2. 
 

4.2 Be satisfied that the Council’s assurance statements, including the annual 
governance statement (AGS), properly reflect the risk environment and any 
actions required to improve it, and demonstrate how governance supports the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives. 
 

4.2.1 The Draft AGS for 2021/22 was reported to the Governance and Audit 
Committee; the Committee endorsed it and recommended its 
certification by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive for 
inclusion within the Council’s 2021/22 Statement of Accounts. As part of 
this process, the Review of Effectiveness and proposals for improvement 
have been reviewed and challenged by the Council’s Corporate 
Management Board and Governance and Audit Committee. 
 

4.2.2 For information, the draft AGS for 2022/23 was presented to the 
Governance and Audit Committee in July 2023.  

Page 151



  

 

4.3 Internal Audit functions: 
 

 oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and 
professionalism;  

 support the effectiveness of the internal audit process; 

 promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance 
framework.  

 
4.3.1 From the 1st April 2019 the Council’s Internal Audit Service transferred 

to a Regional Internal Audit Service, hosted by the Vale of Glamorgan 
Council and comprising four local authorities: Bridgend County Borough 
Council, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, Rhondda Cynon Taf 
County Borough Council and Vale of Glamorgan Council.  

 
4.3.2 The Covid-19 pandemic required Council Services to quickly adapt and 

implement changes to service delivery arrangements to ensure 
continued provision of essential frontline services.  Although the situation 
settled during 2022/23, an assessment of key risks and changes in 
service delivery arrangements were taken into account as part of 
compiling the Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Risk Based Internal 
Audit Plan 2022/23. 

 

4.3.3 The Internal Audit Annual Plan for 2022/23 was reported to and 
approved by the Governance and Audit Committee. The Head of the 
Regional Internal Audit Service outlined that the proposed plan would 
need to continue to recognise particular risks and challenges arising from 
revised working arrangements, such as remote ways of working. 

 

4.3.4 During the year, the Governance and Audit Committee received Internal 
Audit performance updates, details of all finalised audit assignments and 
progress on implementation of audit recommendations; this suite of 
information has enabled Members to consider the effectiveness of the 
Internal Audit process for 2022/23. 

 

4.3.5  A key part of the Governance and Audit Committee’s role is to support 
the Council’s Internal Audit Service to remain independent, assess 
whether it has adequate resources available to it and to monitor the 
performance and quality of work delivered throughout the year. The 
Internal Audit Service fulfilled this requirement through its Internal Audit 
Charter, that was presented to and approved by the Governance and 
Audit Committee and provided the Committee with information to assess 
the independence of the Internal Audit Service.  

 
4.4 Monitor the effectiveness of the control environment, including arrangements 

for ensuring value for money, supporting standards and ethics and for 
managing the authority’s exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption. 
 

Page 152



  

4.4.1 Only 1 Limited Assurance audit report was issued in 2022/23 which was 
reported to the Governance and Audit Committee within Internal Audit’s 
(IA) ‘Progress against the IA Risk Based Plan 2022-23 reports during the 
year. The results of Internal Audit’s work for the financial year is brought 
together in the form of the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report, which 
for 2021/22 was reported to Committee in June 2022.  For 2022/23 the 
Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report was reported in the first half of 
the 2023/24 financial year. 

 
4.4.2 Based on the internal audit reviews completed during 2021/22, the 

overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and internal control for 
2021/22 was Reasonable - is ‘Effective with a small number of areas 
identified for improvement’.  In addition, no significant cross-cutting 
control issues have been identified that would impact on the Council’s 
overall control environment and the weaknesses that have been 
identified are service specific. 

 

4.4.3 1 audit assignment completed to final report stage during 2021/22 
received an audit opinion of Limited Assurance, there were no No 
Assurance opinions.  This audit was followed up during 2022/23 and was 
given a Reasonable Assurance audit opinion.  

 

4.4.4 With regard to the risks of fraud and corruption: 
 

 In July 2022 the Annual Corporate Fraud Report 2021/22 was 
presented. This update provided assurance on the Council’s 
arrangements to tackle potential fraud and covered the internal 
control environment that supports this area.  

 The Anti-tax Evasion Policy was reported to Committee prior to it 
being presented to Cabinet for approval. 

 
4.5 Consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements 

and the control environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and 
assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues, including 
partnerships and collaborations with other organisations. 
 
4.5.1 Quarterly updates were presented to Committee throughout the year 

which enabled officers and Members to identify and assess trends and 
the crosscutting nature of risks with the ability to drill down to the detail 
of risks as and when required. 
 

4.5.2 The draft AGS was presented prior to its inclusion with the Statement of 
Accounts.  

 

4.5.3 In line with the requirements of the Local Government and Elections 
(Wales) Act 2021, the Committee reviewed the Council’s draft Self-
Assessment for 2021/22 (incorporating the Council’s Corporate 
Performance Report) in advance of consideration at a meeting of the full 

Page 153



  

Council (noting that the self-assessment included information in respect 
of partnership / collaboration arrangements).  

 

 
4.6 Review the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and reports to 

members, and monitor management action in response to the issues raised by 
external audit. 
 
4.6.1 Governance and Audit Committee were presented with the draft 2021/22 

Statements of Account for the Council and Audit Wales provided a verbal 
update on the progress on the audit of those accounts;  they informed 
the Committee that no significant matters had been identified to date 
although there were delays due to the issues around infrastructure 
assets.  

 
4.6.2 Following review by Committee, the Council’s 2021/22 audited 

Statement of Accounts were reported back through Cabinet and 
approved by full Council; an unqualified opinion was issued by Audit 
Wales (i.e. clean bill of health). 

 

4.6.3 The Council’s Treasury Management and Investment Strategy was 
updated and presented to Committee for review prior to it being reporting 
to full Council. 

 

4.7 Consider the reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection 
agencies and their implications for governance, risk management or control. 

 
4.7.1 At the first Governance and Audit Committee meeting of the 2022/23 

Municipal Year, Audit Wales reported the 2022 Audit Plan for the 
Council, and thereafter provided quarterly Audit Wales Work Programme 
Updates during the year to enable the Committee to be kept up-to-date 
with the work of Audit Wales and providing opportunity to seek clarity / 
further information where deemed required. 

 
4.7.2 Audit Wales presented finalised reports to the Governance and Audit 

Committee during the year (accompanied by Council progress updates 
on the implementation of recommendations / proposals for improvement 
contained within the reports): 

 

 Direct Payments for Adult Social Care 

 Assurance and Risk Assessment Review for 2021/22  

 Springing Forward – Strategic Workforce Management – Bridgend 
County Borough Council 

 Springing Forward – Strategic Asset Management – Bridgend 
County Borough Council 

 Transformational Leadership Programme Board – Baseline 
Governance Review – Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional Partnership 
Board 

Page 154



  

 Performance Management Review - Bridgend County Borough 
Council 

 

5. SELF-ASSESSMENT AGAINST THE CIPFA PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR 
LOCAL AUTHORITIES & POLICE 2018 EDITION 

 
5.1 The self-assessment checklist based on the CIPFA Guidance was circulated to 

members of the Committee in order to assess the existing skills, knowledge and 
areas of expertise of members and to identify any gaps or training requirements. 

 
5.2 88% of responses from members of this Committee indicated that their level of 

knowledge and experience across the 10 statements, as shown in Appendix 
3, was good or satisfactory. The areas where little knowledge or experience 
was indicated as highest were Complaints Handling and Council Performance 
Self-Assessment. 

 

5.3 The results indicate that Governance and Audit Committee members have an 
overall sound base of knowledge and experience in the areas of responsibility 
for this Committee. 
 

6. CONCLUSIONS 
 

6.1 During 2022/23 the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee has reviewed 
and challenged a range of topic areas, including the work of Internal and 
External Audit, the Committee’s responsibilities as set out in the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 and its responsibility in respect of 
reviewing and scrutinising the Council’s Treasury Management arrangements. 
  

6.2 From a review of the coverage of Governance and Audit Committee’s work and 
oversight during the year, as set out in Section 2, it is considered that the 
Committee has delivered its workplan and responsibilities in line with its Terms 
of Reference. 
 

6.3 The Annual Report also sets out, in Section 5 / Appendix 3, the results of the 
self-assessment undertaken against the checklist included within the CIPFA 
Guidance. The outcome of the 2022/23 self-assessment process, consistent 
with previous years, demonstrates that the Council has sound arrangements in 
place in respect of its Governance and Audit Committee, noting that the level 
of knowledge and experience of members was good or satisfactory.  

 
 
 

Page 155



  

Appendix 1 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE IN LINE WITH THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (WALES) MEASURE 2011 AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND 

ELECTIONS (WALES) ACT 2021 
 
 

Chapter 2, section 81 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 (revised) 
 
Local authorities to appoint governance and audit committees 

A local authority must appoint a committee (a “Governance and Audit Committee”) to— 
a) review and scrutinise the authority's financial affairs, 
b) make reports and recommendations in relation to the authority's financial affairs, 
c) review and assess the risk management, internal control and corporate governance 

arrangements of the authority, 
d) make reports and recommendations to the authority on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of those arrangements, 

(da) review and assess the authority's ability to handle complaints effectively, 

(db)make reports and recommendations in relation to the authority's ability to handle 

complaints effectively 

e) oversee the authority's internal and external audit arrangements, and 
f) review the financial statements prepared by the authority. 

 
A local authority may confer on its Governance and Audit Committee such other functions 
as the authority considers suitable to be exercised by such a committee. 

 
It is for a Governance and Audit Committee to determine how to exercise its functions. 

 
 

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021  
 

Council Performance Arrangements 
(i)To consider the Council’s draft Annual Performance Self-Assessment report and if deemed 
necessary may make recommendations for changes to the Council.  
(ii) To receive the Council’s finalised Annual Self-Assessment report in respect of a financial 
year as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of that financial year.  
(iii) At least once during the period between two consecutive ordinary elections of councillors 
to the Council, consider the independent Panel Performance Assessment report into which 
the Council is meeting its performance requirements.  
(iv)To receive and review the Council’s draft response to the report of the independent Panel 
Performance Assessment and if deemed necessary may make recommendations for 
changes to the statements made in the draft response to the Council. 
 
Complaints Handling   
(i) To review and assess the Council’s ability to deal with complaints effectively. 
(ii)To make reports and recommendations in relation to the Council’s ability to deal with 
complaints effectively.  

Page 156



  

Appendix 2 
 

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 2022-23 22-Jun-22 28-Jul-22 22-Sep-22 13-Oct-22 10-Nov-22 26-Jan-23 27-Apr-23 

      CANCELLED         

Standing Items               

Governance and Audit Committee Action Record        

Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports         

Updated Forward Work Programme        

                

Annual Accounts               

Statement of Accounts 2021-22 (unaudited)              

Porthcawl Harbour Return 2021-22 (unaudited)              

Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement              

Porthcawl Harbour Return (audit letter)              

                

Governance               

Annual Governance Statement 2021-22              

Half Year Review of the Annual Governance Statement 2022-23              

Self Assessment of the Governance and Audit Committee               

Audit Wales Annual Audit Plan (included in Audit Wales Governance 
and Audit Committee Reports item) 

            

Regulatory Tracker             

Annual Audit Summary (included in Audit Wales Governance and 
Audit Committee Reports item) 

             

                

Internal Audit Reports               

Annual Internal Audit Report 2021-22              

Internal Audit Shared Service Charter            

Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Audit Plan 2022-23             

Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Audit Plan 2023-24             

Internal Audit Progress Reports          

Internal Audit Recommendation Monitoring Report           

            

P
age 157



  
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 2022-23 22-Jun-22 28-Jul-22 22-Sep-22 13-Oct-22 10-Nov-22 26-Jan-23 27-Apr-23 

Treasury Management           

Treasury Management Outturn Report 2021-22          

Treasury Management Half Year Report 2022-23           

Treasury Management Strategy 2023-24           

            

Risk Assurance           

Corporate Risk Assessment           

            

Counter Fraud           

Corporate Fraud Report 2021-22          

Anti Tax Evasion Policy            

            

Others           

Complaints Process           

Disabled Facilities Grants           

Annual Self Assessment of the Council's Performance         

            

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

  

P
age 158



  

Appendix 3  
Self-assessment of Good Practice 

 
 

 

P
age 159



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Meeting of: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 28 SEPTEMBER 2023 

Report Title: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2023-24 

Report Owner / 
Corporate Director: 

CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE 

Responsible  
Officer: 

DEBORAH EXTON 
DEPUTY HEAD OF FINANCE 

 
 
 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules: 

 There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure 
rules.  
 

Executive  
Summary: 

• The Governance and Audit Committee has a number 
of core functions and responsibilities within its 
remit. 

• It receives a number of reports and presentations 
throughout the year to enable it to carry out those 
core functions and responsibilities effectively and to 
provide it with confidence in the financial 
governance of the Authority. 

• To enable the Committee to provide this assurance 
and to ensure it is covering its range of 
responsibilities, a Forward Work Programme is 
presented at each meeting, setting out the reports to 
be presented at future meetings, for approval or 
amendment, as necessary. 

• The updated Forward Work Programme (FWP) for 
2023-24 is at Appendix A. 

• Committee is requested to approve the updated FWP 
or request changes for future meetings. 

  

1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the updated Forward Work        

Programme for 2023-24. 
 

2. Background  
 

2.1 The core functions of an effective Governance and Audit Committee include the 
responsibility to: 

 

• review, scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations in relation to 
the Authority’s financial affairs. 

Page 161

Agenda Item 12



• consider the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal 
control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting, governance 
processes, performance assessment and complaints arrangements. 

• seek assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues identified 
by auditors and inspectors. 

• consider the effectiveness of the Council’s anti-fraud and corruption 
arrangements. 

• be satisfied that the Council’s assurance statements properly reflect the 
risk environment and any actions required to improve it. 

• oversee the work of internal audit (including the annual plan and strategy) 
and monitor performance. 

• review summary internal audit reports and the main issues arising, and 
seek assurance that action has been taken where necessary. 

• receive the annual report of the Head of Internal Audit. 

• consider the reports of external audit and inspection agencies, where 
applicable. 

• ensure that there are effective relationships between external and internal 
audit, inspection agencies and other relevant bodies, and that the value of 
the audit process is actively promoted. 

• review and approve the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion 
and reports to Members, and monitor management action in response to 
the issues raised by external audit. 

• review and make any recommendations for change to the Council’s draft 
self-assessment report. 

• consider panel performance assessment reports into how the Council is 
meeting its performance requirements.  

 
2.2  Effective Governance and Audit Committees help to raise the profile of 

governance, internal control, risk management and financial reporting issues 
within an organisation, as well as providing a forum for the discussion of issues 
raised by internal and external auditors. They enhance public trust and 
confidence in the financial governance of an authority. 

 
3. Current situation / proposal  

 
3.1 In order to assist the Committee in ensuring that due consideration is given to 

all aspects of their core functions the proposed Forward Work Programme for 
2023-24 is attached at Appendix A. Committee Members are asked to endorse 
this schedule, confirm the list of people they would like to invite for each item (if 
appropriate), and indicate whether any additional information or research is 
required. 

 
3.2  Shown below are the items scheduled to be presented at the next meeting, to 

be held on 9 November 2023. The update report on Disabled Facilities Grants 
has been postponed from the September meeting until the November meeting 
of Committee. The report on the Porthcawl Harbour Return (audit letter) may 
be postponed until the January 2024 meeting, depending on audit progress 
between now and November.  

 
 

Page 162



 Proposed Agenda Items – 9 November 2023 

1 Governance and Audit Committee Action Record  
2 Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports  
3 Porthcawl Harbour Return (audit letter) 

4 Half Year Review of the Annual Governance Statement 

5 Treasury Management Half Year Report 2023-24 

6 Complaints Process 

7 Disabled Facilities Grants 

8 Updated Forward Work Programme 2023-24 

 
3.3 An additional meeting of Committee, scheduled for 15 December 2023, has 

been arranged to receive the audited Statement of Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement. Should these not have been audited in readiness for 
that meeting, it will be cancelled and the items deferred until the January 
meeting. The schedule of items for discussion at specific meetings may be 
subject to change, to take into account other items that need to be considered, 
and operational factors.  

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh 
Language) 

 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered 
in the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must 
consider the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the 
review of policies, strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there 
will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to 
Corporate Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of 

this report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable 
impacts upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this 
report. 

6. Climate Change Implications 

6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 

7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this 
report. 

8. Financial Implications  
 

8.1  There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 

 

 

Page 163



9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 That the Committee considers and approves the updated Forward Work 

Programme for 2023-24.  

 

Background documents 
 
None 
 

Page 164



APPENDIX A

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2023-24 Frequency 01 June 2023 26 July 2023 28 September 2023 09 November 2023 15 December 2024 25 January 2024 18 April 2024

Standing Items

Governance and Audit Committee Action Record Each meeting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports Each meeting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Updated Forward Work Programme Each meeting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Annual Accounts

Statement of Accounts 2022-23 (unaudited) Annually ✓

Porthcawl Harbour Return 2022-23 (unaudited) Annually ✓

Going Concern Assessment Annually ✓

Audit Enquiries Letter Annually ✓

Audit Wales Letter On Matters Arising From The 2021-22 Audit Annually ✓

Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement Annually ✓

Porthcawl Harbour Return (audit letter) Annually ✓

Governance

Annual Governance Statement Annually ✓

Half Year Review of the Annual Governance Statement Annually ✓

Code of Corporate Governance ✓

Audit Wales Annual Audit Plan (included in Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports item) Annually ✓

Annual Audit Summary (included in Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports item) Annually ✓

Internal Audit Reports

Annual Internal Audit Report 2022-23 Annually ✓

Internal Audit Shared Service Charter Annually ✓

Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Audit Plan 2023-24 Annually ✓

Self Assessment of the Governance and Audit Committee Annually ✓

Internal Audit Progress Reports Quarterly ✓ ✓ ✓

Internal Audit Recommendation Monitoring Report Quarterly ✓ ✓ ✓

External Peer Assessment of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards for the Regional Internal Audit Service Ad hoc ✓

Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report Annually ✓

Treasury Management

Treasury Management Outturn Report 2022-23 Annually ✓

Treasury Management Half Year Report 2023-24 Annually ✓

Treasury Management Strategy 2024-25 Annually ✓

Ethical Investment Policy ✓

Risk Assurance

Corporate Risk Assessment At regular intervals ✓ ✓

Counter Fraud

Corporate Fraud Report 2022-23 Annually ✓

Anti Tax Evasion Policy (previously considered April 2023, due April 2025) Biennially

Performance Related

Complaints Process Ad hoc ✓ ✓ ✓

Regulatory Tracker 6 monthly ✓ ✓

Annual Self Assessment of the Council's Performance Annually ✓ ✓

P
age 165



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Approval of Minutes
	4 Governance and Audit Committee Action Record
	GAC Action Record - Appendix 230726 - 2

	5 Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports
	Appendix A 3744A2023_Bridgend_Q1_Audit_Wales_Update_Eng
	Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council
	Quarterly Update: 30 June 2023
	Annual Audit Summary
	Financial Audit work
	Performance Audit work
	Local government national studies planned/in progress.
	Estyn
	Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW)
	Audit Wales national reports and other outputs published since June 2022
	Audit Wales national reports and other outputs (work in progress/planned)0F , 1F
	Good Practice Exchange events and resources
	Recent Audit Wales blogs



	6 Code of Corporate Governance
	Appendix A - Code of Corporate Governance

	7 Ethical Investment Policy
	Appendix A - Treasury Management and ESG Policy

	8 Progress Against the Internal Audit Risk Based Plan 2023-24
	Appendix A - Progress Against the Plan
	Appendix B - Progress of 22-23 audit jobs cf

	9 Internal Audit Recommendation Monitoring
	Appendix A - Recommendation Monitoring
	Appendix B - Outstanding Recommendation Details
	Appendix C - Recommendations Made in 2021-22 with Future Implementation Dates

	10 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) - External Peer Assessment of the Regional Internal Audit Service
	EQA Report - RIAS - July 2023 Final

	11 Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report 2022/23 - Draft
	Appendix A - Governance  Audit Committee Annual Report  2022-23 - draft 0.4

	12 Forward Work Programme 2023-24
	Appendix A Governance and Audit Committee FWP 2023-24


